HRSD Commission Meeting Agenda
9:00 a.m. — November 22, 2022

In-person for Commissioners and essential staff at
1434 Air Rail Avenue, Virginia Beach, VA

Electronic attendance via Zoom for all others

Public participation and observation of all HRSD Commission and committee meetings is available
electronically via Zoom due to space limitations. To receive a link for virtual attendance/observation or
to request accommodations to attend the meeting in-person, please send your request to Jennifer
Cascio at commissionsecretary@hrsd.com or by phone to 757.460.7003. Requests must be received
by noon one business day prior to the meeting.

No.

10.

Topic
Call to Order

Roll Call of HRSD Commission

Awards and Recognition

Consent Agenda

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Financial Policy

Regional Wet Weather Capacity
Commission Adopted Policy

46! Street Diversion Sewer Rehabilitation/Replacement, Huntington
Ingalls Incorporated, Newport News Shipbuilding (HII-NNS)
Additional Appropriation

Nansemond Treatment Plant Interceptors Storage Yard
Initial Appropriation

Sanitary Sewer Replacement 1950 — Part 2
Initial Appropriation, Reduction in Scope and Appropriation, Rejection of
Bid, Contract Award (>$200,000), and Task Order (>$200,000)

Surry Hydraulic Improvements and Interceptor Force Main
Additional Appropriation, Agreement — Cost Sharing and Contract Change

Order

Boat Harbor Pump Station Land Acquisition
Acquisition of Real Property for a Public Purpose
1201 Terminal Avenue, Newport News
Agreement Amendment

Resource

Elofson
Cascio
Bernas
Bernas
de Mik
de Mik

Bernas

Husselbee

Husselbee

Husselbee

Husselbee

Bernas



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Topic

Lafayette Norview-Estabrook Pump Station Replacements — City Park
Pump Station

Acquisition of Real Property

3500 Granby Street, Norfolk

Lafayette Norview-Estabrook Pump Station Replacements — Luxembourg
Acquisition of Real Property
City of Norfolk, GPIN: 1438561584

Unfinished Business

New Business

Commissioner Comments

Public Comments — A request to make public comments during the
meeting via Zoom or written comments to be read into the minutes should
be submitted by email to commissionsecretary@hrsd.com or by phone to
757.460.7003 and must be received by noon one business day prior to
the meeting.

Informational ltems

Closed Meeting

Reconvened Meeting

Next Regular Commission Meeting Date: December 20, 2022 in Virginia Beach

Resource

Husselbee

Husselbee

Bernas

Bernas

Cascio

Bernas

Bernas

Bernas



Resource: Jay Bernas

AGENDA ITEM 1. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Awards and Recognition

Recommended Action: No action is required.

Brief: HRSD is pleased to announce the following:

1. Promotions

a.

Ms. Jamie Heisig-Mitchell was recently promoted to Director of Water Quality. Jamie
was hired in February 2001 as Water Quality Investigator and was promoted to Water
Quality Specialist in April 2001. In March 2002, she was promoted to Water Quality
Supervising Specialist, then to an Environmental Scientist in April 2006. She was again
promoted in January 2012 to Chief of the Technical Services Division. Jamie holds both
a Bachelor of Science degree and a master’s degree in biology from Old Dominion
University. Jamie has been key in securing regulatory approval for the SWIFT program.
She represents HRSD on the Virginia Association of Metropolitan Wastewater Agencies
(VAMWA) Board and the Executive Board of Virginia Forever, is a graduate of Kenan
Flagler Water and Wastewater Leadership program, and alumna of both the Virginia
Natural Resources Leadership Institute and the Hampton Roads Civic Leadership
Institute.

Paula Hogg will continue to work closely with Ms. Mitchell during this transition period
until she retires on March 1, 2023.

Ms. Amber Di Somma was recently promoted to Condition Assessment Manager in the
Engineering Department. She started her career at HRSD as a Water Technology and
Research Intern in the Operations department based out of the SWIFT Pilot Plant and
later the SWIFT Research Center followed by the Atlantic Thermal Hydrolysis Process
project. In February 2021, she started her first fulltime position as Water Quality
Technician in the Pretreatment and Pollution Prevention division on North Shore helping
regulate industrial dischargers. Amber holds a bachelor's degree in Civil Engineering
from Old Dominion University and a master's degree in Environmental Engineering from
Old Dominion University.

2. New Employee

Mr. Gene Rutledge was recently hired as an Interceptor Engineer in the South Shore
Interceptors Division. Gene is returning to HRSD after 10 years at the federal

government. Gene earned a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineer from Old Dominion University
in 1998, has over 24 years of experience and is a licensed engineer in Virginia. He will be
responsible for managing in-house projects, coordinating with Engineering on CIP projects and
providing engineering support to South Shore Interceptors.



Awards

The Design-Build Institute of America (DBIA)’'s national project/team awards are given annually
to projects that exemplify the principles of Design-Build Done Right ®. There are multiple
sectors within each of the following award categories: Design-Build Merit Award, Design-Build
Awards of Excellence, Chairman’s Award and Project of the Year.

This year, DBIA presented both the Merit Award and Award of Excellence in the
Water/Wastewater sector to Crowder Construction and HRSD for the Providence Road Offline
Storage Facility and Woodstock Park Improvements.



AGENDA ITEM 2. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Consent Agenda

Recommended Action: Approve the Consent Agenda.

Resource: Jay Bernas

Brief: The items listed below are presented on the following pages for Commission action.

a.

Approval of Minutes — The draft minutes of the previous Commission Meeting were

distributed electronically prior to the meeting.
Contract Awards

1. Cybersecurity Practice and Procedure Initiative

2. Electronic Bill Distribution and other Related Financial Services,
Maintenance and Support

3. Recruitment Advertising Services

Contract Change Orders

1. James River Treatment Plant MIFAS Conversion Emergency

2. Larchmont Area Sanitary Sewer Improvements Change Order

Task Order

Task Orders

1. Birchwood Trunk 24-Inch and 30-Inch Force Main at Independence

Boulevard Replacement Phase Il

2. SWIFT Program Management (Boat Harbor Treatment Plant
Projects)

Sole Source

1. APG-Nueros Turbo Blower Repairs and Parts

2. Boat Harbor Treatment Plant Pump Station Conversion
HeadCell Grit Removal Equipment and Parts

3. Evoqua Water Technologies Primary Tank Conveyor Parts

4, ProMinent® PolyRex Polymer System Parts

HRSD Use of Existing Competitively Awarded Contract Vehicle and
Contract Award

1. Interceptor Systems Pump Station Control and SCADA Upgrades
and Enhancements

2. OSlsoft Historian Software

$336,350
$355,000

$239,850

$220,980
$162,643
$2,529,296

$216,748

$215,600

$257,666

$206,872



Resource: Don Corrado

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.b.1. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Cybersecurity Practice and Procedure Initiative
Contract Award (>$200,000)

Recommended Actions: Award a contract to Dispel, LLC in the amount of $67,270 for one year
with four annual renewal options and an estimated cumulative value in the amount of $336,350.

CIP Project: AD012500

Requlatory Requirement: None

Budget $15,500,000
Previous Expenditures and Encumbrances ($4,918,681)
Available Balance $10,581,319

Type of Procurement: Sole Source

HRSD Estimate: $67,270

Project Description: This project will provide for the development of a sustainable comprehensive
framework for secure computing and data management utilizing a variety of hardware, software, and
professional contractual services.

Project Justification: IT staff has coordinated an IT security and vulnerability assessment. This
project will address the assessment's recommendations for minimizing risk exposure.

Contract Description and Analysis of Cost: This contract is an agreement for services to provide
all-in-one secure remote access system that is required to access, manage, and control industrial
control systems by HRSD operations employees and verified third parties. Dispel will provide
installation, training and ongoing support virtually for the system. The cost for this system is based on
a 10 percent discount for a 5-year agreement and is in line with similar services.

This work is in accordance with Commission Adopted Procurement Policy.



Resource: Steve De Mik

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.b.2. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Electronic Bill Distribution and other Related Financial Services, Maintenance and
Support
Contract Award (>$200,000)

Recommended Action: Award a contract to Fiserv Solutions LLC DBA Fiserv, Inc. in the estimated
amount of $71,000 for year one with four annual renewal options and an estimated cumulative value
in the amount of $355,000.

Requlatory Requirement: None

Type of Procurement: Sole Source

All services were previously approved as a sole source with Fiserv, Inc. in July of 2017.

HRSD Estimate: $71,000

Contract Description and Analysis of Cost: This contract is an agreement for services that include
electronic distribution of bills to customers who prefer to manage bills with their financial institutions;
online bill pay services. Fiserv currently provides electronic bill distribution for 33,000 HRSD
customers. Electronic data-fed billing and payment process reduces print and mail costs, improves
payment accuracy while reducing exceptions and improves customer satisfaction by offering
convenience. The cost for this service is considered fair and reasonable based on previous contract
pricing.

This work is in accordance with the Commission Adopted Procurement Policy.



Resource: Dorissa Pitts-Paige

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.b.3. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Recruitment Advertising Services
Contract Award (>$200,000)

Recommended Action: Award a contract to Tribune Publishing Company, LLC DBA Virginia Media
Group in the estimated amount of $91,250 for year one with four annual renewal options and an
estimated cumulative value in the amount of $239,850.

Regulatory Requirement: None

Type of Procurement: Sole Source

All services were previously approved as a sole source with Virginian-Pilot Media Companies, LLC in
October of 2015.

HRSD Estimate: $91,250

Contract Description and Analysis of Cost: This contract is an agreement for recruitment
advertising services to include newspaper ads, online postings on Career Connection, local career
fairs, and other services. The Virginian-Pilot is the only local newspaper of general circulation in
Hampton Roads. Costs are considered fair and reasonable based on previous annual spend. The
cumulative contract value is estimated at a lower value for years two through five due to additional
Talent Management staff and use of other recruitment advertisement services. The actual costs will
be based on services provided and should be significantly less than estimated.

Other recruitment sources include:

American Society for Civil Engineers (ASCE)
American Water Works Association (AWWA)
Career Connection

CareerBuilder

College and Career Academy at Pruden
Dice

Diversity Inc.

Facebook, Instagram, HRSD.com
Glassdoor.com

Green Employer

Hampton Roads Society for Human Resource Management (HRSHRM)
Hampton Roads Workforce Council
Indeed.com

Indian Creek Correctional Center
Jobs2Careers.com

LinkedIn

Military One Source

National Future Farmers of America (FFA)
National Society for Black Engineers (NSBE)
New Horizons Regional Education Center
Newport News Sheriff’'s Office Re-entry Program
Nexxt.com



e Universities and Colleges:
o0 Christopher Newport University

Hampton University
Norfolk State University
Old Dominion University
Peninsula Community College
Tidewater Community College
Virginia Commonwealth University
Virginia Tech

o Virginia Wesleyan University
Public School Systems: Chesapeake, Suffolk, Virginia Beach
Skills USA
Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM)
Society of Hispanic Professional Engineers (SHPE)
Society of Women Engineers (SWE)
Virginia Department for Aging and Rehabilitative Services (DARS)
Virginia Employment Commission
Virginia Values Veterans (V3)
Virginia Water Environment Association (VWEA)
Water Environment Federation (WEF)
WVEC Channel 13
ZipRecruiter.com

O O0OO0O0OO0O0O0

This work is in accordance with the Commission Adopted Procurement Policy.



Resource: Charles Bott

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.c.1. — November 22, 2022

Subject: James River Treatment Plant MIFAS Conversion Emergency
Contract Change Order (>25% or $50,000)

Recommended Action: Approve a change order with Colonial Welding LLC. in the amount of
$220,980.

CIP Project: JR013401

Requlatory Requirement: Enhanced Nutrient Reduction Certainty Program (2023-2032 Completion)

Budget $5,000,000
Previous Expenditures and Encumbrances ($4,166,124)
Available Balance $833,876
Contract Status: Amount Cumulative %
of Contract

Original Contract with Colonial Welding LLC. $665,000
Total Value of Previous Change Orders $166,240 25%
Regquested Change Order No. 4 $220,980
Total Value of All Change Orders $387,220 58.23%
Revised Contract Value $1,052,220

| Time (Additional Calendar Days) | \ 0 |

Project Description: This project will modify the James River Treatment Plant (JRTP) integrated
fixed-film activated sludge (IFAS) basins 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, and 9 (seven tanks) by adding a second
anoxic zone to achieve partial denitrification-annamox (PdNA). The installation in each tank should be
identical to the moving-media integrated fixed-film activated sludge (MIFAS) demonstration tank (tank
5).

As part of the James River Treatment Plant Advanced Nutrient Reduction Improvements (ANRI)
(JRO13400) project, it was decided to upgrade the JRTP aeration tanks from an A20 configuration to
a 5-stage with PANA MIFAS in a newly created second anoxic zone. PANA MIFAS provides
considerable operational cost savings, but more importantly, this is needed to meet nitrogen limits in
the future for the James River SWIFT Facility (GN016360) and to meet new total nitrogen discharge
requirements. The only time available for PANA MIFAS construction to occur is immediately before
the JR013400 construction project begins to avoid significant conflicts with the larger design-build
project performing construction in the same space to upgrade the secondary clarifiers.

This project was declared an emergency on February 11, 2022.

Project Justification: PdANA MIFAS (moving media integrated fixed-film activated sludge) provides
considerable operational cost savings, but more importantly, this is needed to meet

nitrogen limits in the future for James River SWIFT and to meet new total nitrogen discharge
requirements.




Change Order Description: This change order includes the fabrication and installation of 18” high
aluminum screen containment guards at the top of each MIFAS zone to retain media under peak wet
weather conditions in case a hydraulic restriction occurs downstream which forces flow up out of the
tanks.

Analysis of Cost: The cost of this change order is based on a negotiated price between HRSD and
Colonial Welding LLC and is in agreement with other similar efforts from other suppliers.

This work is in accordance with Commission Adopted Procurement Policy.

Schedule: Design February 2022
Construction March 2022
Project Completion December 2022



Resource: Bruce Husselbee

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.c.2. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Larchmont Area Sanitary Sewer Improvements
Contract Change Order (>25%) and Task Order (>$200,000)

Recommended Actions:

a. Approve a change order with Ulliman Schutte Construction, LLC in the amount of $162,643.
b. Approve a task order with Gannett Fleming, Inc. in the amount of $2,529,296.
CIP Project: VP015320

Requlatory Reqguirement: Rehab Action Plan Phase 2 (2025 Completion)

Budget $38,734,000
Previous Expenditures and Encumbrances $7,105,729
Available Balance $31,628,271
Contract Status: Amount Cumulative %
of Contract
Original CM Contract with Ulliman Schutte $397,500
Total Value of Previous Change Orders $10,529 2.6%
Requested Change Order No. 3 $162,643
Total Value of All Change Orders $173,172 43.6%
Revised Contract Value $570,672
Contract Status: Amount
Original Contract with Gannett Fleming $361,938
Total Value of Previous Task Orders $4,660,234
Requested Task Order $2,529,296
Total Value of All Task Orders $7,189,530
Revised Contract Value $7,551,468
Engineering Services as % of Construction 28%

Project Description: This project involves design and construction of five new sanitary sewer pump
stations, approximately 3,700 linear feet of 6-inch, 8-inch, and 10-inch force mains, and
approximately 10,000 linear feet of 8-inch and 10-inch gravity mains and appurtenances. The new
infrastructure will replace (a) five existing HRSD pump stations: Monroe Place PS#114, Powhatan
Avenue PS#122, Richmond Crescent PS#124, Hanover Avenue PS#141, and Jamestown Crescent
PS#142; (b) three City of Norfolk pump stations: Larchmont Eleanor Court PS#112, Larchmont
Walnut Hill Street PS#113, and Larchmont Westwood Terrace PS#11, and (c) install new gravity
trunk lines to divert the flow to the new pump station locations.

As a result of significant forecasted project construction cost escalation exceeding $61 million (as
compared to the construction cost estimate of approximately $29 million at the PER stage), HRSD
and the City of Norfolk jointly approved alternate design and construction concepts included in a
Value Engineering effort that are intended to produce mutually agreeable outcomes while satisfying
the material risk of failure requirements under the EPA Phase 2 Rehabilitation Action Plan for the five
HRSD pump stations listed above.



The attached Map depicts the project location.

Project Justification: This project was initially identified by HRSD as part of a condition assessment
program to address aging infrastructure concerns related to structural, electrical, and pump
performance operation. It was also identified to mitigate the risks from tidal flooding during wet
weather conditions and from sea level rise due to climate change. HRSD and City jointly funded a
comprehensive sanitary sewer master plan for the Larchmont sanitary sewer service area that
encompassed pump station facilities and gravity collection systems associated with these pumping
facilities. Hazen was commissioned to perform the comprehensive study on behalf of HRSD and City.
HRSD and City are entering into a cost sharing agreement with the intent to plan, design, and
construct the recommended improvements. Elements of the Project identified under the VIP-R10 in
HRSD's EPA Rehabilitation Action Plan Phase 2 will need to reach Substantial Completion by May 5,
2025.

Change Order Description: This change order will provide additional preconstruction phase
services based on accepted recommendations from the Value Engineering effort and described as
follows: Walnut Hill St PS #113 replacement, Powhatan Ave PS #122 rehabilitation, Richmond
Crescent PS #124 rehabilitation, Hanover Ave PS #165 replacement, Jamestown Crescent PS #142
rehabilitation, Monroe Place PS #166 replacement, and associated gravity mains and force mains.

Task Order Description: This task order will provide revised design efforts based on accepted
recommendations from the Value Engineering effort.

Analysis of Cost: A total redesign fee of $3,731,907 was negotiated with Gannett Fleming.
Remaining unused design phase fee for Gannett Fleming from the original design agreement is
$1,202,611. Therefore, additional design fee funding less this remaining balance is $2,529,296.
Design development based on the original scope of work for this project had progressed to ninety
percent completion for all pump stations and sixty percent completion for all service area
improvements before the project was paused for a Value Engineering effort. The redesign fee
($3,731,907) to the revised construction cost ($26.7 million) ratio is similar to the original design
amendment for Gannett Fleming as compared to the construction cost estimate at the start of the
initial design efforts.

Schedule: PER July 2020
Design June 2021
Bid October 2023
Construction November 2023

Project Completion July 2026
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Resource: Bruce Husselbee

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.d.1. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Birchwood Trunk 24-Inch and 30-Inch Force Main at Independence Boulevard
Replacement Phase Il
Task Order (>$200,000)

Recommended Action: Approve a task order with Rummel, Klepper & Kahl, LLP (RKK) in the
amount of $216,748.

CIP Project: CE011300

Requlatory Requirement: Rehab Action Plan Phase 2 (2025 Completion)

Budget $1,702,700
Previous Expenditures and Encumbrances ($85,450)
Available Balance $1,617,250
Contract Status: Amount

Original Contract with RKK $0
Total Value of Previous Task Orders $85,450
Requested Task Order $216,748
Total Value of All Task Orders $302,198
Revised Contract Value $302,198
Engineering Services as % of Construction 11.2%

Project Description: This project includes replacement of approximately 350 linear feet of 24-inch
reinforced concrete pipe crossing Independence Boulevard just south of Cleveland Street in the City
of Virginia Beach.

The attached map depicts the project location.

Project Justification: A leak was identified on this force main in December 2009 and repaired under
an emergency designation with a recommendation to replace the entire roadway crossing. Condition
assessment activities indicate that this asset, late 1960’s era, presents a material risk of failure due to
physical condition defects.

Task Order Description: This task order will provide final design and bid phase services in
accordance with the approved recommendations from the Preliminary Engineering Report.

Analysis of Cost: The cost for this task order is based on a negotiated scope and an estimation of
hours and existing rates in RKK’s annual services contract for Interceptor System Projects. The
design fee is 11.2% of the estimated construction cost which is reasonable when compared to other
similar projects.

Schedule: PER November 2021
Design November 2022
Bid August 2023
Construction November 2023

Project Completion July 2024
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Resource: Bruce Husselbee

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.d.2. — November 22, 2022

Subject: SWIFT Program Management (Boat Harbor Treatment Plant Projects)
Task Order (>$200,000)

Recommended Action: Approve a task order with AECOM in the amount of $215,600.

CIP Project: GN016320

Regulatory Requirement: Integrated Plan — SWIFT

Budget $80,000,000
Previous Expenditures and Encumbrances ($43,320,454)
Available Balance $36,679,546
Contract Status: Amount

Original Contract with Name of Engineer/Contractor $5,264,440
Total Value of Previous Task Orders $37,643,570
Requested Task Order $215,600
Total Value of All Task Orders $37,859,170
Revised Contract Value $43,123,610

Project Description: The SWIFT Full-Scale Implementation Program (FSIP) Management team is
managing the delivery of the advance water treatment facilities to take HRSD’s already highly treated
wastewater and produce SWIFT water. The Program Management team is also delivering conveyance,
wastewater treatment plant improvements, and other such projects to support full-scale SWIFT
implementation. The Program Management team will implement the processes, procedures, and systems
needed to design, procure, construct, permit, manage, and integrate the new SWIFT related assets.

Project Justification: Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) guidance allows for Water
Quality Improvement Fund (WQIF) grant funding of conveyance projects that will be completed to avoid
more expensive nutrient management projects at treatment plant. The grant application requires that
preliminary engineering is conducted to provide justification of the per-unit process costs for proposed
nutrient management upgrades. An existing 2011 report documents upgrades proposed as needed to
upgrade Boat Harbor Treatment Plant (BHTP) to meet effluent nutrient discharge requirements. HRSD
has requested that the Program Management team confirm the report approach and update the
preliminary costs to reflect the current economic conditions

Task Order Description: This task order will provide professional engineering services to generate a
conceptual facility cost estimate, design report update, and grant application documentation for the BHTP
SWIFT FSIP conveyance projects to support HRSD’s WQIF grant application related to BHTP closure.

Analysis of Cost: The professional engineering services task order is based on a negotiated scope and
fee. The proposed activities and number of hours associated with each task are a reasonable estimate of
the effort required. The labor rates for each staff category in the proposed fee are in accordance with the
Professional Services Agreement with AECOM, as approved for FY-2023. The program management rate
schedule is comparable with the typical rate schedule of HRSD’s General Engineering Services providers.
The proposed scope and budget fee are reasonable considering the level of effort and the potential
benefit of receiving grant funding for the BHTP closure projects. Compensation for this task order will be
on a time and materials basis

Schedule: Program Services Task November 2022



Resource: Eddie Abisaab

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.e.1. — November 22, 2022

Subject: APG-Nueros Turbo Blower Repairs and Parts
Sole Source (>$10,000)

Recommended Action: Approve the use of APG-Nueros Turbo Blower Repairs and Parts by APGN,
Inc. at HRSD.

Requlatory Requirement: None

Sole Source Justification:

X] Compatibility with existing equipment or systems is required

Support of a special program in which the product or service has unique characteristics
essential to the needs of the program

[]
[] Product or service is covered by a patent or copyright
[]

Product or service is part of standardization program to minimize training for maintenance
and operation, and parts inventory

Details: Product includes the purchase of replacement parts for the existing APG-Nueros turbo
blower. The high-efficiency turbo blowers reduce the amount of power used during the aeration
process.

The Commission previously approved limited sole source authority for APG-Neuros Turbo Blower
Repairs for all HRSD facilities. This action supersedes previous actions and expands the scope to
cover parts for the blowers as needed.

This work is in accordance with Commission Adopted Procurement Policy.



Resource: Charles Bott

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.e.2. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Boat Harbor Treatment Plant Pump Station Conversion
HeadCell Grit Removal Equipment and Parts
Sole Source (>$10,000)

Recommended Actions: Approve the use of HeadCell® Grit Removal Equipment and parts by
Hydro International at the Boat Harbor Pump Station (BHPS).

CIP Project: BH015700

Requlatory Reguirement: Integrated Plan — SWIFT
Enhanced Nutrient Reduction Certainty Program (2023-2032 Completion)

Sole Source Justification:

[[] Compatibility with existing equipment or systems is required

Support of a special program in which the product or service has unique characteristics
essential to the needs of the program

X
X Product or service is covered by a patent or copyright
[]

Product or service is part of standardization program to minimize training for maintenance
and operation, and parts inventory

Details: Product includes the purchase of HeadCell® primary grit removal unit, and associated
package equipment including start up services.

The Boat Harbor Pump Station (BHPS) will serve as the headworks facility for the portion of
Nansemond Treatment Plant (NTP) influent generated in the existing Boat Harbor Service Area. The
BHPS will convey screened and degritted raw wastewater under the James River to NTP.
Wastewater from the Boat Harbor service area will enter NTP downstream of the existing NTP
headworks facility and no additional screening or degritting of this water will be provided. Existing
NTP and BH flows will be combined prior to primary clarification at NTP and will be treated together in
the remainder of the NTP treatment processes.

The condition within the HRSD service area where a remote headworks facility (i.e. the BHPS) will
provide screening and degritting for a significant portion of a treatment plant’'s raw wastewater influent
is unique. Highly efficient removal of sand-sized grit particles that are characteristic of HRSD’s raw
wastewater influents is needed to (a) protect the subaqueous transmission force main under the
James River between the BHPS and NTP, and (b) to minimize additional grit loading on NTP
following BHTP closure.

HRSD has previously performed computational fluid dynamics (CFD) modeling and large-scale
piloting of grit removal technologies to determine the removal efficiencies of grit of various sizes and
densities. That work demonstrated, both by CFD modeling and large-scale pilot performance, that a
stacked tray grit removal system has superior removal efficiency under for the relevant range of sand-
sized grit particles (105-297um nominal diameter) under dry and wet weather operation. As the Hydro
International HeadCell® grit removal equipment is the only known application of a stacked tray grit
removal system, a sole source was approved for the Army Base Treatment Plant Improvements
Phase Il in July 2009.



Due to the unique condition of the BHPS providing grit removal upstream of the critical subaqueous
crossing between BHPS and NTP and the need to control grit loading on NTP, the need for highly
efficient removal of sand-sized grit particles warrants a sole source of Hydro International’s
HeadCell® grit removal equipment for installation at the BHPS.

This work is in accordance with Commission Adopted Procurement Policy.



Resource: Eddie Abisaab

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.e.3. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Evoqua Water Technologies Primary Tank Conveyor Parts
Sole Source (>$10,000)

Recommended Action: Approve the use of Evoqua Water Technologies LLC Primary Tank
Conveyor Parts by EWT Holdings Il Corp dba Evoqua Water Technologies LLC at all HRSD facilities.

Requlatory Requirement: None

Sole Source Justification:

X] Compatibility with existing equipment or systems is required

Support of a special program in which the product or service has unique characteristics
essential to the needs of the program

[]
[] Product or service is covered by a patent or copyright
[]

Product or service is part of standardization program to minimize training for maintenance
and operation, and parts inventory

Details: Product includes the purchase of Evoqua Water Technologies LLC (Evoqua) primary tank
conveyor parts. VIP uses a drive shaft system due to the depth of the cross conveyor screw and a
unique adapter coupling from the output of a submerged right angle gearbox. Evoqua is the only
known supplier who makes this unique ball bushing shaft and housing adapter joint.

This work is in accordance with Commission Adopted Procurement Policy.



Resource: Eddie Abisaab

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.e.4. — November 22, 2022

Subject:  ProMinent® PolyRex Polymer System Parts
Sole Source (>$10,000)

Recommended Action: Approve the use of ProMinent® PolyRex Polymer System Parts by Heyward
Inc at all HRSD facilities.

Requlatory Requirement: None

Sole Source Justification:

X] Compatibility with existing equipment or systems is required

Support of a special program in which the product or service has unique characteristics
essential to the needs of the program

[]
X] Product or service is covered by a patent or copyright
[]

Product or service is part of standardization program to minimize training for maintenance
and operation, and parts inventory

Details: Product includes the purchase of ProMinent® PolyRex Polymer System parts. The
ProMinent® PolyRex Polymer System feeds polymer into the sludge mixture before it enters the
Centrifuge. The system ensures the polymer is mixed properly.

The polymer system was purchased via competitive solicitation accepting equals in 2021.

This work is in accordance with Commission Adopted Procurement Policy.



Resource: Eddie Abisaab

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.f.1. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Interceptor Systems Pump Station Control and SCADA Upgrades and Enhancements
HRSD Use of Existing Competitively Awarded Contract Vehicle and Contract Award
(>$200,000)

Recommended Actions:

a. Approve the use of the Virginia Association of State College & University Purchasing
Professionals Contract# 7365172JC for Cisco Products and Services.

b. Award a contract to Savant Ltd. in the amount of $257,666.

HRSD Estimate: $257,666

CIP Project: GN012800

Requlatory Requirement: None

Budget $28,034,079
Previous Expenditures and Encumbrances ($23,862,807)
Available Balance $4,171,272

Project Description: The Interceptor System SCADA was implemented in the 1990’s and has been
maintained by HRSD staff since installation. This project will replace and improve components of the
SCADA system to ensure that compliance with regulatory requirements is maintained and that
supervisory control is provided. Components of the system that will be evaluated for replacement
and/or improvements include: PLC control, differential pressure cells/other wet well level monitoring,
CCTV security, panel gauge upgrades (digital display of WW levels), pressure switch abandonment,
telemetry equipment, computer software and hardware.

Project Justification: HRSD owns and operates approximately 81 pump stations and pressure
reducing stations. Local control and SCADA equipment is in need of assessment and replacement for
operational improvements and in response to EPA’s unilateral Administrative Order. The current
system utilizes various control scenarios from advanced VFD with PLC control to maintain wet well
levels and pressures to the reliable but dated technology of pressure switches for on/off stations.
These systems need to be assessed and updated to meet future capacity optimization control
regimes, including RTC (real time control) and/or predictive measures. The current design and
operation of the pump station controls and SCADA system do not promote proper data acquisition,
supervisory control, or emerging control technologies.

Contract Description and Analysis of Cost: This contract is for the installation and configuration of
Cisco routers for use on new construction SCADA projects. The Cisco routers are used to maintain
product conformity on all SCADA projects. By utilizing the cooperative contract through Virginia
Association of State College & University Purchasing, HRSD is receiving 51 percent cost savings.




Resource: Don Corrado

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM 2.f.2. — November 22, 2022

Subject: OSlsoft Historian Software
HRSD Use of Existing Competitively Awarded Contract Vehicle and Contract Award
(>$200,000)

Recommended Actions:

a. Approve the use of the Virginia Association of State College & University Purchasing
Professionals contract# UVA1482501 for IT Products/Software/Services.

b. Award a contract for OSlsoft Historian Software to Carahsoft Technology Corporation in the
estimated amount of $51,718 for year one with three annual renewal options and an estimated
cumulative value in the amount of $206,872.

HRSD Estimate: $51,718

Requlatory Requirement: None

Contract Description and Analysis of Cost: This contract is for the purchase of OSlIsoft Historian
software licenses and annual maintenance. The software enables digital transformation of operations
data. Itis used to easily create custom reports and views to monitor processes and troubleshoot on
the spot such as comparing downtime events and batch datasets to identify patterns and replicate
best practices. It serves as the data historian for HRSD’s Telog data and delivers analysis-ready
operations data to analytics tools and algorithms to derive useful insights on operations data. By
utilizing the cooperative contract through Virginia Association of State College & University
Purchasing Professionals (VASCUPP), HRSD is receiving 25 percent cost savings.




Resource: Steve de Mik

AGENDA ITEM 3. — November 22, 2022
Subject: Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

Recommended Action: Accept the Finance Committee’s report regarding the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Brief: Political subdivisions of the Commonwealth of Virginia are required to publish a complete set
of audited financial statements. HRSD is also required by its Trust Agreement to prepare and
distribute its financial statements within 150 days following the close of the fiscal year.

The Department of Finance is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
financial statements were audited by Cherry Bekaert LLP who issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion
on them.

Commissioners Elofson (committee chair) and Levenston were appointed as the Commission’s
Finance Committee in 2022 for Fiscal Year 2023. The Finance Committee, along with Commissioners
Rodriguez, Lakdawala and Taraski (virtual) met with staff on November 10, 2022 to review the draft
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The Finance
Committee will provide their comments to the full Commission. Staff will provide a brief overview the
financial statements.

HRSD is pleased to announce the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada awarded a Certificate to HRSD for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021. This was the 39" consecutive year that HRSD received this prestigious
award and reflects the commitment and dedication of the Accounting Division in the Department of
Finance.
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November 14, 2022

Hampton Roads Sanitation District Commission
Virginia Beach, Virginia

Dear Commissioners:

Political subdivisions of the Commonwealth of Virginia are required to publish a complete set of audited financial
statements. This report fulfills that requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Hampton Roads Sanitation District's (HRSD) management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information contained in this report, based on a comprehensive framework of internal control it
has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the
objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material
misstatements.

Cherry Bekaert LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on HRSD’s financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. The independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial
section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the Report of Independent Auditor and provides
a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A, which complements
this letter of transmittal, should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF HRSD

HRSD is an independent political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the Commonwealth) created by
referendum on November 5, 1940. HRSD was established to abate water pollution in the Hampton Roads area by
providing a system of interceptor mains and wastewater treatment plants.

Approximately 1.9 million individuals, more than one-fifth of Virginia’s population, reside in HRSD’s service area,
which is in the southeastern corner of the Commonwealth. HRSD'’s territory of approximately 5,000 square miles
encompasses nine cities, eleven counties and several large military facilities. A brief history of HRSD is provided
on page 6. HRSD is required by its Enabling Act to meet its obligations by charging user fees for its wastewater
treatment services; no taxing authority is authorized by the Enabling Act. Currently, HRSD provides service and bills
to approximately 484,000 service connections.

Aboard of eight commissioners (the Commission), appointed by the Governor of Virginia, governs HRSD. Commission
members, who serve four-year staggered terms, can be reappointed without limitation and may be suspended or
removed by the Governor at his pleasure. The Commission appoints a General Manager, who appoints the senior
staff.

HRSD owns and operates 16 treatment plants as of June 30, 2022. The eight major plants in Hampton Roads have
design capacities ranging in size from 15 to 54 million gallons per day (MGD). Four of the major plants are located
south of the James River and four are north of the James River (see map on page 6). The combined capacity of
these eight plants is approximately 225 MGD. HRSD’s eight small rural treatment plants have a combined capacity
of 1.75 MGD.

HRSD maintains 538 miles of pipelines ranging from six inches to sixty-six inches in diameter. Interceptor pipelines,
along with 89 pump stations in Hampton Roads, interconnect into two independent systems, one south of the James
River and one north of the James River. The system allows some flow diversions to provide for maintenance or
emergency work. HRSD owns and maintains 44 pump stations in the Small Communities.

PO Box 5911, Virginia Beach, VA 23471-0911 » 757.460.7003

Commissioners: Stephen C. Rodriguez, Chair ¢ Frederick N. Elofson, CPA, Vice-Chair « Vishnu K. Lakdawala, PhD
Michael E. Glenn « Willie Levenston, Jr. « Elizabeth A. Taraski, PhD ¢ Nancy J. Stern « Ann W. Templeman
www.hrsd.com



Local Economy

HRSD'’s service area includes nearly all the Virginia Beach-Norfolk-Newport News Metropolitan Statistical Area
(MSA). It is the eighth largest MSA in the southeastern United States and the thirty-seventh largest in the nation.
Unlike many metropolitan areas, Hampton Roads’ population nucleus is not confined to one central city. Instead,
the approximately 1.9 million residents are spread among several cities and counties. Virginia Beach is the most
populous city in the Commonwealth, with Norfolk and Chesapeake second and third, respectively. Suffolk is the
largest city by land area. Unemployment rates remain below national averages in the region, which has a civilian
labor force of 850,000 as of June 2022.

The regional economy is supported by one of the highest military concentrations in the nation, diverse manufacturing
and service sectors, shipbuilding and repair work, international port activities and tourism. Several state and private
colleges and a large healthcare infrastructure also lend stability to the region.

A diverse customer base allows HRSD to maintain stable revenues. The ten largest customers account for only
8.6 percent of wastewater revenues for fiscal year 2022. In addition, HRSD’s 2022 revenues contained only limited
reliance (1.9 percent) on new customer connections.

Long-Term Financial Planning

HRSD'’s Financial Policy helps it maintain its solid fiscal health. Budgetary principles include using ongoing revenues
to pay for ongoing expenses and establishing annual cash contribution goals of at least 15 percent of budgeted
capital costs. Under the Financial Policy, senior debt service coverage and total adjusted debt service coverage
ratios should not be less than 1.5 and 1.4 times annual debt service, respectively with a goal of maintaining 2.0.
Operating and ten-year capital improvement budgets are adopted annually. Included in the operating budget is a
long-range financial forecast, which is guided by projections of operating and capital needs and the aforementioned
Financial Policy requirements.

Major Initiatives

HRSD continues its ambitious $3.1 billion, ten-year Capital Improvement Program. Regulatory requirements to
reduce nutrient discharges, initiatives to ensure appropriate wet weather capacity exists within the regional sanitary
sewer system, major plant upgrades and replacements of interceptor pipelines drive the capital program. Major
projects are currently under construction at the Army Base, Boat Harbor, Nansemond and the Virginia Initiative
Treatment Plants. To minimize the impacts of its capital investments on ratepayers, HRSD continues to pursue grant
and joint venture opportunities when available.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to HRSD for its comprehensive annual financial report (Annual Report) for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021. This was the 39th consecutive year that HRSD has received this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, HRSD must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Annual Report
that satisfies both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current Annual Report continues
to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this Annual Report was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire Department of
Finance staff. All members of the department have our sincere appreciation for their contributions to the preparation
of this report. Credit must also be given to the Commission for their support for maintaining the highest standard of
professionalism in the management of HRSD’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

i |' as = . r ~
’%‘/ ’Hr'"jwwk {anetl K- ler—
&S
Jay A. Bernas, P.E Steve de Mik Carroll L. Acors, CPA

General Manager Deputy General Manager/CFO Chief of Accounting
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HRSD History

June 30, 2022

HRSD can trace its beginnings to 1925 when the Virginia Department of Health condemned a large oyster producing
area in Hampton Roads. The closure resulted in the Virginia General Assembly creating in 1927 a “Commission to
Investigate and Survey the Seafood Industry of Virginia.” Other studies recommended a public body to construct
and operate a sewage system in the area. HRSD was named after Hampton Roads, a ship anchorage used for five
centuries located near the convergence of the James, Elizabeth and Nansemond Rivers, before they flow into the
Chesapeake Bay in southeastern Virginia.

In 1934, the Virginia General Assembly created the Hampton Roads Sanitation Disposal Commission with instructions

to plan the elimination of pollution in Hampton Roads. Recommendations were made to the General Assembly,
which resulted in the Sanitary Districts Law of 1938, along with “an Act to provide for and create the Hampton Roads
Sanitation District.” This Act required the qualified voters within HRSD to decide in a general election on November
8, 1938, if they favored creation of such a District. This referendum failed to gain a majority by about 500 votes out
of nearly 20,000 votes cast. This led to a revision of the Act and another referendum was held on November 5, 1940,
which resulted in a majority vote for the creation of the Hampton Roads Sanitation District.

The Enabling Act provides for HRSD to operate as a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia for the
specific purpose of water pollution abatement in Hampton Roads by providing a system of interceptor mains and
wastewater treatment plants. Its affairs are controlled by a Commission of eight members appointed by the Governor
for four-year terms. Administration is under the direction of a General Manager, supported by department directors
and their staff.

HRSD began operations on July 1, 1946, using facilities acquired from the United States Government. The Warwick
County Trunk Sewer, HRSD's first construction project, began on June 26, 1946, and was funded by HRSD’s $6.5
million Primary Pledge Sewer Revenue Bonds, dated March 1, 1946. The first treatment plant, the Army Base Plant,
began operation on October 14, 1947. Since that time, the facilities of HRSD have grown to provide sanitary sewer
service to all major population centers in southeastern Virginia. The population served has increased from nearly
288,000 in 1940 to about 1.9 million in 2021.

Throughout its rich history HRSD has earned many of its industry’s most prestigious awards. This tradition continued
as the National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA) presented Peak Performance Awards for outstanding
compliance with National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits to the following HRSD treatment
plants during the year ended June 30, 2022: Atlantic— Platinum Award (7 consecutive years of compliance), Boat
Harbor—Platinum (20 consecutive years), James River—Platinum (8 consecutive years), Nansemond—Platinum
(20 consecutive years), Virginia Initiative Plant—Platinum (26 consecutive years), Williamsburg—Platinum (27
consecutive years) and York River— Platinum (14 consecutive years).

Additional awards and honors received during the year ended June 30, 2022 include the American Council of
Engineering Companies (ACEC) Virginia 2022 Grand Award and the Construction Risk Partners Build America Merit
Award for the Providence Road Offline Storage Facility Woodstock Park Improvements Project, and the Elizabeth
River Project’s Sustained Distinguished Performance Award.

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 7
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Report of Independent Auditor

To the Commissioners
Hampton Roads Sanitation District

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Hampton Roads Sanitation District (‘HRSD”), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise HRSD's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of HRSD, as of June 30, 2022
and 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then
ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and
Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Specifications”).
Our responsibilities under those standards and Specifications are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of HRSD, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about HRSD's ability to continue as a going concern for
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Specifications will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

1 cbh.com
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Specifications, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of HRSD 's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the HRSD 's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the Introductory, Statistical, and Other Supplemental Sections, but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed,
we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe
it in our report.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 14, 2022,
on our consideration of HRSD's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of HRSD's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering HRSD’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

&w? Bekaet-L L P

Virginia Beach, Virginia
November 14, 2022
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)

This narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Hampton Roads Sanitation District (HRSD) for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, is provided by HRSD’s management. Readers of the accompanying
financial statements are encouraged to consider this information in conjunction with that furnished in the transmittal
letter, which can be found on pages 1 through 2 of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
m Total net position increased by $108.7 million, or 11.4 percent, in 2022 as a result of this year’s operations.

m Total revenues increased by $25.6 million, or 7.5 percent, mainly due to a $28.2 million increase in operating
revenues generated from an increase in wastewater treatment rates. This increase was offset slightly by a
$2.1 million decrease in investment income primarily due to continued market volatility and lower interest rates.
Additionally, there was a $0.3 decrease in facility charges and $0.1 decrease in bond interest subsidy in 2022.

m Operating expenses decreased by $0.6 million, or 0.3 percent, due to a $1.3 million increase in wastewater
treatment expenses, a $1.1 million increase in depreciation and amortization, $3.0 million decrease in general
and administrative expenses.

m Restricted cash and cash equivalents increased $2.7 million, or 8.8 percent, due to an increase in cash
restricted for debt service. Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents increased $35.1 million, or 18.4 percent,
primarily due to utilizing debt to fund capital construction projects in FY22.

m Net Property, Plant and Equipment increase of $110.3 million, or 6.9 percent, due to $25.3 million net increase
in depreciable assets, $12.5 million increase in land purchases and $72.5 increase in capital projects in
progress.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HRSD’s Basic Financial Statements are comprised of the financial statements and the notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains required supplementary information and other supplementary information in
addition to the Basic Financial Statements.

The Basic Financial Statements, found on pages 20 through 23 of this report, are designed to provide readers with
a broad overview of HRSD’s finances in a manner similar to a private sector business.

The Statements of Net Position, found on pages 20 and 21 of this report, present information on all of HRSD’s
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources; the difference between these
components is reported as net position. Over time, changes in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of HRSD is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, found on page 22 of this report, present all
of HRSD’s revenues and expenses, showing how HRSD’s net position changed during the year. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event takes place, thus giving rise to the changes, regardless of
the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods.

The Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, found on pages 24 and
25, provide information on the control of assets for which HRSD has a fiduciary responsibility and the beneficiaries
with whom a fiduciary responsibility exists. These statements are required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as discussed in Notes 2 and 14.

The Notes to Financial Statements, found on pages 26 through 58 of this report, provide additional information that
is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.

In addition to the Basic Financial Statements and the related notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning HRSD’s progress in funding its obligations to provide pension and other
postemployment benefits to its employees.

Required Supplementary Information can be found beginning on page 61 of this report.
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SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of HRSD'’s financial position. Total assets
and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $1,059.5 million
at June 30, 2022 and by $950.8 million at June 30, 2021.

By far, the largest portion of HRSD’s net position (78.6 percent and 81.6 percent at June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively) reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment) less any
related debt used to acquire those assets still outstanding, net of unspent bond proceeds. HRSD uses these
capital assets to provide services to its customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although HRSD’s net investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, because the capital assets themselves
cannot be liquidated to reduce these liabilities.

HRSD’s net position is summarized in the following condensed Statements of Net Position as of June 30:

HRSD’s Condensed Statements of Net Position
2022 vs. 2021

(in thousands) 2022 2021 2020 Dollars Percent

Capital assets $ 1,715,108 $ 1,604,841 $ 1,457,955 $ 110,267 6.9%
Current and noncurrent assets 346,767 311,141 337,233 35,626 11.5%
Total assets 2,061,875 1,915,982 1,795,188 145,893 7.6%
Deferred outflows of resources 42,611 42,277 37,592 334 0.8%
Long-term liabilities 796,272 794,371 791,705 1,901 0.2%
Current liabilities 211,670 195,162 157,752 16,508 8.5%
Total liabilities 1,007,942 989,533 949,457 18,409 1.9%
Deferred inflows of resources 37,060 17,902 13,416 19,158 107.0%
Net investment in capital assets 832,427 776,253 646,505 56,174 7.2%
Restricted for debt service 33,134 30,455 28,155 2,679 8.8%
Unrestricted 193,923 144,116 195,247 49,807 34.6%
Total net position $ 1,059,484 $ 950,824 $ 869,907 $ 108,660 11.4%

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, HRSD had no unspent bond proceeds. The increase in capital assets and the increase
in current assets is primarily due to an increase in the utilization of debt to fund and complete capital improvement
projects.

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 15



The changes in HRSD’s net position can be determined by reviewing the following condensed Statements of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position:

HRSD’s Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2022 vs. 2021

(in thousands) 2022 2021 2020 Dollars Percent
Revenues:

Operating revenues $ 357,946 $ 329,769 $ 322,032 $ 28,177 8.5%

Facility charge revenues 7,072 7,379 6,444 (307) (4.2%)

Investment income, net (1,651) 471 5,876 (2,122) (450.5%)

Bond interest subsidy 2,052 2,167 2,205 (115) (5.3%)
Total revenues 365,419 339,786 336,557 25,633 7.5%
Operating expenses:

Wastewater treatment 134,135 132,820 122,393 1,315 1.0%

General and administrative 45,673 48,691 46,949 (3,018) (6.2%)

Depreciation and amortization 54,357 53,278 51,383 1,079 2.0%

Total operating expenses 234,165 234,789 220,725 (624) (0.3%)

Non-operating expenses:

Bond issuance costs 311 682 1,290 (371) (54.4%)

Capital distributions to localities 13 376 - (363) (96.5%)

Disposal of capital assets - - 739 -

Interest expense 25,007 25,339 26,179 (332) (1.3%)

Total non-operating expenses 25,331 26,397 28,208 (1,066) (4.0%)

Total expenses 259,496 261,186 248,933 (1,690) (0.6%)
Income before capital contributions 105,923 78,600 87,624 27,323 34.8%
Capital contributions 2,737 2,317 578 420 18.1%
Change in net position 108,660 80,917 88,202 27,743 34.3%
Total net position - beginning 950,824 869,907 781,705 80,917 9.3%
Total net position - ending $ 1,059,484 $ 950,824 $ 869,907 $ 108,660 11.4%

Revenues by Source

Investment and Bond interest subsidy
0.1%

Facility charge revenues
1.9%

Operating revenues
98.0 %

Operating revenues increased by $28.2 million, or 8.5 percent, in 2022 and by $7.7 million, or 2.4 percent, in 2021.
The primary increase in 2022 was due to wastewater rate increase. The 2021 increase was due to an increase in
consumption. Net Investment income decreased $2.1 million in 2022, or 450.5 percent, primarily due to FY22 market
volatility and reduced cash balances, compared to a $5.4 million decrease, or 92.0 percent, in 2021.
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Operating expenses decreased by $0.6 million, or 0.3 percent in 2022 and by $14.1 million, or 6.4 percent, in 2021.
Decreases in 2022 were due to a $1.3 million increase in wastewater treatment expenses, a $1.1 million increase in
depreciation and amortization, and $3.0 million decrease in general and administrative expenses. Increases in 2021
were principally due to a $2.6 million increase in pension expense, a $2 million increase in material and supplies, $3.5
million increase in contractual services, $1.8 million increase in depreciation expense and a $4.3 million increase in
capital construction projects expense in FY21.

In 2022 and 2021, HRSD received $2.7 million and $2.3 million, respectively, in capital contributions to help finance
its capital improvement program.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2022 and 2021, HRSD had approximately $1.7 billion and $1.6 billion, respectively, invested in a
broad range of capital assets, including land, wastewater treatment plants, interceptor systems, pump stations,
administrative and maintenance buildings, equipment and software. These amounts represent a net increase of
$110.3 million, or 6.9 percent in 2022 and a net increase of $146.9 million, or 10.1 percent in 2021.

The following summarizes HRSD’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as of June 30:

HRSD’s Capital Assets

(in thousands) 2022 2021 2020
Land $ 56,170 $ 43,658 $ 12,229
Treatment plants 666,215 696,176 654,809
Interceptor systems 537,431 522,400 447,372
Buildings 43,553 26,021 27,305
Small community facilities 15,882 16,123 16,672
Office equipment 787 788 754
Automotive 1,368 1,715 1,716
Other equipment 38,116 13,999 4,309
Software and intangible assets - 815 2,204
1,359,522 1,321,695 1,167,370
Construction in progress 355,586 283,146 290,585
Net property, plant and equipment $ 1,715,108 $ 1,604,841 $ 1,457,955

The following summarizes the changes in capital assets for the years ended June 30:

(in thousands) 2022 2021 2020

Balance at beginning of year $ 1,604,841 $ 1,457,955 $ 1,358,327
Additions 92,184 207,603 156,518
Transfers/Retirements (1,460) - (1,819)
Depreciation and amortization (54,357) (53,278) (51,383)
Accumulated depreciation retired 1,460 - 258
Net increase (decrease) in construction in progress 72,440 (7,439) (3,946)
Balance at end of year $ 1,715,108 $ 1,604,841 $ 1,457,955

The largest increase in capital assets over the past several years has been in treatment plant construction and
interceptor system construction, which includes pipeline replacements, pump station rehabilitations and other
improvements to the infrastructure. HRSD’s total capital expenditures were $171.7 million during 2022 and $213.4
million during 2021. The largest FY22 expenses are attributed to Nansemond and York River Treatment Plant Nutrient
Reduction projects, Eastern Shore treatment plant improvements, and SWIFT projects. Fiscal year 2021 expenses
were primarily due to SWIFT project expansion expenses,in treatment plants and interceptor systems expansion
and improvements projects and land purchases.
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LongTerm Debt

At June 30, 2022, HRSD had a total of $868.5 million in revenue bonds outstanding versus $835.0 million in 2021,
a 4.01% increase over prior year. Draws on existing approved bonds, in the amount of $72.0 million, were offset by
payments on existing senior and subordinate debt and amortization of bond premiums, in the amount of $38.5 million.

The following summarizes HRSD’s outstanding debt principal at June 30:

HRSD’s Outstanding Debt

(in thousands, excluding unamortized bond premiums) 2022 2021 2020

Senior revenue bonds $ 183,899 $ 198,670 $ 214,212
Subordinate revenue bonds 668,031 616,533 597,745
Total outstanding debt $ 851,930 $ 815,203 $ 811,957

HRSD’s financial strengths are reflected in its high credit ratings listed below:

Subordinate Subordinate
Ratings Agency Senior Debt Long-term Short-term
Standard & Poor’s AA+ AA+ A-1+
Fitch Ratings AA+ AA F1+
Moody’s Investors Service Aal Aal n/a

The development of HRSD’s Capital Improvement Program and its related debt programs are governed by revenue
Trust Agreements. The Senior Trust agreement requires the senior debt coverage to be 1.2 times maximum annual
debt service and total debt service coverage of 1.0 times maximum annual debt service, both on a Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles basis. The Amended and Subordinate Trust agreement was amended in 2016
to account for future Consent Decree expenses related to Locality wet weather improvements that HRSD will not
own. In the Amended Trust, Operating Expenses were redefined as shown below for the purposes of calculating an
“Adjusted” debt service coverage on a cash basis:

“Operating Expenses” as defined by the Enabling Act and as used in the Senior Trust Agreement, operating
expenses includes the cost of maintaining, repairing and operating such system or systems or sewer improvements
and to provide such reserves therefore as may be provided in the resolution providing for the issuance or such
revenue bonds or in the trust agreement securing the same. As defined in the Subordinate Trust Agreement,
Operating Expenses includes those expenses required to pay the cost of maintaining, repairing and operating the
Wastewater System, including, but not limited to, reasonable and necessary usual expenses of administration,
operation, maintenance and repair, costs for billing and collecting the rates, fees and other charges for the use
of or the services furnished by the Wastewater System, insurance premiums, credit enhancement and liquidity
support fees, legal, engineering, auditing and financial advisory expenses, expenses and compensation of the
Trustee, and deposits into a self-insurance program. Operating Expenses shall exclude allowance for depreciation
and amortization and expenditures for extraordinary maintenance or repair or improvements. Operating Expenses
shall also exclude expenses for improvements that will not be owned by HRSD but which will, in the reasonable
determination of the Commission, as evidenced by a resolution thereof, maintain or improve the integrity of the
Wastewater System.

The Amended and Subordinate Trust agreement requires total debt service coverage to be 1.2 times current year
debt service on an Adjusted basis. HRSD’s Financial Policy and operating and capital improvement plans were
developed with the intent to maintain coverage ratios in excess of these requirements. HRSD’s Financial Policy
requires senior debt service coverage to be 1.5 times and total debt service coverage to be 1.4 times.
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Senior Debt Service Coverage Total Debt Service Coverage
GAAP Adjusted GAAP Adjusted
1.20x 1.00x
Senior Trust Agreement (MADS) None (MADS) None
1.20x
Amended Subordinate Trust Agreement None None None (Current Year)
1.50x 1.40x
Financial Policy None (Current Year) None (Current Year)

More detailed information regarding HRSD’s capital assets and long-term debt is presented in Notes 5 and 9,
respectively.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND RATES

The five-year rolling average billed consumption continues to remain relatively constant. This may be due to
pandemic related water consumption as the economy reopened with vaccines being administered and working from
home became more common.

HRSD implemented a wastewater treatment rate increase for the 2022 fiscal year. Despite a boost in activity as
COVID-19 infections dropped worldwide, economic growth remained subdued in 2022 and HRSD continued to
reprioritize planned investments, obtained relief from federal and state regulatory schedules, took advantage of
historically low interest rates and judiciously used reserves previously set aside for unexpected needs. HRSD wiill
continue to monitor the COVID-19 impact on our ratepayers and make further adjustments to investment plans
should the economic conditions warrant.

CONTACTING HRSD’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of HRSD’s finances for all those with an interest.
Questions concerning the information provided in this report or any requests for additional information should be
addressed to the Director of Finance, 1434 Air Rail Avenue, Virginia Beach, Virginia 23455.
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
(in thousands)

2022 2021
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 163,051 $ 125,838
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 33,134 30,455
Accounts receivable, net 59,493 57,130
Other current assets 2,860 4,619
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 258,538 218,042
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 62,932 65,054
Inventory 25,297 25,032
Net OPEB asset - 3,013
88,229 93,099
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land 56,170 43,658
Treatment plants 1,464,740 1,460,238
Interceptor systems 754,692 725,600
Buildings 67,266 48,236
Small community facilities 25,936 25,625
Office equipment 45,353 45,049
Automotive 18,801 19,933
Other equipment 75,004 48,899
Software and intangible assets 40,074 40,074
2,548,036 2,457,312
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,188,514 1,135,617
1,359,522 1,321,695
Construction in progress 355,586 283,146
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1,715,108 1,604,841
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 1,803,337 1,697,940
TOTALASSETS 2,061,875 1,915,982
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on debt refunding, net 19,513 21,717
Differences between expected and actual experience:
OPEB plans 6,518 5,129
Pension plan 261 525
Changes of assumptions:
OPEB plans 208 251
Pension plan 7,406 4,149
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on:
OPEB plans investments 4,778 160
Pension plan investments - 6,456
Change in proportion, OPEB plans 75 30
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date:
OPEB plans 411 407
Pension plan 3,441 3,453
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 42,611 42,277
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 2,104,486 $ 1,958,259

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
(in thousands)
2022 2021
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and contracts payable $ 53,237 $ 57,054
Contract retention 5,859 8,778
Accrued salaries and wages 3,536 3,395
Current portion of bonds payable 42,609 38,419
Variable rate demand bonds 50,000 50,000
Notes payable 33,721 15,299
Current portion of compensated absences 6,495 5,765
Debt interest payable 8,602 8,532
Other liabilities 7,611 7,920
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 211,670 195,162
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Compensated absences 1,723 3,139
Net OPEB liability 16,523 5,629
Net pension liability 2,163 39,116
Bonds payable 775,863 746,587
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 796,272 794,371
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,007,942 989,533
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Differences between expected and actual experience:
OPEB plans 4,739 5,541
Pension plan 761 1,226
Changes of assumptions:
OPEB plans 1,663 1,574
Pension plan - 526
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on:
OPEB plans investments 843 8,984
Pension plan investments 29,013 -
Change in proportion, OPEB plans 41 51
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 37,060 17,902
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 832,427 776,253
Restricted for debt service 33,134 30,455
Unrestricted 193,923 144,116
TOTAL NET POSITION 1,059,484 950,824

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

$ 2,104,486 $ 1,958,259

21



HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 and 2021

(in thousands)

2022 2021
OPERATING REVENUES
Wastewater treatment charges $ 352,414 $ 325,817
Miscellaneous 5,532 3,952
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 357,946 329,769
OPERATING EXPENSES
Wastewater treatment 134,135 132,820
General and administrative 45,673 48,691
Depreciation and amortization 54,357 53,278
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 234,165 234,789
OPERATING INCOME 123,781 94,980
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Wastewater facility charges 7,072 7,379
Investment income (1,651) 471
Bond interest subsidy 2,052 2,167
Bond issuance costs (311) (682)
Capital distributions to localities (13) (376)
Interest expense (25,007) (25,339)
NET NON-OPERATING EXPENSES (17,858) (16,380)
INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 105,923 78,600
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
State capital grants received 200 -
Other capital contributions 2,537 2,317
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 2,737 2,317
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 108,660 80,917
TOTAL NET POSITION - Beginning 950,824 869,907
TOTAL NET POSITION - Ending $ 1,059,484 $ 950,824

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 and 2021

(in thousands)

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers $ 337,432 $ 302,160

Cash received from CARES and ARPA 11,409 4,163

Other operating revenues 5,532 3,952

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (120,651) (119,627)

Cash payments to employees for services (61,703) (59,675)

Net cash provided by operating activities 172,019 130,973

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital distributions to localities (13) (376)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Wastewater facility charges 7,072 7,379

Acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment (173,292) (180,623)

Proceeds from capital debt 90,377 60,751

Bond interest subsidy 2,052 2,167

Principal paid on capital debt (35,228) (42,206)

Other capital contributions 2,737 2,317

Bond issuance costs (311) (682)

Fees paid on interim financing (202) (82)

Interest paid on capital debt (25,790) (27,007)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (132,585) (177,986)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest and dividends on investments (1,651) 471
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - RESTRICTED 37,770 (46,918)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS - RESTRICTED, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 221,347 268,265
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS - RESTRICTED, AT END OF YEAR $ 259,117 % 221,347

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
(in thousands)

Operating income $ 123,781 $ 94,980
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 54,357 53,278
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable (2,363) (17,952)
Inventory (265) 1,825
Other current assets 1,759 (1,686)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade and contracts payable 1,930 1,212
Accrued salaries and wages 141 241
Compensated absences (686) 334
Other liabilities (309) (657)
OPEB liabilities and related deferred inflows and outflows (870) (3,240)
Pension liabilities and related deferred inflows and outflows (5,456) 2,638
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 172,019 $ 130,973
Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Accrual for capital expenditures $ (5,749) $ 18,388
Amortization of premium (3,261) (3,719)
Amortization of deferred loss on bond refunding (2,204) (2,312)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 and 2021

(in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments at fair value
Domestic equity
International equity
Fixed income
Other income
Real return

Total investments
TOTAL ASSETS
NET POSITION
Restricted for:
Postretirement benefits other than pensions

CARES ACT payments for utility customers

TOTAL NET POSITION

Retiree Health (OPEB) Trust Fund Coronavirus Relief Custodial Fund
2022 2021 2022 2021
$ 4,189 § 98 $ - 8 1,542
21,186 29,467 - -
9,179 15,208 - -
19,965 22,058 - -
3,985 2,632 - -
3,633 2,203 - -
57,948 71,568 - -
$ 62,137 $ 71,666 $ - 8 1,542
62,137 71,666 - -
- - - 1,542
$ 62,137 $ 71,666 $ - 8 1,542

Note: American Rescue Plan Funds were received and distributed during the 2022 fiscal year. Therefore, there is no balance to record at

June 30, 2022.

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL REQUIRED STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 and 2021
(in thousands)
American
Rescue Plan
Retiree Health (OPEB) Trust Fund Coronavirus Relief Custodial Fund Fund *
2022 2021 2022 2022
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employers $ 2260 $ 1,963 - $ - 3 -
CARES Act - - 51 9,053 -
ARPA - - - - 10,678
Total contributions 2,260 1,963 51 9,053 10,678
Net investment earnings (9,730) 14,354 - - -
Total additions (7,470) 16,317 51 9,053 10,678
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefit payments for participants 1,902 1,425 - - -
Investment related expenses 157 138
Payments for customers - - 1,593 7,511 10,678
Total deductions 2,059 1,563 1,593 7,511 10,678
Net increase in fiduciary net position (9,529) 14,754 (1,542) 1,542 -
Net position - beginning 71,666 56,912 1,542 - -
NET POSITION - ENDING $ 62,137 $ 71,666 - $ 1,542 $ -

* American Rescue Plan Funds were received and distributed during the 2022 fiscal year.

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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25



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION
Organization and Administration

The Hampton Roads Sanitation District (HRSD) was created by the Virginia General Assembly in 1940, as a political
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the Commonwealth), to construct, maintain, and operate a wastewater
treatment system in the Hampton Roads area. The Hampton Roads Sanitation District Commission (the Commission)
is HRSD’s governing body and consists of eight members, appointed by the Governor. The Commission’s functions
were updated by Chapter 66 of the Acts of the Assembly of Virginia of 1960, as amended. The administration of
HRSD is under the direction of a General Manager, supported by eight department directors.

Regulatory Oversight

HRSD'’s operations are subject to regulations established by the United States Environmental Protection Agency and
the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. HRSD currently meets all of its permit requirements. Changes in
these regulations could require HRSD to modify its treatment processes and require additional capital investment
and/ or incur additional costs.

Purpose of HRSD

HRSD was created for the specific purpose of abating pollution in the Hampton Roads area through the interception
of wastewater outfalls, installation of interception service into new areas as necessary and providing treatment
facilities. HRSD provides points of interception throughout the region. The responsibility of providing lateral sewers
and subtrunk facilities to carry sewage from industries, residences and businesses is generally the responsibility of
the local municipal governments.

Corporate Limits of HRSD
The geographical limits of HRSD include:

City of Chesapeake City of Virginia Beach King William County

City of Hampton City of Williamsburg Mathews County

City of Newport News Accomack County Middlesex County

City of Norfolk Gloucester County Northampton County

City of Poquoson Isle of Wight County Surry County*

City of Portsmouth James City County York County

City of Suffolk King and Queen County *Excluding the Town of Claremont

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

HRSD is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth and a government instrumentality. The Commission is granted
corporate powers by the Code of Virginia. The Governor of the Commonwealth appoints the Commission members,
who serve at his pleasure. HRSD is reported in the Commonwealth’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report as
a discretely presented component unit. The Commonwealth is not obligated to repay HRSD’s debt. HRSD derives
its revenues primarily from charges for wastewater treatment services. HRSD has no taxing authority. The Retiree
Health Plan, as further described under Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions in this note and in Note 7,
meets the requirements of GASB 84 for inclusion in the fiduciary fund financial statements and, since HRSD has
assumed responsibility to make contributions to the plan, it also meets the requirements of a fiduciary component unit.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements report the financial position and results of operations of HRSD in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Because HRSD is a



FINANCIAL

SECTION

political subdivision of the Commonwealth, the preparation of HRSD’s financial statements are governed by the
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). These statements are prepared on
an enterprise fund basis and present HRSD’s operating revenues and expenses in a manner similar to a private
business, where the costs, including depreciation, of providing services to the general public on a continuing basis
are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

An enterprise fund, a proprietary fund type, is accounted for on an economic resources measurement focus. All
assets and liabilities, whether current or noncurrent, associated with its activities are included on its Statements of
Net Position. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses)
in fund equity. The financial statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Budgetary Accounting and Control

HRSD operates in accordance with annual operating and capital budgets prepared on a basis of accounting that
is different from generally accepted accounting principles. The operating budget is adopted by department, with
budgetary controls exercised administratively by management at the department level. The General Manager is
authorized to transfer funds among departments without further approval by the Commission. The Capital Budget
represents a ten-year plan. Funds for the Capital Budget are appropriated throughout a fiscal year on a project basis.
Transfers among projects require approval by the Commission. Appropriations for these budgets continue until the
purpose of the appropriation has been fulfilled.

Fiduciary Activities

HRSD adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The
accompanying financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 include information on the
Retiree Health Plan, one of HRSD’s three postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment
benefits, or OPEB) plans, information on funds held by HRSD to apply toward customer accounts under the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Securities Act, and information on funds held by HRSD to apply toward
customer accounts under the American Recovery Plan Act. The Retire Health plan is discussed in Note 7, and the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Securities Act and the American Recovery Plan Act are discussed in Note 14.

Cash Equivalents

All short-term investments that are highly liquid are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily
convertible to cash, and at the day of purchase, have an original maturity date of no longer than three months.
Current restricted cash and cash equivalents are for debt service payments payable within the next year. Money
market investments include the VACo/VML Virginia Investment Pool’s (VIP) 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund and
Stable NAV Liquidity Pool, which are recorded at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. See Note 3 and
Note 13 for additional discussion of cash and cash equivalent and investment valuations.

Investments

Investments, which consist of U.S. government obligations including agencies, FDIC-guaranteed corporate notes,
other corporate notes and bonds, and municipal bonds, are reported at fair value. HRSD’s investment practices are
governed by its formal investment policy. The HRSD Retiree Health Plan (RHP) investments consist of domestic
equity, international equity, fixed income, other income, real return funds and money market instruments. See Notes
3 and 7 for additional information on RHP investments.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

HRSD provides an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts receivable based on its bad debt experience. The
balance in the allowance for uncollectible accounts is considered by management to be sufficient to cover anticipated
losses on reported receivable balances.

Inventory
Inventory is carried at the lower of cost or market value and consists primarily of operating and maintenance materials.

Property, Plant and Equipment

HRSD funds its capital improvement program through the issuance of debt and its own resources. The proceeds of
debt are reported as restricted assets. Generally, for projects funded with both debt proceeds and other resources,
it is HRSD'’s policy to use available debt proceeds to pay project expenditures prior to using its own resources.
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Property, plant and equipment purchased or constructed are reported at cost, including interest cost on funds
borrowed to finance the construction of major capital additions. The capitalization threshold is $5,000. Donated assets
are reported at acquisition value at the date of donation. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Treatment plants, buildings and facilities 30 years
Interceptor systems 50 years
Office furniture and equipment 5-10 years
Software and intangible assets 5-7 years
Automotive 5 years

Depreciation and amortization recognized on property, plant and equipment is an operating expense.
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statements of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position
that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses) until then. HRSD
has ten items that qualify for reporting in this category. The first is the deferred loss on refunding reported in the
Statements of Net Position. A deferred loss on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded
debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded
or refunding debt. The second through eighth amounts are: differences between expected and actual experience
for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) and pension plans; the changes of OPEB and pension assumptions;
the net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB and pension plan investments; and change in
proportion for OPEB plans. These differences will be recognized in pension expense in future reporting periods. The
ninth and tenth deferred charges are for OPEB and pension contributions to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
made subsequent to the measurement dates of June 30 2021 and 2020. These contributions will be recognized as
reductions of the Net OPEB and Net Pension Liabilities during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

In addition to liabilities, the Statements of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. HRSD
has seven items that qualify for reporting in this category: the differences between expected and actual experience
for OPEB and pension plans; the changes of OPEB and pension assumptions; the net difference between projected
and actual earnings on OPEB and pension plan investments; and change in proportion for OPEB plans. These items
will be recognized in pension expense in future reporting periods.

Revenue Recognition

Generally, wastewater treatment charges are computed based on a user’s water consumption. These charges are
recognized as revenue when billed. Revenues earned but unbilled through June 30 of each fiscal year are accrued
at year-end. Wastewater facility charges are computed based on a new connection’s water meter size and potential
for high strength pollutant discharges, and are recognized as revenue prior to the issuance of a building or operating
permit.

Operating and Non-operating Revenues and Expenses Recognition

HRSD distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with HRSD’s principal service
of providing wastewater treatment. The majority of operating revenues are from wastewater treatment, but other
associated miscellaneous income from other related services and charges are also included. Revenues and
expenses not meeting the operating definition are reported as non-operating. These consist mainly of wastewater
facility charges, investment income, capital contributions and interest expense.

Compensated Absences

All permanent employees earn leave upon starting a full-time position. The amount and type of leave earned is based
upon the employee’s date of hire and years of service and is expensed as employees earn the right to these benefits.
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Permanent employees hired prior to January 1, 2014 earn from 15 to 27 days of annual leave per year. The maximum
annual leave an employee may accumulate at year-end varies by the years of service, with the maximum being 54
days. An employee has a vested right to their annual leave when earned. These employees also earn eight hours per
month of sick leave regardless of the number of years of service. The amount of sick leave that may be accumulated
is unlimited. After five years of service with HRSD, an employee has vested rights to 35 percent of accumulated sick
leave to a maximum of $10,000. For these employees, long-term disability (LTD) insurance is an optional employee
paid benefit that replaces part of their income if the employee suffers a serious illness or injury and can’t work for
an extended period of time.

Permanent employees hired after January 1, 2014 earn 8 hours of paid time off for each two-week pay period.
Employees may use accumulated paid time off for any type of absence from work, subject to supervisor approval.
The maximum paid time off an employee may accumulate at year-end is 208 hours. After five years of service with
HRSD, an employee has vested rights to 50 percent of their accumulated paid time off at separation. For these
employees, HRSD also provides a state mandated long-term disability (LTD) benefit since these employees are not
eligible for disability retirement benefits through VRS. The long-term disability benefit provides income replacement
for employees who become disabled and unable to work for an extended period of time due to a non-work-related or
work-related condition (as determined under the Virginia Workers’ Compensation Act). Long-term disability benefits
begin at the expiration of an additional state mandated employer paid short-term disability (STD) benefit period of
125 days.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

HRSD employees participate in three postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits
or OPEB) plans:

The HRSD RHP is a single employer, defined benefit plan that provides health and dental benefit plans for eligible
members through a self-funded plan administered by a third-party vendor. HRSD administers the Plan through the
Hampton Roads Sanitation District Retiree Health Trust. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the RHP and additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the RHP. For this purpose, the RHP recognizes benefit
payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

The VRS Political Subdivision Health Insurance Credit Program (HIC) is a multiple-employer, agent-defined benefit
plan that provides a credit toward the cost of health insurance coverage for retired political subdivision employees
of participating employers. The Political Subdivision HIC Program was established pursuant to §51.1-1400 et seq.
of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established
or may be amended. For purposes of measuring the net HIC OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to the HIC OPEB, and the HIC OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the VRS HIC, and the additions to/deductions from the VRS HIC’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they were reported by VRS. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

The VRS Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program is a multiple employer, cost sharing plan, that provides coverage to
state employees, teachers, and employees of participating political subdivisions. The GLI Program was established
pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which
benefit terms are established or may be amended. The GLI Program is a defined benefit plan that provides a basic
group life insurance benefit for employees of participating employers. For purposes of measuring the net GLI Program
OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI Program OPEB,
and GLI Program OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the VRS GLI Program OPEB and
the additions to/deductions from the VRS GLI Program OPEB’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they were reported by VRS. In addition, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Pensions

HRSD employees participate in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the VRS,
which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for political subdivisions in the Commonwealth. For
purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of HRSD’s Retirement Plan
and the additions to or deductions from HRSD’s Retirement Plan’s net fiduciary position have been determined on
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the same basis as they were reported to HRSD by VRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from management’s estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In June 2017 the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, effective
July 1, 2022. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users
by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases; enhancing the comparability of financial statements
between governments; and also enhancing the relevance, reliability (representational faithfulness), and consistency
of information about the leasing activities of governments. This Statement establishes standards of accounting and
financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors. The requirements of this Statement apply to financial statements
of all state and local governments. Consistent with previous Statements, the GASB notes that the provisions of the
Statement need not be applied to immaterial items. Upon review, HRSD concluded that leases are immaterial to
HRSD'’s operations and do not warrant disclosure in FY2022.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits and investments

Custodial Credit Risk. This risk is associated with the inability of a governmental entity to recover deposits from a
financial institution in the event of a failure. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the carrying values of HRSD’s deposits
were $51,917,000 and $47,403,000. All of the bank balances at June 30, 2022 were covered by federal depository
insurance or collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the Act). In accordance
with the Act, the depository institution pledged collateral in the form of federal obligations with a fair value equal to
110 percent of HRSD’s deposits with a third party trustee in the name of the Treasurer of the Commonwealth. In the
event that the banking institution fails, the Treasurer will take possession of the collateral, liquidate it and reimburse
HRSD up to the value of its deposits. The State Treasury Board is responsible for monitoring compliance with the
collateralization and reporting requirements of the Act and for notifying local governments of compliance by banks.

Credit Risk. HRSD invests in VACo/VML Virginia Investment Pool’s (VIP) 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund and
Stable NAV Liquidity Pool. Oversight is provided by the VACo/VML Board of Trustees. HRSD’s investments in
the VIP 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund and the VIP Stable NAV Liquidity Pool were rated AA+f/S1 and AAAm,
respectively, by Standard & Poor’s.

The components of cash and cash equivalents at June 30 are as follows:

(in thousands) 2022 2021
Current cash and cash equivalents
Cash deposits - unrestricted $ 51,917 $ 47,403
VIP Stable NAV Liquidity - unrestricted 111,134 78,435
Total cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 163,051 125,838
VIP Stable NAV Liquidity - restricted 33,134 30,455
Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents
VIP 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund - unrestricted 62,932 65,054
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 259,117 $ 221,347

Total VIP Stable NAV Liquidity $ 144,268 $ 108,890
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HRSD OPEB Trust Investments

The HRSD OPEB Trust has investments in mutual funds, cash, and cash equivalents on deposit with its trustee,
US Bank. Investments are reported at fair value. HRSD’s OPEB investment practices are governed by its formal
investment policy.

The plan had the following investments and maturities at June 30:

(in thousands) 2022 2021
Domestic equity $ 21,186 $ 29,467
International equity 9,179 15,208
Fixed income 19,965 22,058
Other income 3,985 2,632
Real Return 3,633 2,203
Money market 4,189 98
Total investments, cash and cash equivalents  $ 62,137 $ 71,666

Fixed income investments have an average maturity of 7.74 years and an average credit quality of A. Other
investments do not have a stated maturity or credit rating.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, HRSD will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. HRSD’s policy is to utilize its Trustee, U.S. Bank Trust Department, for its OPEB
investments as recipient of all investment transactions on a delivery versus pay basis. The Trustees may not
be a counterparty to the investment transaction. At June 30, 2022, the Trust Department of the U.S. Bank held
$61,844,000 in investments in the Trustee’s name for HRSD. The difference between reported and U.S. Bank Trust
valuation is the value of the Boyd Watterson security. U.S. Bank Trust value is lagging as they update those funds
when they receive notice.

NOTE 4 - ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS

An analysis of the allowance for uncollectible accounts for the years ended June 30:

(in thousands) 2022 2021

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,684 $ 2,822
Add: Current provision for uncollectible accounts 1,210 2,033
Less: Charge-off of uncollectible accounts (1,487) (2,171)
Balance, end of year $ 2,407 % 2,684

HRSD'’s collection ratios for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were 99.6% and 99.3%, respectively.
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NOTE 5 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

Analysis of property, plant and equipment activity for years ended June 30:

(in thousands) Balance Transfers/ Balance Transfers/ Balance
2020 Additions Retirements 2021 Additions Retirements 2022
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land $ 12,229 $ 31,429 $ - % 43,658 $ 12,512 § - 3 56,170
Construction in progress 290,585 198,597 (206,036) 283,146 162,594 (90,154) 355,586
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Treatment plants 1,384,293 75,945 - 1,460,238 4,502 - 1,464,740
Interceptor systems 638,150 87,450 - 725,600 29,092 - 754,692
Buildings 48,081 155 - 48,236 19,030 - 67,266
Small community facilities 25,625 - - 25,625 311 - 25,936
Office equipment 44,613 436 - 45,049 304 - 45,353
Automotive 19,127 806 - 19,933 328 (1,460) 18,801
Other equipment 37,517 11,382 - 48,899 26,105 - 75,004
Software and intangible assets 40,074 - - 40,074 - - 40,074
Total $ 2,540,294 $ 406,200 $ (206,036) $ 2,740,458 $ 254,778 $ (91,614) $ 2,903,622
Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization:
Treatment plants $ (729,484) $§ (34,578) § - § (764,062) $  (34,463) $ - $ (798,525)
Interceptor systems (190,778) (12,422) - (203,200) (14,061) - (217,261)
Buildings (20,776) (1,439) - (22,215) (1,498) - (23,713)
Small community facilities (8,953) (549) - (9,502) (552) - (10,054)
Office equipment (43,859) (402) - (44,261) (305) - (44,566)
Automotive (17,411) (807) - (18,218) (675) 1,460 (17,433)
Other equipment (33,208) (1,692) - (34,900) (1,988) - (36,888)
Software and intangible assets
-amortization (37,870) (1,389) - (39,259) (815) - (40,074)
Total (1,082,339) (53,278) - (1,135,617) (54,357) 1,460 (1,188,514)
Net Property, Plant and
Equipment $ 1,457,955 $ 352,922 $ (206,036) $ 1,604,841 $ 200,421 $ (90,154) $ 1,715,108

NOTE 6 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Analysis of liability for vested annual, sick, paid time off and compensatory leave for years ended June 30:

(in thousands)

Annual leave

Sick leave

Paid time off

Total

Less: Current liability
Long-term liability

Balance Balance Balance
2020 Earned Taken 2021 Earned Taken 2022

$ 5,265 $ 3,118 $ (2,720) $ 5,663 $ 2,645 $ (3,011) $ 5,297

3,043 1,396 (1,575) 2,864 1,263 (1,658) 2,469

262 1,585 (1,470) 377 1,901 (1,826) 452

8,570 $ 6,099 $ (5,765) 8,904 $ 5,809 $ (6,495) 8,218

6,160 5,765 6,495

$ 2,410 $ 3,139 $ 1,723

NOTE 7 — POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

Plan Description

As discussed in Note 2, HRSD provides OPEB for its employees through three plans: the Hampton Roads Sanitation
District RHP, a single employer defined benefit plan, and two plans administered by VRS, the GLI, a multiple employer
cost-sharing plan, and the HIC, a multiple-employer, agent defined benefit plan.

RHP

The RHP was established and may be amended by the Commission. HRSD administers the RHP through the
Hampton Roads Sanitation District Retiree Health Trust (the Trust), an irrevocable trust to be used solely for providing
benefits to eligible retired employees and their beneficiaries (members) in the RHP. HRSD’s contributions to the Trust
are dedicated irrevocably to providing post-retirement health benefits, the RHP assets are exclusively dedicated to
providing benefits to members, and the RHP assets of the Trust are not subject to the claims of HRSD creditors or
the Plan administrator. Employer contributions are recorded in the year they are made. Investments are reported at
market value based on published prices and quotations. The RHP does not issue stand-alone financial statements.
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Eligible Employees

HRSD employees are eligible for benefits upon retirement provided the employee has 15 years of service with HRSD
or 10 years of service with HRSD plus 10 years of service with another VRS employer with a retiree health plan; are
qualified for unreduced retirement benefits from VRS; and are enrolled in the HRSD Health Insurance Plan prior to
retirement. Participating beneficiaries may continue coverage under the plan after the death of the retiree. Medicare
eligible participants are required to enroll in both Medicare Part A and Part B, and may participate in a Medicare
supplement plan. Members not eligible for Medicare may participate in a high deductible health plan.

Benefits provided

The RHP health plan provides medical and prescription services using both in network and out of network providers
through a self-funded plan administered by a third-party vendor. Members may elect to purchase dental and vision benefit
plans at their own expense.

GLI

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of participating political subdivisions are automatically covered by the
VRS GLI upon employment. This plan is administered by the VRS, along with pensions and other OBEB plans, for
public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

In addition to the Basic GLI benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for themselves as well as
a spouse or dependent children through the Optional GLI Program. For members who elect the optional group life
insurance coverage, the insurer bills employers directly for the premiums. Employers deduct these premiums from
members’ paychecks and pay the premiums to the insurer. Since this is a separate and fully insured program, it is
not included as part of the GLI OPEB.

The specific information for GLI Program OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and benefits follows:
Eligible Employees

The GLI Program was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers and employees of political subdivisions
that elect the program. Basic group life insurance coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends for
employees who leave their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their member contributions
and accrued interest.

Benefit Amounts
The benefits payable under the GLI Program have several components.

m Natural Death Benefit — The natural death benefit is equal to the employee’s covered compensation rounded
to the next highest thousand and then doubled.

m Accidental Death Benefit — The accidental death benefit is double the natural death benefit.

m Other Benefit Provisions — In addition to the basic natural and accidental death benefits, the program provides
additional benefits provided under specific circumstances. These include:

e Accidental dismemberment benefit

e Seatbelt benefit

e Repatriation benefit

e Felonious assault benefit

e Accelerated death benefit option
Reduction in Benefit Amounts

The benefit amounts provided to members covered under the GLI Program are subject to a reduction factor. The
benefit amount reduces by 25% on January 1 following one calendar year of separation. The benefit amount reduces
by an additional 25% on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value.

Minimum Benefit Amount and Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)

For covered members with at least 30 years of creditable service, there is a minimum benefit payable under the
GLI Program. The minimum benefit was set at $8,000 by statute in 2015. This will be increased annually based on
the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment calculation. The minimum benefit adjusted for the COLA was $8,722 as
of June 30, 2022.
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HIC

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of participating political subdivisions are automatically covered by the
VRS Political Subdivision HIC Program upon employment. This plan is administered by the VRS, along with pension
and other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one month of
service credit toward the benefit for each month they are employed and for which their employer pays contributions
to VRS. The health insurance credit is a tax-free reimbursement in an amount set by the General Assembly for each
year of service credit against qualified health insurance premiums retirees pay for single coverage, excluding any
portion covering the spouse or dependents. The credit cannot exceed the amount of the premiums and ends upon
the retiree’s death.

The specific information about the Political Subdivision HIC Program OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and
benefits follows:

Eligible Employees

The Political Subdivision Retiree HIC Program was established July 1, 1993 for retired political subdivision employees
of employers who elect the benefit and who retire with at least 15 years of service credit. Eligible employees of
participating political subdivisions are enrolled automatically upon employment. They include full-time permanent
salaried employees of the participating political subdivision who are covered under the VRS pension plan.

Benefit Amounts
The political subdivision’s Retiree HIC Program provides the following benefits for eligible employees:

m At Retirement — For employees who retire, the monthly benefit is $1.50 per year of service per month with a
maximum benefit of $45.00 per month.

m Disability Retirement — For employees who retire on disability or go on long-term disability under the Virginia
Local Disability Program (VLDP), the monthly benefit is $45.00 per month.

HIC Program Notes:
m  The monthly HIC benefit cannot exceed the individual premium amount.

m No HIC for premiums paid and qualified under the VRS Line of Duty Act Program (LODA), however, the
employee may receive the credit for premiums paid for other qualified health plans.

m Employees who retire after being on long-term disability under VLDP must have at least 15 year of service
credit to qualify for the HIC as a retiree.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

As of the June 30, 2021 and 2020 actuarial valuation dates the following employees were covered by the benefit
terms of the RHP:

2021 2020
Beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 149 160
Active employees 743 732
Total 892 892

There are no inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving plan benefits.

As of the June 30, 2020 and 2019 actuarial valuation dates the following employees were covered by the benefit
terms of the HIC:

2020 2019
Inactive members or their beneficiaries currently receiving benefit
payments 261 249
Active employees 806 809

Total 1,067 1,058
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Contributions

RHP contribution requirements are actuarially determined. Funding is subject to approval by the Commission.
Medicare-eligible members contribute $45 per month for retiree-only coverage and from $442 to $460 per month
for retiree and dependent coverage. Members not eligible for Medicare contribute $120 per month for retiree-only
coverage and from $517 to $535 per month for retiree and dependent coverage. HRSD funds the cost of coverage
under the RHP by paying the difference between the contributions it requires retirees to make and the actuarially
determined contribution (ADC). The current employer contribution rate is approximately 5 percent of annual covered
payroll. HRSD contributed $2,260,000 and $1,963,000 to the RHP for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

The GLI contribution requirements for the GLI Program are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code of
Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and school divisions by
the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the GLI Program was 1.34% of covered employee compensation.
This was allocated into an employee and an employer component using a 60/40 split. The employee component
was 0.80% (1.34% X 60%) and the employer component was 0.54% (1.34% X 40%). Employers may elect to pay
all or part of the employee contribution, however the employer must pay all of the employer contribution. Each
employer’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2022, was 0.54% of
covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2019. The actuarially determined rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected
to finance the costs of benefits payable during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. Contributions from HRSD to the GLI Program were $296,000 and $293,000 for the years ended June 30,
2022 and June 30, 2021, respectively.

The HIC contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-1402(E) of the Code of Virginia, as
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the Virginia General
Assembly. HRSD’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2022, was [Insert
contributed rate]% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The actuarially determined rate was expected to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
Contributions from HRSD to the Political Subdivision HIC Program were $115,000 and $114,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2022, and June 30, 2021, respectively.

RHP OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to RHP OPEB

HRSD recognized RHP OPEB expense of $1,569,000 and gain of $1,160,000 for the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021, respectively. HRSD reported deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of
(in thousands) Resources Resources
Year ended June 30, 2022:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 6,129 $ 4,716
Changes in assumptions - 1,239
Net diff between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 4,778 -
Total $ 10,907 $ 5,955
Year ended June 30, 2021:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 4,806 $ 5,502
Changes in assumptions - 1,475
Net diff between projected and actual earnings on plan investments - 8,984

Total $ 4806 $ 15,961
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HRSD’s measurement date is its fiscal year end so there are no deferred outflows of resources resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows:

(in thousands)

Years Ended June 30, 2022 2021

2022 $ - 8 (2,734)

2023 566 (2,561)

2024 606 (2,522)

2025 641 (2,486)

2026 2,798 (330)

2027 (42) -
Thereafter 383 (522)

$ 4952 § (11,155)

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to the Group Life Insurance Program OPEB

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, HRSD reported liabilities of $3,058,000 and $4,307,000, respectively, for its proportionate
share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2021 and June 30,
2020 and the total GLI OPEB liabilities used to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability were determined by actuarial
valuations as of those dates. The covered employer’s proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on HRSD’s
actuarially determined employer contributions to the Group Life Insurance Program for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020 relative to the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating employers.
At June 30, 2021 and 2020, HRSD'’s proportion was 0.26262% and 0.25814%, respectively. For the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021, HRSD recognized GLI OPEB expenses of $135,000 and $169,000, respectively. Since
there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB expense was
related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion.

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, HRSD reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to the GLI OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of
(in thousands) Resources Resources
Year ended June 30, 2022:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 349 $ 23
Net diff bet projected and actual earnings on program investments - 730
Change in assumptions 168 418
Changes in proportion 75 41
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 296 -
Total $ 888 § 1,212
Year ended June 30, 2021:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 276 $ 39
Net diff bet projected and actual earnings on program investments 129 -
Change in assumptions 216 90
Changes in proportion 30 51
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 293 -
Total $ 944  § 180
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HRSD reported $296,000 and $293,000 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, as deferred outflows of
resources related to the GLI OPEB resulting from the HRSD’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date
which will be recognized as a reduction of the Net GLI OPEB Liability in the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to the GLI OPEB will be recognized in the GLI OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows:

(in thousands)

Years ended June 30, 2022

2022 $ - 70
2023 (141) 106
2024 (109) 137
2025 (113) 133
2026 (223) 25
2027 (34) -

$ (620) 471

HIC OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to HIC OPEB

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, HRSD recognized HIC Program OPEB expense of $95,000 and
$122,000, respectively. HRSD reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related

to the Political Subdivision HIC Program from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of
(in thousands) Resources Resources
Year ended June 30, 2022:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 40 -
Net diff bet projected and actual earnings on program investments - 113
Change in assumptions 40 6
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 115 -
Total $ 195 119
Year ended June 30, 2021:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 47 -
Net diff bet projected and actual earnings on program investments 31 -
Change in assumptions 35 9
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 114 -
Total $ 227 9
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HRSD reported $115,000 for FY 2022 and $114,000 for FY 2021 as deferred outflows of resources related to the
HIC OPEB resulting from HRSD'’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date which will be recognized as
a reduction of the Net HIC OPEB Liability in the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the HIC OPEB
will be recognized in the HIC OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows:

(in thousands)

Years ended June 30, 2022 2021

2022 $ -3 17

2023 (8) 24

2024 (6) 26

2025 (7) 25

2026 (22) 10

2027 4 -
Thereafter - 2

$ 39) $ 104

Combined OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
RHP, GLI| and HIC OPEB

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, HRSD reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to the RHP, GLI and HIC OPEB plans from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of
(in thousands) Resources Resources
Year ended June 30, 2022:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 6,518 $ 4,739
Net diff bet projected and actual earnings on program investments 4,778 843
Changes in proportion 75 41
Change in assumptions 208 1,663
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 411 -
Total $ 11,990 § 7,286
Year ended June 30, 2021:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 5129 $ 5,541
Net diff bet projected and actual earnings on program investments 160 8,984
Change in assumptions 30 51
Changes in proportion 251 1,574
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 407 -
Total $ 5977 $ 16,150
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HRSD reported $411,000 for FY 2022 and $407,000 for FY 2021 as deferred outflows of resources related to the
OPEB plans resulting from HRSD’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date which will be recognized
as a reduction of the net OPEB Liability in the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB plans

will be recognized in HRSD’s OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows:

(in thousands)

Years ended June 30, 2022 2021

2022 $ -3 (2,647)

2023 417 (2,431)

2024 491 (2,359)

2025 521 (2,328)

2026 2,553 (295)

2027 (72) -
Thereafter 383 (520)

$ 4293 $ (10,580)

HRSD reported $411,000 for FY 2022 and $407,000 for FY 2021 as as combined OPEB expenses related to the

RHP, Gl and HIC OPEB plans as follows:

(in thousands)

Years ended June 30, 2022 2021
RHP 1,569 (1,160)
GLI 135 169
HIC 95 122
Total OPEB $ 1,799  § (869)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The total RHP OPEB liabilities were based on actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, using the Entry
Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement

and rolled forward to the measurement dates of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Year Ended June 30, 2022:

Inflation 2.5 percent
Salary increases, including inflation 2.5 percent
Investment rate of return 6.0 percent, net of investment expenses, including inflation

Mortality rates for the RHP are as follows:

Pub-2010 General Retirees Headcount-weighted Mortality Projected with Fully

Healthy Retirees Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale.
Pub-2010 General Disabled Retirees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with
Disabled Retirees Fully Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale.
Pub-20210 General Employees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with Fully
Active Retirees Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale.
Year Ended June 30, 2021:
Inflation 2.5 percent
Salary increases, including inflation 2.5 percent
Investment rate of return 6.0 percent, net of investment expenses, including inflation

Mortality rates for the RHP are as follows:

Pub-2010 General Retirees Headcount-weighted Mortality Projected with Fully

Healthy Retirees Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale.

Pub-2010 General Disabled Retirees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with

Disabled Retirees Fully Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale.

Pub-20210 General Employees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with Fully

Active Retirees Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale.

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021
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The total GLI and HIC OPERB liabilities were based on actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2020, using the Entry Age
Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement
and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021:

Year Ended June 30, 2021:

Inflation 2.5 percent
Salary increases, including inflation 3.5 percent - 5.35 percent
Investment rate of return 6.75 percent, net of investment expenses, including inflation*

Mortality tables and assumptions for GLI and HIC are as follows:

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; 95%of

Pre-Retirement: rates for males; 105% of rates for females set forward 2 years.
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree Rates projectedgenerationally;
Post-Retirement: 110% of rates for males; 105% of rates for females set forward 3years.
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally;95% of
Post-Disablement: rates for males set back 3 years; 90% of rates for females set back 3 years.

Year Ended June 30, 2020:

Inflation 2.5 percent
Salary increases, including inflation * 3.5 percent - 5.35 percent
Investment rate of return 6.75 percent, net of investment expenses, including inflation*

Mortality tables and assumptions for GLI and HIC are as follows:

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates to 81 and older
Pre-Retirement: projected with Scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates.

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older
projected with Scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase

Post-Retirement: compounded from ages 70 to 90.
RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Table projected with scale BB to 2020; males set
Post-Disablement: forward 2 years, 110% of rates; females 125% of rates.

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were found to be
approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment return rate
for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more
conservative 7.0% investment return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit
payments, the long-term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of the
OPERB liabilities.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount rate, which was
based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the
experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

40

Mortality rates Update to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For futuremortality
improvements, replace load with a modified Mortalitylmprovement
Pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy, and disabled Scale MP-2020

Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate rates
based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age

Retirement Rates from 75 to 80 for all

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
Withdrawal Rates servicedecrement through 9 years of service
Disability Rates No change
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change
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The long-term expected rate of return on RHP investments was determined using an economic building block
approach that projects economic and corporate profit growth and takes into consideration the fundamental factors
driving long-term real economic growth, our expectation for inflation, productivity, and labor force growth. The returns
presented here are geometric return projections based on long-term capital market assumptions. The asset target
allocations are governed by its formal investment policy. The best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Asset Class (Strategy)

Domestic Equity

International Developed Equity
International Emerging Markets Equity
Core Fixed

Investment Grade Corporate Debt
Emerging Markets Debt

High Yield

Total

Arithmetic Weighted Average
Long-Term Long-Term
Target Expected Expected
Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return

39.00% 7.60% 2.96%
15.00% 7.30% 1.10%
6.00% 7.70% 0.46%
20.00% 3.90% 0.78%
10.00% 3.90% 0.39%
5.00% 4.90% 0.25%
5.00% 5.00% 0.25%
100.00% 6.19%
Inflation 2.50%
* Expected arithmetic nominal return 8.69%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 8.69%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the volatility present in each
of the asset classes so a rate of 6.0% is used.

Year Ended June 30, 2021

Asset Class (Strategy)

Domestic Equity

International Developed Equity
International Emerging Markets Equity
Core Fixed

Investment Grade Corporate Debt
Emerging Markets Debt

High Yield

Total

Arithmetic Weighted Average
Long-Term Long-Term
Target Expected Expected
Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return

39.00% 7.50% 2.93%
15.00% 7.60% 1.14%
6.00% 7.90% 0.47%
20.00% 3.80% 0.76%
10.00% 4.20% 0.42%
5.00% 6.10% 0.31%
5.00% 6.00% 0.30%
100.00% 6.33%
Inflation 2.50%
* Expected arithmetic nominal return 8.83%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 8.83%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the volatility present in each
of the asset classes so a rate of 6.0% is used.
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The long-term expected rate of return on the GLI and HIC investments was determined using a log-normal distribution
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of GLI and
HIC’s investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Arithmetic Weighted Average
Long-Term Long-Term
Target Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Public Equity 34.00% 5.00% 1.70%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.57% 0.09%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 4.49% 0.63%
Real Assets 14.00% 4.76% 0.67%
Private Equity 14.00% 9.94% 1.39%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.29% 0.20%
PIP-Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.84% 0.21%
Total 100.00% 4.89%
Inflation 2.50%
* Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.39%

*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.39%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the
volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic
projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range
of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 6.94%, including expected inflation
of 2.50%.

Discount Rates

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability for the RHP, as of June 30, 2022, was 6.0%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that HRSD contributions will be made in accordance with
the funding plan established by an independent actuarial review.

The discount rate used to measure the total GLI and HIC OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made per the VRS guidance and
the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate.
Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the rate contributed by the entity for the GLI and HIC OPEB will be
subject to the portion of the VRS Board certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly which was
100% of the actuarially determined contribution rate. From July 1, 2021 on, employers are assumed to continue to
contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the GLI and HIC
OPEDB’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of eligible
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the total GLI and HIC OPEB liability.
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Change in Net OPEB Liability (Asset

HRSD’s net RHP OPEB liability (Asset) was measured as of June 30, 2022 using a June 30, 2021 valuation, which
has been rolled forward to the June 30, 2022 measurement date.

RHP Total RHP Plan Fiduciary Net RHP
OPEB Liability Net Position OPEB Liability (Asset)

(in thousands) (a) (b) (a) - (b)

RHP OPEB Liability Balances at June 30, 2020 $ 62,143 $ 56,912 $ 5,231
Changes for the year - Increase (Decrease):
Service cost 1,333 - 1,333
Interest 3,672 - 3,672
Difference between expected and actual experience 2,930 - 2,930
Contributions - employer - 1,963 (1,963)
Net investment income - 14,216 (14,216)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (1,425) (1,425) -
Net changes 6,510 14,754 (8,244)

RHP OPEB Liability (Asset) Balances at June 30, 2021 $ 68,653 $ 71,666 $ (3,013)
Changes for the year - Increase (Decrease):
Service cost 1,435 - 1,435
Interest 4,052 - 4,052
Difference between expected and actual experience 2,303 - 2,303
Contributions - employer - 2,260 (2,260)
Net investment income - (9,887) 9,887
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (1,902) (1,902) -
Net changes 5,888 (9,529) 15,417

RHP OPEB Liability Balances at June 30, 2022 $ 74541 % 62,137 % 12,404

RHP fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total RHP OPEB liability was 83.36% and 104.39% as of June
30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The net GLI OPEB liability represents the program’s total OPEB liability determined in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 74, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of the measurement dates of June 30, 2021 and
2020, net OPEB liability amounts for the GLI Program are as follows:

GLI

(in thousands) 2021 2020
Total GLI OPEB Liability $ 3,577,346 $ 3,523,937
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 2,413,074 1,855,102
Net GLI OPEB Liability $1,164,272 $ 1,668,835
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total GLI OPEB Liability: 67.45% 52.64%

The total GLI OPEB Liability is calculated by the VRS’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported in
VRS'’s financial statements. The net GLI OPEB Liability is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB
Statement No. 74 in VRS’s notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information.
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HRSD'’s net HIC OPERB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021. The total HIC OPEB liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2020, using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021.

HIC Total HIC Plan Fiduciary Net HIC
OPEB Liability Net Position OPEB Liability

(in thousands) (a) (b) (a)- (b)

HIC OPEB Liability Balances at June 30, 2019 $ 2,093 $ 925 $ 1,168
Changes for the year - Increase (Decrease):
Service cost 28 - 28
Interest 137 - 137
Difference between expected and actual experience 16 - 16
Contributions - employer - 111 (111)
Net investment income - 18 (18)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (129) (129) -
Administrative expense - (2) 2
Net changes 52 (2) 54

HIC OPEB Liability Balances at June 30, 2020 $ 2,145 $ 923 $ 1,222
Changes for the year - Increase (Decrease):
Service cost 28 - 28
Interest 140 - 140
Changes of assumptions 15 - 15
Difference between expected and actual experience 5 - 5
Contributions - employer - 114 (114)
Net investment income - 238 (238)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (137) (137) -
Administrative expense - (3) 3
Net changes 51 212 (161)

HIC OPEB Liability Balances at June 30, 2021 $ 2,196 $ 1,135 $ 1,061

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liabilities to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following table presents the net RHP OPEB liability (asset) if it is calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (5.00%) or one percentage point higher (7.00%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
RHP Discount Rate (5.00%) Rate (6.0%) (7.00%)
Net RHP OPEB Liability/(Asset) (in thousands)
Year ended June 30, 2022 $ 25,533 $ 12,404 $ 1,989
Year ended June 30, 2021 8,875 (3,013) (12,481)

The following table presents the net RHP OPEB liability (asset) if it is calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate
that is one percentage point lower (3.00%) or one percentage point higher (5.00%) than the current healthcare
cost trend rate:

Healthcare Cost

1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
RHP Ultimate Trend (3.00%) (4.00%) (5.00%)
Net RHP OPEB Liability/(Asset) (in thousands)
Year ended June 30, 2022 $ 491  $ 12,404 $ 27,823
Year ended June 30, 2021 (13,883) (3,013) 11,009
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The following presents the net GLI OPEB liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the net GLI
OPERB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one
percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
GLI Discount Rate (5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
GLI Net OPEB Liability (in thousands)
Year ended June 30, 2022 $ 4,467 $ 3,058 $ 1,919
Year ended June 30, 2021 5,663 4,307 3,207

The following presents the net HIC OPEB liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the net HIC
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one
percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
HIC Discount Rate (5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
HIC Net OPEB Liability (in thousands)
Year ended June 30, 2022 $ 1,300 $ 1,061 $ 858
Year ended June 30, 2021 1,447 1,222 1,029

GLI Fiduciary Net Position and HIC Plan Data

Information about the GLI Fiduciary Net Position and HIC Plan Data are available in the separately issued VRS 2021
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. A copy of the 2021 VRS Annual Report may be downloaded from the VRS
website at varetire.org/pdf/publications/2021-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer
at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500.

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan Description

HRSD employees participate in an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by VRS.
All full time, salaried permanent employees of HRSD are automatically covered by the Plan upon employment.
Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for which they and their employer
pay contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior service, based on specific criteria as defined in
the Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public service, active
military service, certain periods of leave and previously refunded service.

VRS administers three different benefit structures for covered employees — Plan 1, Plan 2 and the Hybrid Retirement
Plan (HRP). The specific information for each plan is set out below:

m Plan 1 is a defined benefit plan. The retirement benefit is based on a member’s age, creditable service
and average final compensation at retirement using a formula. Employees are eligible for Plan 1 if their
membership date is before July 1, 2010 and they were vested as of January 1, 2013. Non-hazardous duty
members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit beginning at age 65 with at least five years of service
credit or at age 55 with at least 30 years of service credit. They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as
age 55 with at least five years of service credit or age 50 with at least 10 years of service credit.

m Plan 2 is a defined benefit plan. The retirement benefit is based on a member’s age, creditable service
and average final compensation at retirement using a formula. Employees are eligible for Plan 2 if their
membership date is on or after July 1, 2010, and they were not vested as of January 1, 2013. Non-hazardous
duty members are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal Social Security retirement age
with at least five years of service credit or when the sum of their age and service equals 90. They may retire
with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years of service credit.
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m The Hybrid Retirement Plan (HRP) combines the features of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution
plan. Most members hired on or after January 1, 2014 are in this plan, as well as Plan 1 and Plan 2 members
who were eligible and opted into the plan during a special election window from January 1 through April 30,
2014. The employee’s retirement benefit is funded through mandatory and voluntary contributions made by
the employee and HRSD to both the defined benefit and the defined contribution components of the plan.
Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal Social Security
retirement age with at least five years of service credit or when the sum of their age and service equals 90.
They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years of service credit.

Members in Plan 1 and Plan 2 contribute 5% of their compensation each month to their member contribution account
through a pre-tax salary reduction. HRSD makes a separate actuarially determined contribution to VRS for all covered
employees. The retirement benefit for members in the HRP is funded through mandatory and voluntary contributions
made by the member and HRSD to both the defined benefit and the defined contribution components of the plan.
Mandatory contributions are based on a percentage of the employee’s creditable compensation and are required
from both the member and the employer. Additionally, members may choose to make voluntary contributions to the
defined contribution component of the plan, and the employer is required to match those voluntary contributions
according to specified percentages.

Members in Plan 1 and Plan 2 earn creditable service for each month they are employed in a covered position, and
vest when they have at least five years (60 months) of creditable service. Members in the HRP earn one month of
service credit for each month they are employed in a covered position for the defined benefit component, and service
credits are used to determine vesting for the employer contribution portion of the plan. HRP members are always
100% vested in the defined contributions they make, and upon retirement or leaving covered employment are eligible
to withdraw employer contributions of 50%, 75%, or 100% after two, three, or four years of service, respectively.

The VRS Basic Benefit for Plan 1 and Plan 2 members, and the defined benefit component for HRP members, is a
lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage of the member’s average final compensation
multiplied by the member’s total service credit. Under Plan 1, average final compensation is the average of the
member’s 36 consecutive months of highest compensation. Under Plan 2 and the HRP, average final compensation
is the average of the member’s 60 consecutive months of highest compensation. The retirement multiplier for non-
hazardous duty members in Plan 1 is 1.7%; in Plan 2 the multiplier is 1.7% for service earned, purchased or granted
prior to January 1, 2013 and 1.65% after that date. The multiplier is 1% for members in the HRP. At retirement,
members can elect the Basic Benefit, the Survivor Option, a Partial Lump-Sum Option Payment (PLOP) or the
Advance Pension Option. A retirement reduction factor is applied to the Basic Benefit amount for members electing
the Survivor Option, PLOP or Advance Pension Option or those retiring with a reduced benefit.

Retirees are eligible for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) effective July 1 of the second calendar year of
retirement. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5%; under Plan 2 and for the HRP defined benefit component,
the COLA cannot exceed 3%. During years of no inflation or deflation there is no COLA adjustment. The VRS also
provides death and disability benefits.

Datalnformation about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued VRS
2021 Annual Report. A copy of the 2021 VRS Annual Report may be downloaded from the VRS website at varetire.
org/pdf/publications/2021-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500,
Richmond, VA 23218-2500.
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(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

As of the June 30, 2020 and 2019 actuarial valuation dates, the following employees were covered by the benefit
terms of the pension plan:

2020 2019

Inactive members or their beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits 418 398
Inactive Members

Vested 108 95

Non-Vested 160 154

Active Elsewhere in VRS 79 85
Total Inactive Members 347 334
Active Members 806 809
Total 1,571 1,541

Contributions

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by § 51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as amended,
but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the Virginia General Assembly.
Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation toward their retirement. HRSD’s contractually
required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2022 was 7.06% of covered employee compensation.
This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019.

These rates, when combined with employee contributions, are expected to finance the costs of benefits earned
by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Employer
contributions to the pension plan were $3,441,000 and $3,453,000 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Net Pension Liability

LiabilityThe net pension liability (NPL) is calculated separately for each employer and represents that particular
employer’s total pension liability determined in accordance with GAAP, less that employer’s fiduciary net position.
For HRSD, the net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021. The total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2020, rolled forward to
the measurement date of June 30, 2021.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2020 for employees in HRSD’s retirement plan was based on actuarial
valuations as of June 30, 2020, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2021.
The actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2020 use the following assumptions:

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Inflation 2.5 percent
Salary increases, including inflation 3.5 percent to 5.35 percent
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
Mortality:
Mortality rates 15% of deaths are assumed to be service related.

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; 95%
Pre Retirement of rates for males; 105% of rates for females set forward 2 years-

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally;
110% of rates for males set back 3 years; 105% of rates for females set back 3

Post Retirement years

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 95%
Post Disablement of rates for males set back 3 years; 90% of rates for females set back 3 years

Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected
Beneficiaries and Survivors generationally; 110% of rates for males and females set forward 2 years

Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is
Mortality Improvement 75% of the MP-2020 rates

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount rate, which was
based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the
experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

Mortality Rates-
Pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy, Update to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For future mortality

and disabled improvements, replace load with a modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020.
Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate rates based on
Retirement Rates experience for Plan 2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age
Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9 years
Withdrawal Rates of service
Disability Rates No change
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change

48 FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021



FINANCIAL

SECTION

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension system investments was determined using a log-normal distribution
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension system
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Arithmetic Weighted Average
Long-Term Long-Term
Long-Term Target Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Asset Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return *
Public equity 34.00% 5.00% 1.70%
Fixed income 15.00% 0.57% 0.09%
Credit strategies 14.00% 4.49% 0.63%
Real assets 14.00% 4.76% 0.67%
Private equity 14.00% 9.94% 1.39%
MAPS - Stategies 6.00% 3.29% 0.20%
PIP 3.00% 6.84% 0.21%
Total 100.00% 4.89%
Inflation 2.50%
* Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.39%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.39%. However, one-year returns do not take into account
the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic
projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range
of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 6.94%, including expected inflation
of 2.50%. On October 10, 2019, the VRS Board elected a long-term rate of return of 6.75%, which was roughly at
the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that time, providing a median
return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.

Discount Rate

RateThe discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS Statutes and
the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate.
Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by the General Assembly for state and teacher employer contributions;
political subdivisions were also provided with an opportunity to use an alternate employer contribution rate. For the
year ended June 30, 2021, the alternate rate was the employer contribution rate used in FY 2012 or 100% of the
actuarially determined employer contribution rate from the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuations, whichever was
greater. From July 1, 2021, on, participating employers are assumed to continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.
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Changes in Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(in thousands) (a) (b) (a) - (b)

Pension Liability Balances at June 30, 2019 $ 245,686 $ 216,628 $ 29,058
Changes for the year - Increase (Decrease):
Service cost 4,229 - 4,229
Interest 16,223 - 16,223
Changes of assumptions (991) - (991)
Contributions - employer - 2,897 (2,897)
Contributions - employee - 2,538 (2,538)
Net investment income - 4,115 (4,115)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (10,696) (10,696) -
Administrative expense - (142) 142
Other changes - (5) 5
Net changes 8,765 (1,293) 10,058

Pension Liability Balances at June 30, 2020 $ 254451 $ 215335 $ 39,116
Changes for the year - Increase (Decrease):
Service cost 4,264 - 4,264
Interest 16,787 - 16,787
Changes of assumptions 6,599 - 6,599
Difference between expected and actual experience (266) - (266)
Contributions - employer - 3,453 (3,453)
Contributions - employee - 2,569 (2,569)
Net investment income - 58,456 (58,456)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (11,512) (11,512) -
Administrative expense - (147) 147
Other changes - 6 (6)
Net changes 15,872 52,825 (36,953)

Pension Liability Balances at June 30, 2021 $ 270,323  $ 268,160 $ 2,163

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents HRSD’s net pension liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what HRSD’s net pension liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current

rate:
Net Pension Liability (in thousands) 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
Pension Discount Rate (5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Year ended June 30, 2021 $ 39,990 $ 2,163 $ (28,835)
Year ended June 30, 2020 72,769 39,116 11,182
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Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions

HRSD recognized pension expense of ($2,015,000) and $6,091,000 or the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, HRSD reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of
(in thousands) Resources Resources
Year ended June 30, 2022:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 261 $ 761
Changes of assumptions 7,406 -
Net diff bet projected and actual earnings on program investments - 29,013
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,441 -
Total $ 11,108  § 29,774
Year ended June 30, 2021:
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 525 $ 1,226
Changes of assumptions 4,149 526
Net diff bet projected and actual earnings on program investments 6,456 -
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 3,453 -
Total $ 14583 § 1,752

HRSD reported $3,441,000 and $3,453,000 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, as deferred outflows of
resources resulting from HRSD’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized as
reductions of the Net Pension Liability in the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense
in future reporting periods as follows:

(in thousands)

Years ended June 30, 2022 2021
2022 $ -8 871
2023 (3,594) 3,570
2024 (4,180) 2,984
2025 (5,510) 1,953
2026 (8,823) -
$ (22,107) $ 9,378

Pension Plan Data

Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued VRS
2021 and 2020 Annual Report. A copy of the 2021 and 2020 VRS Annual Report may be downloaded from the
VRS website at http://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2021-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s Chief
Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500.

NOTE 9 — NOTES PAYABLE AND BONDS

As of October 30, 2015, the District entered into a Credit Agreement with Bank of America, N.A. (the “Bank”) to provide
a revolving line of credit to provide interim financing or refinancing for costs of projects. Since that time, the Credit
Agreement has been extended and amended, most recently as of June 30, 2022. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021,
the District’s revolving line of credit was $100,000,000 and $50,000,000, respectively, with Bank of America, N.A.
(the “Bank”). The June 30,2022 line of credit matures June 30, 2023. In addition, the District may request the Bank
to increase the maximum authorization on the line of credit to up to $300,000,000, subject to the Bank’s approval,
in its sole discretion. The District’s obligation to make payments under the Credit Agreement is a Junior Obligation
within the meaning of the District’s Trust Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2011, as amended and supplemented,
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between the District and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, and is expressly subordinate
and junior to the Lien on Net Revenues Available for Debt Service (as defined in the Trust Agreement).

Interest on advances is payable monthly at a fluctuating rate per annum. Tax-exempt projects are payable at an
interest rate equal to the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) Index plus 0.39% per
annum. Taxable projects are payable at an interest rate equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus
0.45% per annum.

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, HRSD owed $33,721,000 and $15,299,000 against the line of credit, respectively.
At June 30, 2022 and 2021, HRSD had $66,279,000 and $34,701,000, respectively, available under the line of
credit agreement. The agreement provides for certain actions to be taken in events of default including acceleration
of payment of the line of credit balance, termination of the lender’s commitment to make further advances, and
increasing the interest rate in effect to a higher default rate until paid in full. The line of credit is recorded as Notes
Payable in the Current Liabilities section of the Statements of Net Position.

HRSD issues revenue bonds for various capital improvements including but not limited to wastewater treatment
plants and interceptor system improvements. In addition to HRSD’s publicly issued revenue bonds, HRSD is indebted
for bond issues payable to the Virginia Resources Authority (VRA) as administrator of the Virginia Water Facilities
Fund. HRSD is required to adhere to and is in compliance with the rebate and reporting requirements of the federal
regulations pertaining to arbitrage.

HRSD has $50 million outstanding in subordinate variable rate demand bonds, Series 2016B, to partially finance its
capital improvement plan. The bonds bear interest in either a Weekly Period or a Long-term Period, as defined. The
bonds were initially issued in a Weekly Interest Period and bear interest at a varying interest rate until, at HRSD’s
option, they are converted to the Long-term Period. Liquidity to pay the purchase price of the bonds that are tendered
and not remarketed is provided by HRSD. Maturities of the principal and interest for these bonds are shown in the
following table as if held to maturity. The bonds are subject to optional redemption by HRSD prior to their maturity.
Through June 30, 2022, the bonds have been successfully remarketed by the Remarketing Agent. The interest rate
for the bonds at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was 0.67% and 0.08%, respectively. The 2022 rate was used to calculate
interest maturity amounts shown below.
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All bonds are secured by the revenues of HRSD and are payable over the duration of that issue. A summary of
activity for the years ended June 30:

Balance at Balance at Balance at Due within
(in thousands) 6/30/2020 Additions Deductions 6/30/2021 Additions Deductions 6/30/2022 One year
Series-2019A $ 205,675 $ -8 (2,985) $ 202,690 $ -8 (3,225) $ 199,465 $ 3,275
Series-2018A 20,485 - (1,035) 19,450 - (1,090) 18,360 1,145
Series-2017A 72,055 - - 72,055 - - 72,055 -
Series-2016A 96,795 - (4,160) 92,635 - (5,875) 86,760 3,080
Series-2016B VR 50,000 - - 50,000 - - 50,000 50,000
Series-2014A 64,540 - (6,080) 58,460 - (8,070) 50,390 11,825
Series-2012A 2,955 - (2,955) - - - - -
Series-2012 290 - (290) - - - - -
Series-2009B 116,225 - (4,040) 112,185 - (4,170) 108,015 4,305

Virginia Resources Authority

Senior bonds 30,492 - (2,467) 28,025 - (2,531) 25,494 2,676
Subordinate
bonds 152,445 35,452 (8,194) 179,703 71,955 (10,267) 241,391 13,480
811,957 35,452 (32,206) 815,203 71,955 (35,228) 851,930 89,786
Unamortized
bond premiums 23,522 - (3,719) 19,803 - (3,261) 16,542 2,823
835,479 35,452 (35,925) 835,006 71,955 (38,489) 868,472 92,609
Notes Payable - 25,299 (10,000) 15,299 18,422 - 33,721 33,721
Total $ 835,479 $ 60,751 $ (45,925) $ 850,305 $ 90,377 $ (38,489) $ 902,193 $ 126,330

Senior bonds outstanding at June 30, 2022:

Issue Principal Outstanding Interest to Interest Duration

(in thousands) Amount Total Current Long-Term Maturity Rates of Issue Final Maturity
Series-2014A $ 111,345 $§ 50,390 $ 11,825 § 38,5565 $ 5,148 5.00% 15 years July 1, 2025
Series-2009B 134,725 108,015 4,305 103,710 63,227 5.11% - 5.87% 30 years  November 1, 2039
VRA - Metering 9,989 5,308 549 4,759 465 2.65% 20 years March 1, 2031
VRA - WTP 5,727 3,022 309 2,713 303 2.05% 20 years March 1, 2031
VRA - NTP 19,395 10,281 1,062 9,219 901 2.65% 20 years March 1, 2031
VRA-JRTP 13,431 6,883 756 6,127 571 2.65% 20 years  September 1, 2030
Total $ 183,899 $ 18,806 $ 165,093 $ 70,615

Maturities of senior bond principal and interest as of June 30, 2022:

(in thousands)

June 30, Principal Interest
2023 $ 18,806 $ 8,818
2024 19,600 7,942
2025 20,450 7,007
2026 20,671 6,030
2027 7,843 5,368

2028 - 2032 39,449 21,397
2033 - 2037 33,625 11,957
2038 - 2042 23,455 2,096

$ 183,899 $ 70,615
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Subordinate revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2022:

Interest
(in thousands) Issue Principal Outstanding to Interest Duration Final
Amount Total Current Long-term Maturity Rates of Issue Maturity
Series-2019A $ 205675 $ 199465 $ 3275 $ 196,190 $ 52,368 1.76% -2.78% 20 Years February 1, 2039
Series-2018A 63,185 18,360 1,145 17,215 6,051 5.00% 15 years October 1, 2033
Series-2017A 83,485 72,055 - 72,055 39,650 3.50% -5.00% 26 years October 1, 2043
Series-2016A 246,845 86,760 3,080 83,680 28,349 3.00% -5.00% 20 years August 1, 2036
VRA - York River Reuse 2,476 77 77 - 1 1.70% 20 years September 1, 2022
VRA - AB Aeration 1,759 58 58 - - 1.70% 20 years October 1, 2022
VRA - Ches-Eliz Off Gas 1,070 7 71 - 2 3.75% 20 years March 1, 2023
VRA - AB Generator 1,235 302 73 229 14 2.00% 20 years April 1, 2026
VRA - Atlantic Expan 7,340 2,229 437 1,792 62 2.10% 20 years February 1, 2027
VRA - Ches-Eliz Expan 40,330 12,177 2,387 9,790 337 2.10% 20 years June 1, 2027
VRA - Williamsburg PS 1,605 531 95 436 16 2.10% 20 years July 1, 2027
VRA - York River Expan 29,683 15,748 1,567 14,181 2,113 2.72% 20 years March 1, 2031
VRA - Rodman 1,096 960 37 923 246 2.25% 25 years June 1, 2043
VRA - Atlantic 6,318 3,929 337 3,592 265 2.51% 20 years February 1, 2033
VRA - Ferguson 866 766 30 736 225 2.70% 25 years March 1, 2042
VRA - Lucas 2,949 2,684 90 2,594 881 2.65% 27 years October 1, 2044
VRA - BHTP Switchgear 7,619 7,248 377 6,871 1,201 1.85% 20 years December 1, 2040
VRA - Orcutt Ave - 7,620 220 7,400 3,647 2.85% 30 years February 1, 2049
VRA - TP Dewatering - 3,318 162 3,156 394 1.20% 20 years October 1, 2040
VRA - Deep Creek IFM 4,989 4,761 231 4,530 562 1.20% 20 years December 1, 2040
VRA - Huxley - 3,542 182 3,360 437 1.20% 20 years August 1, 2040
VRA - Group Loan - 80,251 2,295 77,956 12,106 1.15% 22 years March 1, 2042
VRA-ABTP 50,000 29,704 2,563 27,141 3,463 2.05% 20 years September 1, 2032
VRA - ATP - 56,186 1,795 54,391 16,895 2.25% 30 years March 1, 2046
VRA - BHTP 7,584 4,105 396 3,709 434 2.05% 20 years September 1, 2031
VRA-ES - 4,902 - 4,902 265 1.30% 20 years October 1, 2043
VRA - 2022 Projects - 222 - 222 7 1.30% 20 years December 1, 2043
Total Fixed Rate Bonds 618,031 20,980 597,051 169,991
Variable
(0.67% at

Series-2016B VR 50,000 50,000 50,000 - 8,116 June 30,2022) 30 years August 1, 2046
Total $ 668,031 $ 70980 $ 597,051 $ 178,107

The VRA bonds that do not show an issue amount have not closed as of June 30, 2022, therefore, the principal amounts reflected represent
draws through that date. The total eligible loan amount on these Subordinate VRA bonds is $242,138,000, of which $141,580,000 is available
at June 30, 2022.

Maturities of subordinate bond principal and interest as of June 30, 2022;

(in thousands)

June 30, Principal Interest
2023 $ 70,980 $ 16,863
2024 23,575 16,423
2025 25,526 15,812
2026 26,295 15,233
2027 40,306 14,536

2028 - 2032 194,911 56,868
2033 - 2037 184,360 29,950
2038 - 2042 78,280 9,772
2043 - 2047 23,703 2,637
2048 - 2052 95 13

$ 668,031 $ 178,107
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HRSD defeased certain revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide
for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the
defeased bonds are not included in the fund’s financial statements. At June 30, 2022, the following defeased bonds
from advance refunding are still outstanding:

Defeased In Original Issue Amount Redemption
2017 Series 2012A $ 25,500,006 07/01/22
2017 Series 2016A 8,270,633 08/01/26
2019 Series 2014A 37,814,768 07/01/24
2019 Series 2016A 25,757,389 08/01/26
2019 Series 2016A 118,057,036 08/01/26
2019 Series 2017A 12,483,966 10/01/27
2019 Series 2018A 12,625,954 10/01/27
2019 Series 2018A 32,786,956 10/01/27

$ 273,296,708

NOTE 10 — NET POSITION
Restricted Portion of Net Position

Restricted for debt service. HRSD’s Trust Agreement requires that funds be set aside for its revenue bond debt
service. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, $33,134,000 and $30,455,000, respectively, were contained in the unrestricted
net position.

Reserved Portion of Unrestricted Net Position

Reserved for Improvement. HRSD’s Master Trust Agreement requires a reserve for improvements. There is no
specific funding mechanism established by the Trust Agreement. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, $178,000 and186,000,
respectively, was contained in the unrestricted net position. HRSD was in compliance with all funding requirements
of this reserve during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Reserved for Construction. A reserve for the construction program is based on funds designated by HRSD’s
Commission for such purposes. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, $32,535,000 and $6,034,000, respectively, was
contained in the unrestricted net position.

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

HRSD is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; employee
dishonesty; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. HRSD purchases commercial insurance for specific types
of coverage including property, liability, auto, crime, public officials and workers’ compensation. There were no
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. Claim settlements and judgments not covered by
commercial insurance are covered by operating resources. The amount of settlements did not exceed insurance
coverage for each of the past three years. Claim expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

HRSD has a self-insured health, dental and vision care benefits program for all employees. Claims processing and
payments for all health care claims are made through third-party administrators. HRSD uses the information provided
by the third-party administrators and a health care benefits consultant to aid in the determination of self-insurance
reserves. Hospitalization Reserve is included in Other Liabilities in the Current Liabilities section of the Statements
of Net Position.

(in thousands) Beginning of Estimated End of
Fiscal Year Claims Incurred Claims Paid Fiscal Year
2021 $ 4521 § 14,116 $ (13,860) $ 4,777
2022 4,777 16,503 (16,644) 4,636
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NOTE 12 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Consent Decree

On December 19, 2014, the Commonwealth of Virginia entered into a long-term State Consent Agreement (the “2014
Consent Agreement”) with 14 of the localities that HRSD serves. The 2014 Consent Agreement requires the localities
to perform long-term management, operations and maintenance of their sewer systems in support of HRSD’s efforts
to provide long-term regional wet weather wastewater capacity. HRSD is not a party to the 2014 Consent Agreement.
Instead, HRSD’s obligation to provide regional wet weather sewer capacity is now memorialized in its federal consent
decree (the “Consent Decree”). HRSD entered into the Consent Decree with the Commonwealth and the United
States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”).

The Consent Decree was entered by the federal district court for the Eastern District of Virginia (the “District Court”)
on February 23, 2010. The Consent Decree has been amended five times, most recently on February 8, 2022 (the
“Amended Consent Decree”).

The Amended Consent Decree has two major operative requirements. First, it requires HRSD to implement its
approved Regional Wet Weather Management Plan (‘RWWMP”) to control 69 percent of the capacity-related sewer
overflow volume predicted to occur in a five-year storm event. Because HRSD has assumed responsibility for
planning (in consultation with the 14 affected localities), designing, funding, and implementing the controls (high
priority projects) in both the localities’ systems and the HRSD system contained in the approved RWWMP, HRSD
estimates the regional ratepayers will achieve significantly reduced program costs than if each locality sought to
address peak wet weather wastewater flows on its own. To further facilitate this approach, the 14 affected localities
entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with HRSD in 2014 in which they agreed to (1) cooperate with HRSD,
(2) facilitate the construction of and accept ownership of any improvements which HRSD may need to construct in
the localities’ systems, and (3) maintain the integrity of their systems to industry standards.

The Amended Consent Decree includes a schedule for wastewater system improvements that expressly
accommodates HRSD’s SWIFT program. That schedule requires that HRSD implement $200 million worth of
High Priority Project sewer overflow control projects between 2020 and 2030 and then another $200 million in
sewer overflow control projects between 2030 and 2040. These two sets of projects reflect further priority system
improvements that HRSD is to implement along with the SWIFT project. The Amended Consent Decree gives HRSD
until 2032 to invest $1.1 billion in the SWIFT program. Finally, the Amended Consent Decree provides that if HRSD
will not make the full $1.1 billion investment in the SWIFT Project by 2032 then EPA can require HRSD to accelerate
some or all of the second group ($200 million worth) of High Priority sewer overflow control projects to offset the
avoided investment in the SWIFT program.

Litigation

In 2018, oystermen leasing oyster beds in the Nansemond River filed a petition for declaratory judgment against
the City of Suffolk, Virginia, and HRSD alleging that they had intentionally designed and operated their storm water
system (Suffolk) and sanitary sewers (both) to discharge contaminants onto the oystermen’s oyster beds (leased
from the Virginia Marine Resources Commission), resulting in condemnation of their oyster beds by the Virginia
Department of Health. In September 2019, the Suffolk Circuit Court granted demurrers filed by Suffolk and HRSD and
dismissed the oystermen’s petition. On May 18, 2020, the Supreme Court of Virginia agreed to hear the oystermen’s
appeal. On December 10, 2020, the Virginia Supreme Court affirmed the lower court decision dismissing the petition.
This Supreme Court ruling concluded the litigation.

HRSD is a named defendant in litigation filed by a party concerning alleged EEOC charges, and has received notice
of additional charges filed with the EEOC with similar causes of action. HRSD intends to vigorously defend all cases
and expects no losses will be incurred which would have a material effect on HRSD’s financial position.

Capital Commitments

HRSD has a major capital improvement and expansion program funded through the issuance of debt and its own
resources. As of June 30, 2022, HRSD has outstanding commitments for contracts in progress of approximately
$1,078,388,000.

NOTE 13 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

HRSD categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1



INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL REQUIRED STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION

(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)

inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs.
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Debt securities reported as investments are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and are valued using the
following approaches:

m U.S. Treasury securities are valued using quoted prices for identical or similar securities.

m All other investments are valued based on matrix pricing using observable data of securities with similar
attributes.

Investments reported as cash and cash equivalents are not included of the fair value hierarchy and are valued using
the following:

m The Virginia Investment Pool Trust Fund (the “Trust” or “VIP”) is an Internal Revenue Code Section 115
governmental trust fund created under the Joint Exercise of Powers statue of the Commonwealth of Virginia
to provide political subdivisions with an investment vehicle to pool their funds and to invest such funds into
two or more investment portfolios under the direction and daily supervision of a professional fund manager.
The Trust was established and created by the City of Chesapeake, Virginia, and the City of Roanoke, Virginia
(the “Founding Participants”) and operates under the Trust Agreement as amended September 23, 2016.
All deposits to VIP initially go into the Stable NAV Liquidity Pool, which serves both as a liquidity pool and as
a sweep account for the 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund. HRSD’s total investment in VIP is $62,932,000
(valued at amortized cost) in the 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund and $144,268,000 in the Stable NAV
Liquidity Pool as of June 30, 2022. See Note 3 for additional information.

HRSD OPEB Trust Investments

The HRSD OPEB Trust has investments in mutual funds, cash, and cash equivalents on deposit with its trustee, U.S.
Bank. HRSD categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy consistent with the approach
described above.

(in thousands)

Balance at June 30, 2022 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by Fair Value Level

Mutual Funds - Equity $ 32,190 $ 25,807 $ 6,383 $ -

Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 21,204 3,836 17,368 -

Miscellaneous 1,811 - 1,811 -

Other Income 2,743 - - 2,743
Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 57,948 29,643 $ 25,562 2,743

Cash Equivalents Measured at Net Asset Value

First American Government Obligation 4,189

Fiduciary Net Position of HRSD’s OPEB $ 62,137

Balance at June 30, 2021 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by Fair Value Level

Mutual Funds - Equity $ 45,798 31,062 $ 14,736 -

Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 22,058 2,096 19,962 -

Miscellaneous 1,080 - 1,080 -

Other Income 2,632 - - 2,632
Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 71,568 33,158 $ 35,778 2,632

Cash Equivalents Measured at Net Asset Value

First American Government Obligation 98

Fiduciary Net Position of HRSD’s OPEB $ 71,666

Additional information about HRSD’s OPEB Plan

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

isin Notes 3and 7.
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NOTE 14 - FIDUCIARY ACTIVITIES

As discussed in Note 2, HRSD adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, effective July 1, 2020. HRSD
has prepared fiduciary fund financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. The statements
include information on one of HRSD’s three postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment
benefits, or OPEB) plans, and information on funds held by HRSD to apply toward customer accounts.

Retiree Health Plan

Detailed information related to HRSD’s Retiree Health Plan (RHP) is included in Notes 2, 3, 7 and 13 and in the
Required Supplementary Information section of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. The RHP meets the
requirements of GAAP for inclusion in the fiduciary fund financial statements. HRSD’s other two OPEB plans are
administered by VRS so do not qualify for inclusion. The RHP had total assets of $62.1 million and $71.7 million as
of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, which are restricted to providing postretirement benefits for plan participants.

Coronavirus Aid. Relief, and Economic Securities Act

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic disaster, the United States federal government enacted the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Securities Act of 2020 (“CARES Act”) to provide funding for numerous programs to address
the COVID-19 pandemic disaster, providing assistance to states, local, territorial, and tribal governments for direct
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic disaster through the establishment of the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF).
Consistent with the CARES Act, the Commonwealth of Virginia established a COVID-19 Utility Relief Program
(Program) to provide direct assistance to utility customers with accounts over 30 days in arrears.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, HRSD received federal CARES Act funds in the amount of $9.1 million.
The City of Norfolk, Virginia, and James City Service Authority (the partner localities) served as pass-through agents
for funds distributed through the Commonwealth of Virginia’s State Corporation Commission. As of June 30, 2022,
HRSD had applied the full $9.1 million to the accounts of customers who qualified for relief under the terms of the
Program, applying $1.6 million and $7.5 million during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

American Recovery Plan Act

In further response to the COVID-19 pandemic disaster, the United States federal government enacted the American
Recovery Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”) to provide funding for numerous programs to address the COVID-19 pandemic
disaster, providing assistance to states, local, territorial, and tribal governments for direct impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic disaster through the establishment of the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF). Consistent with ARPA, the
Commonwealth of Virginia established the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) of the American Rescue
Plan Act (ARPA) to provide direct assistance to utility customers with accounts over 60 days in arrears.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, HRSD received federal SLFRF-ARPA funds in the amount of $10.7
million. The City of Norfolk, Virginia, (the partner locality) served as the pass-through agent for funds distributed
through the Commonwealth of Virginia’s State Corporation Commission. As of June 30, 2022, HRSD had applied
$10.3 million to the accounts of customers who qualified for relief under the terms of the Program. HRSD returned
$0.4 million of unexpended funds to the Commonwealth in a timely manner in accordance with SLFRF-ARPA Rules.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) program, managed by the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA), accelerates investment in our nation’s water infrastructure by providing long-term, low-cost
supplemental loans for regionally and nationally significant projects. WIFIA loans allow borrowers to lock-in a rate
equivalent to the US Treasury rate plus one basis point at closing. HRSD submitted a Letter of Interest in 2019 and
was approved to apply for the SWIFT program. Due to the long duration of the SWIFT program, a Master Financing
Agreement (MFA) was required to allow for multiple loans (tranches). Each tranche will be a group of projects that
have met environmental requirements. On September 28, 2020, HRSD executed an MFA that outlines the terms and
conditions of the loans and caps the amount borrowed at $1.048 billion, and closed on the first tranche, which was
$225 million for approximately 34 years at a rate of 1.42 percent. In September 2021 HRSD closed on the second
tranche, which was $477 million for approximately 34 years at a rate of 1.95 percent.
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REQUIRED

INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL SUPPLEMENTARY STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION INFORMATION SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED)
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
(in thousands) 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Total pension liability
Service cost $ 4264 $§ 4229 § 3946 $ 3825 § 4145 § 4,025 § 4,115 § 3,943
Interest 16,787 16,223 15,598 14,953 14,750 13,872 13,559 12,906
Changes in assumptions 6,599 - 7,378 - (3,975) - - -
Difference between expected and actual
experience (266) (991) 760 (101) (3,175) 2,980 (4,910) -
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions (11,512)  (10,696) (9,655) (9,250) (8,475) (8,161) (8,446) (6,607)
Net change in total pension liability 15,872 8,765 18,027 9,427 3,270 12,716 4,318 10,242
Total pension liability - beginning 254,451 245,686 227,659 218,232 214,962 202,246 197,928 187,686
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 270,323 $ 254,451 $ 245,686 $ 227,659 $ 218,232 $214,962 $ 202,246 $ 197,928
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 3453 $§ 2897 $§ 2866 $ 3,710 $§ 3609 $ 4,083 $§ 4,09 $ 4,114
Contributions - employee 2,569 2,538 2,468 2,424 2,351 2,286 2,314 2,267
Net investment income 58,456 4,115 13,739 14,451 21,526 3,062 7,807 23,313
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions (11,512)  (10,696) (9,655) (9,250) (8,475) (8,161) (8,446) (6,607)
Administrative expense (147) (142) (137) (125) (124) (109) (107) (125)
Other 6 (5) (8) (12) (19) (1) (2) 1
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 52,825 (1,293) 9,273 11,198 18,868 1,160 5,665 22,963
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 215,335 216,628 207,355 196,157 177,289 176,129 170,464 147,501
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)  $ 268,160 $ 215,335 $ 216,628 $ 207,355 $ 196,157 $ 177,289 $ 176,129 $ 170,464
Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 2163 $ 39,116 $ 29,058 $ 20,304 $ 22,075 $ 37,673 $ 26,117 $ 27,465
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability
(b)/(a) 99.20% 84.63% 88.17% 91.08% 89.88% 82.47% 87.09% 86.12%

Covered payroll (c)

Net pension liability as a percentage of

the covered payroll ((a)-(b))/(c) 4.00% 73.69%

56.60%

39.91% 44.79% 78.75%

54.78%

$ 54,107 $ 53,085 $ 51,336 $ 50,874 $ 49,286 $ 47,838 $ 47,674 $ 46,096

59.58%

This schedule is presented to show information for 10 years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, HRSD will present information

for those years for which information is available.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to required supplementary information

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021
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Date

2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 THROUGH 2022

Contractually
Required
Contribution

$ 3,441,000 $
3,453,000
2,897,000
2,866,000
3,635,000
4,326,000
4,222,000
4,207,000
4,107,000
4,075,000

Contribution in
Relation to
Contractually
Required
Contribution

3,441,000
3,453,000
2,897,000
2,866,000
3,635,000
4,326,000
4,222,000
4,207,000
4,107,000
4,075,000

Contribution
Deficiency Employer’s Contributions as a % of
(Excess) Covered Payroll Covered Payroll
$ - $ 54,750,000 6.28%
- 54,107,000 6.38%
- 53,085,000 5.46%
- 51,336,000 5.58%
- 50,874,000 7.15%
- 49,286,000 8.78%
- 47,838,000 8.83%
- 47,674,000 8.82%
- 46,096,000 8.91%
- 45,044,000 9.05%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Year Ended June 30, 2022:

Changes of benefit terms -
There have been no actuarially material changes to the VRS benefit provisions since the prior actuarial valuation.

Changes of assumptions -
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for
the period from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board
action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board

action are as follows:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement

healthy, and disabled)

Retirement Rates

Withdrawal Rates

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Discount Rate

Update to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For future mortality
improvements, replace load with a modified Mortalitylmprovement Scale
MP-2020.

Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate rates based
on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through
9 years of service

No change
No change
No change

No change

Information pertaining to Pensions can be found in Notes 2 and 8 to the financial statements.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to required supplementary information



REQUIRED

INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL SUPPLEMENTARY STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION INFORMATION SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED)
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN
NET RHP OPEB LIABILITY (ASSET) AND RELATED RATIOS
(in thousands)
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 1435 % 1333 $ 1,345 $§ 1300 $ 1260 $ 1,188
Interest 4,052 3,672 3,883 3,571 3,391 3,208
Changes in assumptions - - (518) (1,607) - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 2,303 2,930 (7,074) 3,302 - -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (1,902) (1,425) (1,186) (1,149) (1,791) (892)
Net change in total OPEB liability 5,888 6,510 (3,550) 5,417 2,860 3,504
Total OPEB liability - beginning 68,653 62,143 65,693 60,276 57,416 53,913
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 74541 $68,653 $ 62,143 $ 65,693 $ 60,276 $ 57,417
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 2260 $ 193 $ 2,730 $ 2993 $§ 2,729 $ 2,558
Contributions - retirees - - - - 303 -
Net investment income (9,887) 14,216 3,343 3,078 3,450 3,957
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (1,902) (1,425) (1,186) (1,149) (1,791) (892)
Administrative expense - - - - (114) (495)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position (9,529) 14,754 4,887 4,922 4,577 5,128
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 71,666 56,912 52,025 47,103 42,526 37,398
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 62,137 $71666 $ 56,912 $ 52,025 $ 47,103 $ 42,526
Net OPEB liability (asset) - ending (a) - (b) $ 12,404 $ (3,013) $ 5231 $ 13,668 $ 13,173 $ 14,891
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB
liability (b)/(a) 83.36% 104.39% 91.58%  79.19% 78.15%  74.07%
Covered payroll (c) $ 55,853 $ 55731 $ 54,799 $ 52,070 $ 50,874 $ 49,286
Net OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of the covered
payroll ((a)-(b))/(c) 22.21%  (5.41%) 9.55% 26.25%  25.89%  30.21%

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, HRSD will present
information for those years for which information is available.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Year Ended June 30, 2022:

Benefit changes: None

Mortality Updated to the latest Society of Actuaries (SOA) public sector

experience study rates.

Changes of assumptions:

Medical Trend Developed using the SOA Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model
baseline assumption. The prior valuations used the SOA model as
updated in November 2016 and included the impact of the Cadilac
Tax. The current valuation uses the model as updated in September

2019 and does not include the impact of the Cadillac Tax.

Discount rate: 6/30/2019 6.00%

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to required supplementary information
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Date

2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER RHP OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 THROUGH 2022

Actuarially Determined
Contribution

$ 1,828,000
1,858,000
2,730,000
2,993,000
2,729,000
2,558,000
2,178,000
2,177,000
2,244,000
2,102,000

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Amortization period

Asset valuation

Assumed rate of inflation

Medical cost trend :

Pre Medicare

Post Medicare

Salary increase rate

Investments rate of return

Mortality rates:

Healthy

Pre Medicare

Contribution in
Relation to the
Actuarially Required
Contribution

$ 2,260,000 $
1,963,000
2,730,000
2,993,000
2,729,000
2,558,000
2,178,000
2,177,000
2,244,000
2,102,000

Entry age normal

Level percent of pay, closed

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

(432,000) $
(105,000)

Employer’s
Covered Payroll

55,853,000
55,731,000
54,799,000
52,070,000
50,874,000
49,286,000
47,838,000
47,674,000
46,096,000
45,032,000

Contributions as a
% of
Covered Payroll

3.27%
3.33%
4.98%
5.75%
5.36%
5.19%
4.55%
4.57%
4.87%
4.67%

An experience gain/loss base is created each year and amortized over a 15 year period

Smoothed market value with phase-in, using a 5-year smoothing period

2.20%

5.3%, stable at 5.3% after 3 years and decreasing to 3.6% after 53 years

5.3%, stable at 5.3% after 3 years and decreasing to 3.4% after 53 years

2.50%
6.00%

RP-2014 Mortality Table, Fully Generational, Projected with Scale MP-2014

5.3%, stable at 5.3% after 3 years and decreasing to 3.6% after 53 years

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to required supplementary information



REQUIRED

INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL SUPPLEMENTARY STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION INFORMATION SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED)
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER’'S SHARE OF
NET GLI OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FOR THE MEASUREMENT DATES OF JUNE 30, 2017 THROUGH 2021
(in thousands)
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Employer’s Proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability 0.26262% 0.25814%  0.26208% 0.26214% 0.26016%
Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability $ 3,058 $ 4307 $ 4265 $ 3,981 § 3,915
Employer’s Covered Payroll 54,222 53,126 51,376 49,846 47,987
Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability as a
Percentage of its Covered Payroll 5.64% 8.11% 8.30% 7.99% 8.16%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total GLI OPEB
Liability 67.45% 52.64% 52.00% 51.22% 48.86%

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, HRSD will present information for
those years for which information is available.

In accordance with GAAP, Net Liability is reported using the measurement date, which is one year prior to the reporting date.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to required supplementary information
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Date

2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER GLI OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 THROUGH 2022

Contractually

Contribution
in Relation to
Contractually

Required Contribution  Required Contribution

$ 296,000 $
293,000
276,000
267,000
259,000
250,000
246,000
244,000
240,000
238,000

296,000
293,000
276,000
267,000
259,000
250,000
223,000
221,000
217,000
215,000

Contribution Employer’s Covered Contributions as a %
Deficiency (Excess) Payroll of Covered Payroll

$ - $ 54,835,000 0.54%
- 54,222,000 0.54%

- 53,126,000 0.52%

- 51,376,000 0.52%

- 49,846,000 0.52%

- 47,987,000 0.52%

23,000 46,417,000 0.53%

23,000 46,082,000 0.53%

23,000 45,283,000 0.53%

23,000 44,839,000 0.53%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Year Ended June 30, 2022:

Changes of benefit terms -
There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions since the prior actuarial valuation.

Changes of assumptions -

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS
Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS
Board action are as follows:actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-retirement Update to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For futuremortality

healthy, and disabled)

Retirement Rates

Withdrawal Rates

Disability Rates
Salary Scale
Line of Duty Disability

Discount Rate

improvements, replace load with a modified Mortalitylmprovement Scale
MP-2020.

Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate rates based
on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid; changed final retirement age from 75 to 80
for all

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and servicedecrement
through 9 years of serviceDisability

No change
No change
No change

No change

Information pertaining to OPEB can be found in Notes 2 and 7 to the financial statements.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to required supplementary information



REQUIRED

INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL SUPPLEMENTARY STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION INFORMATION SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED)
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN
NET HIC OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
(in thousands)
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Total OPEB liability

Service cost $ 28 $ 28§ 26 $ 26 $ 27

Interest 140 137 134 130 129

Changes in assumptions 15 - 50 - (22)

Differences between expected and actual experience 5 16 26 27 -

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (137) (129) (124) (133) (94)
Net change in total OPEB liability 51 52 112 50 40
Total OPEB liability - beginning 2,145 2,093 1,981 1,931 1,891
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 219 $ 2145 $§ 2,093 $ 1,981 $§ 1,931
Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer $ 114§ 1M1 $ 108 $ 95 $ 91

Net investment income 238 18 56 60 90

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (137) (129) (124) (133) (94)

Administrative expense (3) 2) 1) (1) @)

Other - - - (5) 4
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 212 (2) 39 16 90
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 923 925 886 870 780
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 1135 § 923 $ 925 $ 886 $ 870
Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 1061 $§ 1222 § 1,168 $§ 1,095 $ 1,061
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability (b)/(a) 51.68% 43.03% 44.19% 44.72% 45.05%
Covered payroll (¢) $ 54,107 $ 53,085 $ 51,336 $ 49,821 $ 47,987
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of the covered payroll ((a)-(b))/(c) 1.96% 2.30% 2.28% 2.20% 2.21%

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, HRSD will present information for
those years for which information is available.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to required supplementary information
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Date

2022
2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER HIC OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 THROUGH 2022

Contribution

in Relation to

Contractually Contractually
Required Contribution  Required Contribution

$ 115,000 $
114,000
111,000
108,000
95,000
91,000
74,000
74,000
86,000
85,000

115,000
114,000
111,000
108,000
95,000
91,000
74,000
74,000
86,000
85,000

Contribution Employer’s Covered
Deficiency (Excess) Payroll

$ - $ 54,750,000
- 54,107,000
- 53,085,000
- 51,336,000
- 49,821,000
- 47,987,000
- 46,417,000
- 46,076,000
- 45,283,000
- 44,835,000

Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Year Ended June 30, 2022:

Changes of benefit terms -

Contributions as a %
of Covered Payroll

0.21%
0.21%
0.21%
0.21%
0.19%
0.19%
0.16%
0.16%
0.19%
0.19%

There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions since the prior actuarial valuation.

Changes of assumptions -

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020, except the change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS
Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS
Board action are as follows:actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study are as follows:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post- Update to PUB2010 public sector mortality tables. For
futuremortality improvements, replace load with a modified

retirement healthy, and disabled)

Retirement Rates

Withdrawal Rates

Disability Rates
Salary Scale

Line of Duty Disability
Discount Rate

Mortalitylmprovement Scale MP-2020.

Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set separate
rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid; changed final

retirement age from 75 to 80 for all

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
servicedecrement through 9 years of serviceDisability

No change
No change
No change
No change

Information pertaining to OPEB can be found in Notes 2 and 7 to the financial statements.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report and notes to required supplementary information
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INDEX TO
STATISTICAL
SECTION

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT / HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT

This section of HRSD’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required
supplementary information says about HRSD’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Demographic and Economic Information 73

This schedule offers demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which HRSD’s financial activities take place and to
help make comparisons over time and with other governments.

Financial Trends 74

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how HRSD’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Debt Capacity 77

This schedule presents information to help the reader assess the affordability of
HRSD'’s current levels of outstanding debt and HRSD’s ability to issue additional debt
in the future.

Revenue Capacity 78

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting
HRSD’s ability to generate revenue from rate payers.

Operating Information 80

These schedules contain information about the HRSD’s operations and resources
to help the reader understand how the HRSD'’s financial information relates to the
services HRSD provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted the information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive
financial reports and accounting records for the relevant year.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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INTRODUCTORY SECTION FINANCIAL SECTION REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY STATISTICAL SECTION OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION (UNAUDITED)

DEMOGRAPHIC AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Date of Incorporation - 1940 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Area in Square Miles (1) 4,998 4,998 3,087 3,087 3,087 3,087 2,808 2,808 2,808 2,808
Present Service Area in Square Miles (1) 766 766 758 758 758 758 672 672 672 672
Treatment Plants (Major) (2) 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
Plant Capacity (Millions of Gallons per Day) _ _ _ _ _ _
Army Base Plant, Norfolk 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0
Atlantic Plant, Virginia Beach 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0 54.0
Boat Harbor Plant, Newport News 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0
Chesapeake-Elizabeth Plant, Virginia Beach (2) 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0
James River Plant, Newport News 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0
Nansemond Plant, Suffolk 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.0
Virginia Initiative Plant, Norfolk 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0
Williamsburg Plant, James City County 22.5 22.5 225 22.5 225 22.5 225 22.5 22.5 22.5
York River Plant, York County 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0 15.0
Total Treatment Plants (Major) Capacity 248.5 248.5 248.5 248.5 248.5 248.5 248.5 248.5 248.5 248.5
Small Communities Treatment Plants 8 7 7 7 7 5 4 4 4 4
Small Communities Plant Capacity (Millions of Gallons per Day)
Central Middlesex, Middlesex County 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025
King William Plant, King William County 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100
Lawnes Point, Isle of Wight County (3) 0.050 0.050 0.050 0.050 0.050 0.050 - - - -
Onancock (4) 0.750 - - - - - - - - -
Surry County (5) 0.065 0.065 0.065 0.065 0.065 - - - - -
Town of Surry (5) 0.060 0.060 0.060 0.060 0.060 - - - - -
Urbanna Plant, Middlesex County 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100
West Point Plant, King William County 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600 0.600
Total Small Communities Treatment Plants Capacity 1.750 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 0.875 0.825 0.825 0.830 0.830
Miles of Interceptor Systems 538 540 541 541 542 540 536 532 531 531
Interceptor Pump Stations 89 90 88 87 88 89 88 83 83 83
Small Communities Pump Stations 44 42 42 41 34 38 33 33 33 29
Maintenance Facilities 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Number of Service Connections (in thousands) 484 481 478 476 473 470 467 465 462 460
Daily Average Treatment in Millions of Gallons 132 154 141 153 145 153 155 152 154 158
Bond Rating: Moody’s Senior Aal Aal Aal Aal Aal Aa2 Aa2 Aa2 Aa2 Aa2
Subordinate Long-term Aal Aal Aal Aa2 Aa2 - - - - -
Bond Rating: Standard & Poor’'s  Senior AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AAA AAA
Subordinate Long-term AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA AA AA AA AA+ AA+
Subordinate Short-term A-1+ A-1+ A-1+ A-1+ A-1+ A-1+ A-1+ A-1+ A-1+ A-1+
Bond Rating: Fitch Senior AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+ AA+
Subordinate Long-term AA AA AA AA AA AA AA AA AA AA
Subordinate Short-term F1+ F1+ F1+ F1+ F1+ F1+ F1+ F1+ F1+ F1+

(1) HRSD added additional service areas in the counties of Isle of Wight and Surry during the year ended June 30, 2017 and the Eastern Shore of Virginia during the year ended June 30, 2021.
(2) The Chesapeake-Elizabeth Treatment Plant was closed on Decmber 31, 2021 but included in this year’s count. Wastewater from the area is now handled by the Atlantic Treatment Plant.
(3) Lawnes Point was acquired during the year ended June 30, 2017.

(4) The Onancock Plant was acquired during the year ended June 30, 2022.

(5) The Surry Plants were acquired during the year ended June 30, 2018.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES, EXPENSES, NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
AND DEBT SERVICE EXPENSES LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(in thousands)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
OPERATING REVENUES
Wastewater treatment charges $ 352,414 $ 325,817 $ 318,585 $ 299,323 $ 275,539
Miscellaneous 5,532 3,952 3,447 3,798 3,504
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 357,946 329,769 322,032 303,121 279,043
OPERATING EXPENSES
Wastewater treatment 134,135 132,820 122,393 117,189 116,982
General and administrative 45,673 48,691 46,949 41,121 40,480
Depreciation 54,357 53,278 51,383 53,225 52,349
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 234,165 234,789 220,725 211,535 209,811
OPERATING INCOME 123,781 94,980 101,307 91,586 69,232
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Wastewater facility charges 7,072 7,379 6,444 6,662 6,673
Investment income (1,651) 471 5,876 8,719 3,654
Bond interest subsidy 2,052 2,167 2,205 2,308 2,330
Change in fair value of investments - - - - (1,382)
Capital distributions to localities (13) (376) - - (311)
Bond issuance costs (311) (682) (1,290) (53) (1,061)
Disposal of capital assets - - (739) - -
Interest expense (25,007) (25,339) (26,179) (27,964) (20,226)
NET NON-OPERATING EXPENSES (17,858) (16,380) (13,683) (10,328) (10,323)
INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 105,923 78,600 87,624 81,258 58,909
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
State capital grants 200 - - 2,444 2,502
Other capital contributions 2,537 2,317 578 374 2,124
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 108,660 $ 80,917 $ 88,202 $ 84,076 $ 63,535
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets $ 832,427 $ 776,253 $ 646,505 $ 494,779 $ 512,398
Restricted for debt service 33,134 30,455 28,155 28,553 27,799
Restricted for debt service reserve fund - - - - -
Unrestricted 193,923 144,116 195,247 258,373 157,432
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 1,059,484 $ 950,824 $ 869,907 $ 781,705 $ 697,629
DEBT SERVICE
Senior debt $ 24549 § 26,085 $ 28,595 $ 33,592 $ 36,488
Subordinate debt $ 36,468 $ 33,128 $ 30,416 $ 28,313 $ 20,633
Senior Debt Service Coverage (GAAP) 7.55 6.03 5.80 4.84 3.59
Subordinate Debt Service Coverage (GAAP) 5.08 4.75 5.46 5.74 6.36
Total Debt Service Coverage (GAAP) 3.04 2.66 2.81 2.62 2.03
Total Debt (Adjusted Cash Basis) $ 61,017 $ 59,213 § 59,011 $ 61,905 $ 57,171
Total Debt Service Coverage (Adjusted Cash
Basis) 3.04 2.66 2.81 2.62 2.30
Notes:

FY2018 - HRSD implemented GASB Statement 75 effective July 1, 2017, which requires recording net OPEB assets or liabilities and related
deferred outflows and inflows of resources.

FY2019 - HRSD implemented GASB Statement 89 effective July 1, 2018, establishes accounting reuirements for interest cost incurred before
the end of a construction period.

(Continued)

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report

74 FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021



INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL
SECTION SECTION

REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY

INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)

STATISTICAL

SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

OTHER

SUPPLEMENTAL

SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES, EXPENSES, NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

AND DEBT SERVICE EXPENSES LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Wastewater treatment charges
Miscellaneous
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Wastewater treatment
General and administrative
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Wastewater facility charges
Investment income
Bond interest subsidy
Change in fair value of investments
Capital distributions to localities
Bond issuance costs
Disposal of capital assets
Interest expense
NET NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
State capital grants
Other capital contributions
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for debt service reserve fund
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

DEBT SERVICE
Senior debt
Subordinate debt

Senior Debt Service Coverage (GAAP)

Subordinate Debt Service Coverage (GAAP)

Total Debt Service Coverage (GAAP)
Total Debt (Adjusted Cash Basis)

Total Debt Service Coverage (Adjusted Cash

Basis)

Notes:

(adjusted) (adjusted) (adjusted)
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

$ 254,961 $ 234,020 $ 221,626 $ 211,538 $ 199,318
3,669 3,861 3,935 3,643 3,297

258,630 237,881 225,561 215,181 202,615
113,100 106,575 114,137 109,149 86,973
40,287 40,026 38,678 33,012 31,410

49,311 45,670 41,871 42,761 45,414
202,698 192,271 194,686 184,922 163,797
55,932 45,610 30,875 30,259 38,818

7,511 6,699 7,428 6,640 5,851

2,287 1,563 1,695 1,872 1,705

2,275 2,399 2,444 2,364 2,602
(1,119) 750 (286) (422) (714)

(138) (3,287) - - -
(42) (1,713) (768) - (658)
- - - - (1,649)
(22,630) (21,631) (22,958) (25,650) (24,330)
(11,856) (15,220) (12,445) (15,196) (17,193)
44,076 30,390 18,430 15,063 21,625

7,462 14,389 16,519 13,888 10,172

1,136 - 3,000 - -

$ 52,674 $ 44,779 $ 37,949 $ 28,951 $ 31,797
$ 428,670 $ 410,287 $ 385,597 $ 351,191 § 337,342
22,701 23,798 22,070 24,064 23,843

- - 44,118 45,207 -

202,907 167,519 105,040 134,485 164,811

$ 654,278 $ 601,604 $ 556,825 $ 554,947 $ 525,996
$ 35,837 $ 38,198 $ 43,842 $ 47,331 $ 37,574
$ 23,603 $ 17,068 $ 13,091 $ 14,112 $ 11,243
3.10 2.56 1.90 1.76 2.48

5.09 5.72 6.36 5.92 8.27

1.93 1.77 1.46 1.36 1.91

$ 57,988 $ 54,643 $ - $ -3 -
2.00 1.85 - - -

FY2013 - HRSD implemented GASB Statement 65 effective July 1, 2012, which requires expensing bond issuance costs in the year incurred.

- HRSD adjusted the financial records to include inventory assets.

FY2014 - HRSD implemented GASB Statements 68 and 71 effective July 1, 2014, which requires recording net pension assets or liabilities
and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources.
FY2016 - HRSD is showing Debt Service Coverage on both a GAAP basis and an Adjusted Cash basis to account for distributions to
localities in accordance with its Amended Subordinate Trust Agreement Section 705(a) enacted in March 2016.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

OBJECTIVE CLASSIFICATION OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENSES
FOR OPERATIONS - LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(in thousands)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Personal Services $ 61,157 $ 60,250 $ 59,666 $ 56,336 $ 55,160 $ 53,401 $ 51,801 $ 52,357 $ 50,538 $ 49,361
Fringe Benefits 20,467 23,879 21,417 18,235 20,275 19,106 17,974 18,249 20,170 20,039
Repairs and Maintenance (1) 18,004 21,207 17,419 13,786 16,763 19,933 22,824 31,451 22,320 23,075
Materials and Supplies 9,495 11,413 9,364 9,314 8,865 8,310 7,843 4,343 5,764 5,700
Transportation 1,380 1,100 1,194 1,423 1,271 1,386 1,537 1,297 1,417 1,376
Utilities 13,762 12,947 12,584 12,749 11,968 11,523 11,249 10,503 11,126 12,295
Chemical Purchases 10,044 8,719 8,760 8,746 8,750 8,020 7,512 7,119 7,752 7,892
Contractual Services 41,904 37,278 33,748 32,123 30,165 26,977 21,573 15,127 14,222 13,993
Miscellaneous Expense 2,385 2,685 2,953 2,622 2,509 2,329 1,842 2,880 1,274 1,172
General (2) 1,210 2,033 2,237 2,976 1,736 2,402 2,446 9,489 7,578 6,487
Subtotal, Expense before Depreciation 179,808 181,511 169,342 158,310 157,462 153,387 146,601 152,815 142,161 141,390
Depreciation 54,357 53,278 51,383 53,225 52,349 49,311 45,670 41,871 42,761 45,414
Total Operating Expenses $ 234165 § 234,789 $§ 220,725 $§ 211,535 § 209,811 $ 202,698 $ 192271 $§ 194686 $ 184,922 § 186,804

(1) Includes Capital Improvement Program items expensed

(2) Includes bad debt expense

76
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INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL REQUIRED STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 THROUGH 2022
(in thousands)
No. Of Senior Subordinate Total Debt Per
As of Service Revenue Revenue Outstanding Service
June 30, Connections Bonds Bonds Debt Connection

2022 484,000 $ 186,227 $ 682,245 $ 868,472 $ 1,794
2021 481,000 202,486 632,520 835,006 1,736
2020 478,000 219,776 615,703 835,479 1,748
2019 476,000 326,531 565,098 891,629 1,873
2018 473,000 349,313 542,129 891,442 1,885
2017 470,000 458,255 388,529 846,784 1,802
2016 467,000 476,734 402,560 879,294 1,883
2015 465,000 649,202 99,195 748,397 1,609
2014 462,000 656,503 109,850 766,353 1,659
2013 460,000 670,272 120,231 790,503 1,718

Note: Unamortized bond premiums are included in both senior and subordinate revenue bonds.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

RATE SCHEDULE
WASTEWATER TREATMENT CHARGES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Residential - Metered
Per CCF * (single step) $ 6.39 $ 586 $ 5.86 $ 537 $ 492 $ 451 § 413 $ 3.83 § 355 § 3.29
Minimum Charges Per day 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25

Residential - Unmetered per 30-day period
Flat rate accounts 52.20 48.64 48.64 34.91 31.98 29.32 26.32 26.32 26.32 26.32

Non-Residential - Special Category
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD)

Per mg/liter per CCF
Excess over 282 mg/liter - 0.000129 0.000129 0.000104 0.000091 0.000206 0.000485 0.000612 0.001558 0.002451
Excess over 297 mg/liter 0.000176 - - - - - - - - -
Total Suspended Solids (TSS)
Per mg/liter per CCF
Excess over 261 mg/liter - 0.000630 0.000630 0.000592 0.000520 0.000454 0.000448 0.000417 0.001244 0.001865
Excess over 282 mgl/liter 0.000584 - - - - - - - - -
Total Phosphorus (TP)
Per mg/liter per CCF
Excess over 6 mg/liter - 0.009871 0.009871 0.009535 0.011569 0.011642 0.004361 0.004344 0.011714 0.01279
Excess over 7 mg/liter 0.010050 - - - - - - - - -
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN)
Per mgl/liter per CCF
Excess over 47 mgl/liter - 0.003378 0.003378 0.003595 0.003156 0.001660 0.000917 0.000756 0.001752 0.002085
Excess over 57 mg/liter 0.002660 - - - - - - - - -

Hauled Wastewater (Indirect Discharge Water)
Septic Tank Waste Per gallon 0.1717 0.1717 0.1717 0.1697 0.1300 0.1366 0.1362 0.1267 0.1258 0.1146
Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) 0.2737 - - - - - - - - -
Notes:

Rates can be adjusted by the Commission.
Unusual wastes not covered by this schedule may be assigned a special rate.

*CCF = 100 Cubic Feet (Approx. 748 gallons)

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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RATE SCHEDULE
WASTEWATER FACILITY CHARGES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

STATISTICAL SECTION

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL
SECTION (UNAUDITED)

Residential

Commercial/Industrial

Volume based facility charges:

5/8”
3/4”
1
11727
o
37
4"
6"
g8
10”
127
147
16”

Strength based facility charges:
(per permitted pound)

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD)
Excess over 250 mg/liter

Total Suspended Solids (TSS)
Excess over 250 mg/liter

Total Phosphorus (TP)
Excess over 6 mg/liter

Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN)
Excess over 35 mg/liter

Notes:

One charge per connection.

Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter
Meter

HRSD eliminated strength based facility charges effective 7/1/2015.

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
$ 2,055 $ 1,905 $ 1,905 $ 1,895 §$ 1,895 $ 1,895 $ 1,895 § 1,895 §$ 1,895 $ 1,895
$ 2,055 $ 1,905 $ 1,905 $ 1,895 § 1,895 § 1,895 § 1,895 § 1,895 §$ 1,895 § 1,895
4,210 4,210 4,210 4,830 4,830 4,830 4,830 4,830 4,830 4,510
7,410 7,410 7,410 8,170 8,170 8,170 8,170 8,170 8,170 7,630
16,645 16,645 16,645 17,260 17,260 17,260 17,260 17,260 17,260 16,130
31,465 30,505 30,505 30,510 30,510 30,510 29,420 29,420 29,420 27,490
80,405 73,810 73,810 70,800 70,800 70,800 67,350 63,600 62,270 58,180
156,530 138,445 138,445 128,660 128,660 128,660 122,400 115,580 106,060 99,110
400,625 336,960 336,960 298,610 298,610 298,610 284,070 268,250 224,650 209,920
780,840 634,710 634,710 542,680 542,680 542,680 516,260 487,510 382,670 357,580
1,310,665 1,038,525 1,038,525 862,550 862,550 862,550 820,560 774,860 587,820 540,610
2,001,460 1,554,120 1,554,120 1,259,520 1,259,520 1,259,520 1,198,210 1,131,490 - -
2,863,155 2,186,505 2,186,505 1,734,700 1,734,700 1,734,700 1,650,250 1,558,360 - -
3,904,635 2,940,135 2,940,135 2,289,010 2,289,010 2,289,010 2,177,580 2,056,330 - -
- - - - - - - 728 987 928
- - - - - - - 424 624 587
- - - - - - - 8,420 5,846 5,502
- - - - - - - 3,812 1,313 1,235

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT

TREATMENT PLANT OPERATING SUMMARY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Average Quantity per Day)

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

Total
Flow (MGD)
Influent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD
TSS
TP
TKN
Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD
TSS
TP
TKN

Army Base Plant
Flow (MGD)
Influent (1,000 Ibs.)

BOD
TSS
TP

TKN

Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)

BOD
TSS
TP

TKN

Atlantic Plant

Flow (MGD)

Influent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD
TSS
TP
TKN

Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD
TSS

Boat Harbor Plant
Flow (MGD)
Influent (1,000 Ibs.)

BOD
TSS
TP

TKN

Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)

BOD
TSS
P

TKN

80

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
132.3 154.4 140.9 152.6 1452 152.9 155.1 152.2 154.0 157.9
263.5 269.1 252.4 281.9 285.1 288.2 2825 286.0 288.6 274.4
203.4 215.4 226.2 2114 215.8 215.9 228.8 198.6 204.7 198.1

6.3 6.5 6.6 6.6 6.8 7.0 6.9 8.6 6.8 6.6
45.0 46.7 47.0 47.6 47.2 46.4 457 458 47.9 48.9
74 9.2 8.0 8.2 75 8.9 9.8 9.9 9.6 9.3
6.3 9.0 7.1 7.4 6.7 9.4 9.3 8.9 9.1 9.3
0.5 0.7 0.7 0.8 07 0.9 0.9 1.0 11 1.0
5.1 8.1 8.4 8.5 7.3 7.7 8.0 9.8 1.2 12.0
8.2 1.1 104 1.1 10.0 95 9.6 9.9 10.7 11.8
17.4 16.6 16.0 16.6 16.3 13.2 13.3 16.4 19.0 185
21.8 19.0 16.9 13.9 14.0 17 13.3 125 14.2 14.4
0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 03 0.4 0.4 0.4
2.9 3.2 3.3 3.3 3.1 2.7 2.7 2.9 35 3.7
0.2 0.6 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.3 08 0.8 0.8
0.4 0.9 0.3 0.4 0.3 04 05 0.6 0.8 0.9
0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 2.1 2.6 2.8
35.9 27.4 24.5 28.1 26.1 28.2 27.2 30.9 25.7 26.7
74.4 58.5 49.3 58.2 56.7 53.2 55.6 66.6 52.7 51.3
51.9 39.6 35.5 39.3 36.6 38.7 38.5 429 37.3 36.4
1.8 1.4 1.3 1.4 13 1.4 1.4 15 1.3 13
15.2 11.4 10.7 11.9 1.2 11.0 10.9 11.4 10.4 10.5
35 2.9 3.0 2.5 24 2.3 2.7 3.0 2.2 2.6
2.9 25 1.5 16 16 1.9 1.9 2.4 2.0 1.9
1.7 15.2 13.6 15.8 142 13.9 15.6 14.4 14.9 15.5
17.7 20.0 18.4 20.6 19.2 174 18.3 20.0 19.2 19.3
13.2 16.1 16.0 18.0 16.6 15.7 18.1 16.3 16.7 16.0
05 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 05 05 0.4 0.4
3.6 3.8 4.0 4.2 3.9 38 3.8 3.6 3.7 3.7
0.9 1.0 0.6 0.9 0.6 06 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.7
0.7 1.0 0.8 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.9 0.6 0.8 0.8
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
2.2 21 2.0 25 13 1.2 1.8 2.2 2.4 2.9

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL REQUIRED STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL

INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)

TREATMENT PLANT OPERATING SUMMARY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Average Quantity per Day)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Chesapeake-Elizabeth Plant (1)
Flow (MGD) 10.1 16.8 17.4 17.6 18.7 18.0 16.3 191 18.4 15.2
Influent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD 20.2 30.5 38.1 37.2 35.4 35.2 30.2 38.7 32.1 24.8
TSS 14.0 23.0 246 26.8 26.6 26.1 229 26.6 251 21.0
TP 0.5 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 2.7 0.8 0.8 0.7
TKN 4.0 6.1 6.9 6.8 6.6 6.4 5.1 6.7 6.4 5.4
Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD 1.2 2.5 2.2 2.0 2.8 2.3 2.0 25 2.2 15
TSS 0.9 1.9 2.0 1.9 3.2 2.3 1.8 1.9 2.1 1.8
TP 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1
TKN 2.0 3.9 4.4 4.1 4.5 4.1 3.6 4.5 4.2 3.2
James River Plant
Flow (MGD) 12.7 14.7 124 13.9 13.0 12.3 13.2 12.7 13.6 14.3
Influent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD 24.9 23.1 24.0 25.8 26.8 255 24.4 25.7 27.5 255
TSS 175 18.1 17.4 18.7 19.3 17.4 17.8 18.0 194 19.2
TP 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6
TKN 4.7 5.0 4.7 4.7 4.8 43 4.2 4.0 4.2 4.4
Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.5 0.7
TSS 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.6 0.8
TP 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
TKN 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.6
Nansemond Plant
Flow (MGD) 15.5 17.4 15.9 16.9 17.5 18.8 18.5 16.6 16.9 171
Influent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD 29.9 33.8 325 33.0 31.9 40.7 35.8 285 29.0 27.0
TSS 259 36.0 46.5 37.2 33.4 40.3 38.4 21.9 23.1 22.9
TP 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.5 11 11 11
TKN 6.2 6.8 6.9 6.7 71 7.4 7.0 5.6 5.8 5.9
Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD 0.4 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.6
TSS 0.5 0.8 0.6 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.9 0.9 11 0.8
TP 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
TKN 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.3
Virginia Initiative
Plant
Flow (MGD) 23.5 291 26.2 27.6 26.7 30.9 31.7 30.5 30.7 31.9
Influent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD 39.1 394 37.0 40.4 47.5 50.1 50.4 47.5 45.8 45.8
TSS 33.2 315 35.4 23.2 30.0 31.3 32.0 30.2 30.6 31.6
TP 1.0 1.0 11 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 11 12 11
TKN 6.5 6.7 7.1 6.8 7.0 7.3 7.4 7.1 74 75
Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)
BOD 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.2 1.7 1.9 1.4 0.9
TSS 0.4 0.7 1.0 0.7 0.7 1.4 1.9 1.6 1.7 1.4
TP 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1
TKN 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.4 0.7 0.8 0.6 0.5

(1) The Chesapeake-Elizabeth Plant was closed December 31,2021.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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TREATMENT PLANT OPERATING SUMMARY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Average Quantity per Day)
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Williamsburg Plant
Flow (MGD)
Influent (1,000 Ibs.)

BOD
TSS
TP

TKN

Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)

BOD
TSS
TP

TKN

York River Plant
Flow (MGD)
Influent (1,000 Ibs.)

BOD
TSS
TP

TKN

Effluent (1,000 Ibs.)

BOD
TSS
TP

TKN

82

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
8.3 9.0 8.6 7.7 8.0 8.6 8.4 9.2 8.9 9.1
33.3 325 33.4 32.6 36.1 33.2 34.7 40.4 37.7 33.5
17.4 18.0 21.2 241 191 27.9 16.2 19.9 16.8 16.7
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.5 0.5
3.6 3.7 3.6 3.5 3.3 3.6 3.2 3.3 3.3 34
0.3 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3
0.2 0.6 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.6
0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
0.1 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.2
11.6 13.9 13.2 12.6 12.6 12.7 12.6 13.2 13.3 11.2
16.7 14.6 15.8 16.8 16.7 16.3 18.2 17.9 17.2 13.3
15.5 141 15.4 15.0 151 16.7 16.9 16.4 15.7 141
0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4
3.8 3.8 3.7 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.5 3.6 3.5 3.2
0.1 0.2 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.2
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.1
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
0.3 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.1
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INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL REQUIRED STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL
INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
TEN LARGEST CUSTOMERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
(in thousands)
2022 2013

Customer Type Amount Percent Amount Percent
U.S. Navy - Norfolk Naval Base Military Facility $ 6,843 1.9% 4,898 2.5%
Anheuser - Busch, Inc. Brewery 3,827 1.1% 5,195 2.6%
Norfolk Naval Shipyard Military Ship Repair 3,223 0.9% - -
Huntington Ingalls Industries Ship building 2,803 0.8% 3,375 1.7%
(formerly Northrop Grumman Newport News/
Newport News Shipbuilding and Drydock)
City of Norfolk Municipality 2,598 0.7% 2,178 1.1%
Smithfield Foods Meat Processor 2,577 0.7% 3,414 1.7%
U.S. Air Force - Langley Air Force Base Military Facility 2,547 0.7% 1,088 0.5%
Norfolk Redevelopment & Housing Authority Housing Authority 2,538 0.7% 1,423 0.7%
U.S. Navy - Little Creek Amphibious Base Military Facility 1,989 0.6% 1,221 0.6%
Oceana Naval Air Station / Dam Neck Military Facility 1,634 0.5% - -
U.S. Army - Fort Eustis Military Facility - - 1,023 0.5%
City of Virginia Beach Municipality - - 954 0.5%
Total $ 30,579 8.6% 24,769 12.4%

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2022 2013
Percent of Percent of
Number of Regional Number of Regional
Employer Type Employees Rank Employment  Employees Rank Employment
Naval Station Norfolk Military Facility 77,000 1 7.4% 67,000 1 7.3%
Joint Expeditionary Base
Little Creek - Fort Story  Military Facility 25,000 2 2.4% 22,000 3 2.4%
Huntington Ingalls Shipbuilding and
Industries Repair 24,000 3 2.3% 24,000 2 2.6%
Sentara Healthcare Health Care Network 22,000 4 2.1% 20,000 5 2.2%
Oceana Naval Air Station Military Facility 19,000 5 1.8% 16,000 6 1.7%
Joint Base Langley-Eustis Military Facility 19,000 5 1.8% 21,000 4 2.3%
Norfolk Naval Shipyard Military Ship Repair 12,000 7 1.2% 12,000 7 1.3%
Naval Support Activity/ Military Facility 11,000 8 1.1% 9,000 9 1.0%
Naval Medical Center
Virginia Beach Public
Schools Public Schools 11,000 8 1.1% 10,000 8 1.1%
Riverside Health System Health Care Network 9,500 10 0.9% 7,000 10 0.8%
Total 229,500 22.1% 208,000 227%

Sources:

Hampton Roads Economic Development Alliance
Hampton Roads Statistical Digest

Hampton Roads Business

Confirmation with employers

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL REQUIRED STATISTICAL OTHER
SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SUPPLEMENTAL

INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) SECTION
(UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)

COMPARISON OF TREATED FLOW TO BILLED FLOW
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

-®- Treated Flow (MGD) -@- Billed Consumption (MGD)
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Fiscal Year
Year ended Treated Flow Billed Consumption
June 30, (MGD) (MGD)
2013 158 112
2014 154 113
2015 152 112
2016 155 111
2017 153 111
2018 145 110
2019 153 110
2020 141 110
2021 154 111
2022 132 111

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY IDENTIFIABLE ACTIVITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

General Management
General Manager
Support Staff

Total General Management
Communications

Communications
Support Staff
Total Communications

Talent Management
Human Resources

Safety
Training
Support Staff

Total Talent Management
Finance

Accounting & Finance
Customer Care Center
Procurement
Capital Finance
Support Staff
Total Finance
Information Technology
Information Technology
Support Staff
Total Information Technology
Operations
Army Base Treatment Plant

Atlantic Base Treatment Plant
Boat Harbor Treatment Plant
Chesapeake-Elizabeth Treatment Plant
Interceptor System Maintenance
James River Treatment Plant
Maintenance Shops
Nansemond Treatment Plant
Virginia Initiative Plant
Williamsburg Treatment Plant
York River Treatment Plant
Small Communities Division
Support Staff

Total Operations

Engineering
Design and Construction

Support Staff
Total Engineering

Water Quality

Pretreatment & Pollution Prevention
Technical Services
Laboratory
Support Staff
Total Water Quality
Total Employees

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
1 1 1 1 2 3 3 3 3

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

2 2 2 3 4 4 4 4

1 1 1 1 1 - - - - -

2 2 2 2 1 - - - - -

3 3 3 2 - - - - -

5 6 6 6 6 6 5 5 5 5

5 4 3 3 3 3 3 - - -

4 4 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2

3 3 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3
17 17 16 16 15 15 14 10 10 10
15 15 12 12 11 10 10 10 10 10
65 71 77 77 77 77 77 69 69 68
12 11 10 10 10 10 10 9 9 9
6 - - - - - - - - -

4 5 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 3
102 102 102 102 101 100 99 91 91 90
49 48 48 43 48 47 45 39 35 35
2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1
51 50 50 45 50 48 46 40 36 36
29 32 34 34 34 34 31 32 32 32
36 37 35 35 35 35 32 33 33 33
34 32 35 35 35 35 32 33 33 33
25 31 32 32 32 32 31 32 32 32
12 121 119 119 118 117 115 120 120 120
24 24 22 22 22 22 20 21 21 21
112 85 74 73 71 70 83 86 86 86
30 35 32 32 32 32 30 31 31 31
33 32 34 34 33 33 30 31 31 31
28 28 29 29 29 29 28 29 29 29
23 23 24 24 24 24 22 23 23 23
27 23 23 23 23 23 21 17 17 17
20 23 23 23 23 23 24 25 25 25
533 526 516 515 511 509 499 513 513 513
43 31 31 30 26 25 25 21 19 19
2 13 13 13 13 14 14 14 14 14
45 44 44 43 39 39 39 35 33 33
27 27 28 27 27 26 26 25 24 24
34 36 34 31 31 29 28 25 23 21
52 50 47 a7 46 45 42 40 38 38
6 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6
119 118 114 110 109 106 102 96 91 89
872 862 847 836 830 821 803 789 778 775

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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OTHER
INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL REQUIRED STATISTICAL SUPPLEMENTAL
SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SECTION

INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
(UNAUDITED)

SUMMARY OF PRIMARY BONDED DEBT SERVICE
June 30, 2022

(in thousands)
Subordinate

Senior Bonds Bonds Total Debt
As of June 30, Principal Interest Debt Service Debt Service Service
2023 $ 18,806 $ 8,818 $ 27,624 $ 87,843 $ 115,467
2024 19,600 7,942 27,542 39,998 67,540
2025 20,450 7,007 27,457 41,338 68,795
2026 20,671 6,030 26,701 41,528 68,229
2027 7,843 5,368 13,211 54,842 68,053
2028 8,086 5,021 13,107 51,501 64,608
2029 8,340 4,661 13,001 50,280 63,281
2030 8,600 4,289 12,889 50,028 62,917
2031 8,428 3,903 12,331 51,024 63,355
2032 5,995 3,523 9,518 48,946 58,464
2033 6,225 3,165 9,390 47,120 56,510
2034 6,465 2,793 9,258 45,159 54,417
2035 6,715 2,406 9,121 44,502 53,623
2036 6,975 2,005 8,980 38,703 47,683
2037 7,245 1,588 8,833 38,826 47,659
2038 7,525 1,155 8,680 38,657 47,337
2039 7,815 705 8,520 20,745 29,265
2040 8,115 236 8,351 9,914 18,265
2041 - - - 9,489 9,489
2042 - - - 9,247 9,247
2043 - - - 9,194 9,194
2044 - - - 9,156 9,156
2045 - - - 3,859 3,859
2046 - - - 3,629 3,629
2047 - - - 502 502
2048 - - - 108 108
Total $ 183,899 § 70,615 $ 254,514 $ 846,138 $ 1,100,652

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
June 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Variance
under
Budget Amended Percent
Adopted Amended Actual Budget Variance
OPERATING BUDGET EXPENSES

General Management $ 466 $ 468 $ 464 $ 4 0.9%
Communications 456 461 407 54 11.7%
Finance 15,303 15,889 14,188 1,701 10.7%
Information Technology 16,710 17,884 15,481 2,403 13.4%
Talent Management 2,533 2,555 2,298 257 10.1%
Operations 111,350 124,912 111,412 13,500 10.8%
Engineering 7,109 7,624 6,712 912 12.0%
Water Quality 15,896 16,820 15,297 1,523 9.1%
General 8,140 8,696 5,217 3,479 40.0%
Debt Service 64,808 64,808 61,328 3,480 5.4%

TOTAL 242,771 260,117 232,804 $ 27,313 10.5%

Transfer to CIP 114,464 114,464

Transfer to Risk Management 260 260

$ 357,495 $ 374,841

Add:

Unbudgeted Depreciation and Amortization 54,357

Unbudgeted Bad Debt Expense 1,210

Capital Improvement Program Items Expensed 9,164
Less:

Capitalized Assets 2,029

Debt Service 61,328

Capital Distributions to Localities 13

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 234,165

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL

SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2022

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

HRSD’s Commission adopts an Annual Operating Budget that contains the day-to-day operating expenses of the
District. The Operating Budget as adopted for FY 2022 was $242,771,000 and contains personnel costs, fringe
benefits, material and supplies, electricity, chemicals, insurance, contractual services, debt service and other
miscellaneous expenses. There were several modifications to the Operating Budget during the year to reflect
changes in spending patterns. All adjustments to the Annual Budget were from encumbrances carried forward or
from transfers within or among departments.

NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING AND CONTROL
Budget Preparation

HRSD prepares its Annual Budget under the provisions of its enabling legislation, used to establish rates, fees and
other charges, and of Section 3.12 of the Master Trust Indenture, dated December 1, 1993, and the Trust Agreement,
dated March 1, 2008. In accordance with those provisions, the following process is used to adopt the Annual Budget.

The process begins in late December with the issuance of the Annual Budget Instructions by the General Manager.
Each department completes its Operating and Improvement Budgets by March 1 for the General Manager’s review.

The HRSD Commission appoints a Finance Committee consisting of two Commissioners. The two Commissioners
meet in early April to review the Budgets, which are presented by staff at the April Commission meeting. HRSD’s
Commission reviews these budgets at that meeting.

The final Annual Budget, which incorporates the Operating and Capital Budgets, is presented at the May Commission
meeting for adoption. The Commission simultaneously adopts the budget and any resulting wastewater rate schedule.
All rate adjustments must be publicly advertised four consecutive weeks before they can take effect.

The HRSD Commission approves any budget amendments during the ensuing year.

The 2008 Trust Agreement requires Debt Service Coverage of 1.20 times for senior and 1.00 times for total debt
based on maximum annual debt service. The 2008 Subordinate Trust Agreement was amended in 2016 to account
for Consent Decree expenses related to Locality wet weather improvements that HRSD will not own and requires
total debt service coverage to be 1.2 times on an adjusted cash basis. The HRSD Commission has a policy of
providing senior revenue and total revenue bonded debt service coverage ratios of not less than 1.5 and 1.4 times
annual debt service on an adjusted cash basis, respectively.

Budget Accounting

The Annual Budget is prepared on a basis of accounting consistent with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. No provision is provided, however, for non-cash items such as depreciation and
bad debt expense. The FY 2022 Annual Budget consists of two parts: an operating budget that covers day-today
operations and a capital budget that identifies all major capital project requirements over the next ten years. All
operating budget amounts lapse at year-end. The Commission annually adopts only the first year of the capital
budget. HRSD’s Commission separately approves all contracts that are awarded under the capital budget.

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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OTHER
INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL REQUIRED STATISTICAL SUPPLEMENTAL
SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SECTION

INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
(UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
DEBT SERVICE FOR OPERATIONS - ACTUAL TO BUDGET
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Variance Budget
Amended Favorable/ Variance
Actual Budget (Unfavorable) Percentage
OPERATING REVENUES
Wastewater Treatment Charges $ 352,414 $ 344,370 $ 8,044 2%
Miscellaneous 5,532 1,790 3,742 209%
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 357,946 346,160 11,786 1%
CURRENT EXPENSES
General Management 464 468 4 1%
Communications 407 461 54 12%
Finance 14,188 15,889 1,701 1%
Information Technology 15,481 17,884 2,403 13%
Talent Management 2,298 2,555 257 10%
Operations 111,412 124,912 13,500 1%
Engineering 6,712 7,624 912 12%
Water Quality 15,297 16,820 1,523 9%
General 5,217 8,696 3,479 40%
TOTAL CURRENT EXPENSES 171,476 195,309 23,833 12%
EXCESS OF OPERATING REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 186,470 150,851 35,619 24%
NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Wastewater Facility Charge 7,072 7,320 (248) (3%)
Interest Income (1,651) 1,210 (2,861) (236%)
Bond Interest Subsidy 2,052 2,095 (43) (2%)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES 7,473 10,625 (3,152) (30%)
INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 193,943 161,476 32,467 20%
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Other Capital Contributions 2,737 - 2,737 100%
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR DEBT 196,680 161,476 35,204 22%
DEBT SERVICE
Principal and Interest 61,017 64,308 3,291 5%
Cost of Issuance 311 500 189 38%
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 61,328 64,808 3,480 5%
AMOUNT AVAILABLE TO REINVEST $ 135352 § 96,668 $ 38,684 40%

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

OBJECTIVE CLASSIFICATION OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENSES
FOR OPERATIONS - ACTUAL TO BUDGET
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Transportation

Utilities

Chemical Purchases
Contractual Services
Major Repairs

Capital Assets
Miscellaneous Expense

94

General Information Talent

Management ~ Communications Finance Technology Management Operations

$ 334 $ 254 $ 5,938 $ 4,873 $ 1,491 $ 35,044
85 88 2,341 1,575 545 14,754
11 22 70 967 60 6,523
8 7 6 6 15 1,293
- - 258 1,260 - 11,683
- - - - - 10,044
17 31 5,437 5,373 23 21,770
- - - 978 - 7,846
- - - 304 - 1,725
9 5 138 145 164 730

$ 464 $ 407 $ 14,188 $ 15,481 $ 2,298 $ 111,412

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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OTHER
INTRODUCTORY FINANCIAL REQUIRED STATISTICAL SUPPLEMENTAL
SECTION SECTION SUPPLEMENTARY SECTION SECTION

INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
(UNAUDITED)

OBJECTIVE CLASSIFICATION OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENSES
FOR OPERATIONS - ACTUAL TO BUDGET
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

(in thousands)

Variance
Percent of Amended Favorable/
Engineering  Water Quality General Total Total Budget (Unfavorable)
Personal Services $ 4,229 $ 8,335 $ 659 $ 61,157 27% $ 62,774 $ 1,617
Fringe Benefits 1,481 3,358 (3,760) 20,467 9% 25,174 4,707
Materials & Supplies 9 1,811 22 9,495 4% 9,511 16
Transportation 15 30 - 1,380 1% 1,556 176
Utilities - 1 560 13,762 6% 12,351 (1,411)
Chemical Purchases - - - 10,044 4% 9,249 (795)
Contractual Services 875 1,362 7,016 41,904 18% 55,344 13,440
Major Repairs - 29 - 8,853 4% 16,056 7,203
Capital Assets - - - 2,029 1% 656 (1,373)
Miscellaneous Expense 103 371 720 2,385 1% 2,638 253
$ 6,712 $ 15,297 $ 5217 $ 171,476 75% $ 195,309 $ 23,833
Debt Service
Principal and Interest 61,017 26% 64,308 3,291
Cost of Issuance 311 0% 500 189
Total Debt Service $ 61,328 26% $ 64,808 $ 3,480
Total Department and Debt Service $ 232,804 100% $ 260,117 $ 27,313

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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HAMPTON ROADS SANITATION DISTRICT

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY OF EXPENSES
ACTUAL TO BUDGET
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

(in thousands)

General Management
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Transportation
Contractual Services
Miscellaneous Expense

Communications
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Transportation
Contractual Services
Miscellaneous Expense

Finance
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Transportation
Utilities
Contractual Services
Miscellaneous Expense

Information Technology
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Transportation
Utilities
Contractual Services
Major Repairs
Capital Assets
Miscellaneous Expense

96

Variance
Amended Favorable/
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)

$ 334 $ 342 8
85 83 (2)
1 10 (1)
8 7 1)
17 12 (5)

9 14 5

464 468 4

254 295 41

88 94 6

22 50 28

7 9 2
31 - (31)

5 13 8

407 461 54
5,938 6,290 352
2,341 2,527 186
70 104 34

6 8 2

258 343 85
5,437 6,335 898
138 282 144

14,188 15,889 1,701
4,873 5,055 182
1,575 1,653 78

967 1,118 151

6 13 7
1,260 1,197 (63)
5,373 7,072 1,699
978 1,478 500
304 - (304)
145 298 153
15,481 17,884 2,403
(Continued)

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021



INTRODUCTORY
SECTION

FINANCIAL
SECTION

REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY

INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY OF EXPENSES

ACTUAL TO BUDGET

STATISTICAL

SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL

SECTION
(UNAUDITED)

(in thousands)

Talent Management
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Transportation
Contractual Services
Miscellaneous Expense

Operations
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Transportation
Utilities
Chemical Purchases
Contractual Services
Major Repairs
Capital Assets
Miscellaneous Expense

Engineering
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Transportation
Contractual Services
Miscellaneous Expense

Water Quality
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Transportation
Utilities
Contractual Services
Major Repairs
Miscellaneous Expense

General
Personal Services
Fringe Benefits
Materials & Supplies
Utilities
Contractual Services
Miscellaneous Expense

TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL EXPENSES

Variance
Amended Favorable/
Actual Budget (Unfavorable)

$ 1,491 1,619 $ 128
545 607 62
60 57 (3)

15 28 13

23 32 9

164 212 48
2,298 2,555 257
35,044 35,997 953

14,754 15,395 641
6,523 6,345 (178)
1,293 1,442 149
11,683 10,368 (1,315)
10,044 9,249 (795)
21,770 30,039 8,269
7,846 14,452 6,606
1,725 656 (1,069)
730 969 239
111,412 124,912 13,500
4,229 4,440 211
1,481 1,576 95
9 38 29

15 23 8

875 1,387 512
103 160 57
6,712 7,624 912
8,335 8,460 125
3,358 3,424 66
1,811 1,763 (48)
30 26 (4)

1 3 2
1,362 2,428 1,066
29 126 97

371 590 219
15,297 16,820 1,523
659 276 (383)
(3,760) (185) 3,575
22 26 4
560 440 (120)
7,016 8,039 1,023
720 100 (620)
5,217 8,696 3,479
$ 171,476 195,309 $ 23,833

Unaudited — See accompanying independent auditors’ report

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021
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Resource: Steve de Mik

AGENDA ITEM 4. — November 22, 2022

Subject: Financial Policy Revisions
Commission Adopted Policy

Recommended Action: Approve the Revised Financial Policy

Brief: HRSD’s Financial Policy is a comprehensive policy designed to help guide its financial
operations. The policy was originally drafted in 2009 and most recently revised in 2020. The policy
requires the Director of Finance, Bond Counsel and HRSD’s Financial Advisor to review the policy
every two years.

The Financial Policy is the primary document that places parameters and defines financial
management practices that are acceptable to HRSD. The Policy covers reserves; budgetary
principles, practices, and controls; key financial metrics; internal controls; risk management practices;
debt affordability; and debt, derivative, and investment management practices. The Policy also
covers fiduciary responsibility and investment parameters associated with the Retiree Health Plan
Trust.

The recommended changes to the policy are mostly administrative in nature. Some changes
specifically to note include:

1. Clarifying the definition of Arbitrage to include tax “advantaged” bonds not just tax-exempt
bonds to encompass HRSD’s Series 2009 Build America Bonds outstanding;

2. Clarifying and simplifying the definition of Operating Expenses;

3. Incorporating the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) as the default replacement of the
discontinued London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR);

4. Incorporating the definition of the WIFA Master Agreement; and

5. Adding cryptocurrencies as a prohibited investment in the Retiree Health Plan Trust.

The attached Financial Policy was reviewed by staff, HRSD’s bond counsel and financial adviser.
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1.0

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

PURPOSE AND NEED

Hampton Roads Sanitation District (HRSD) was created in 1940 by the Virginia
General Assembly as a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia and
was established as a governmental instrumentality to provide for the public health
and welfare. HRSD was created for the specific purpose of abating pollution in the
Hampton Roads area of Virginia through the interception of existing wastewater
outfalls, the construction of wastewater treatment facilities and the installation of
interceptors throughout the service area.

HRSD operates under the direction of the Hampton Roads Sanitation District
Commission (the Commission) comprised of eight members appointed by the
Governor for staggered terms of four years.

Regulatory requirements to reduce nutrients, hydraulic expansion, aging
infrastructure renewals and replacements, and increased treatment capacity are
addressed through HRSD’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP).

HRSD recognizes that adherence to formal financial policies is critical to sound
financial management. This sentiment is echoed by bond rating agencies, investors
and the Government Finance Officers Association.

This Financial Policy (Policy) is designed to help protect HRSD’s financial resources
by:

a. Promoting sound financial management;
b. Ensuring the legal and prudent use of HRSD’s debt issuance authority; and

C. Guiding HRSD and its managers in policy, investment and debt issuance
decisions.

DEFINITIONS

Adjusted Days Cash on Hand. Days Cash on Hand that excludes accrued debt
service, the Risk Reserve, the Renewal and Replacement Reserve, and cash

budgeted for the CIP (i.e., Pay-go)-in-the-nextfiscal-year.

Annual Determined Contribution (ADC). The annual contribution requirement
determined by an actuary for a defined benefit plan.

Arbitrage. The simultaneous purchase and sale of an asset in order to profit from a
difference in the price. Itis a trade that profits by exploiting price differences of
identical or similar financial instruments in different markets or in different forms. For
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the purposes of this Policy, Arbitrage refers to the difference between the interest
paid on the tax-exempt-advantaged securities and the interest earned by investing
the security proceeds in higher-yielding taxable securities. The IRS Code governs
arbitrage on the proceeds frem-issuanee-of or security for the repayment of tax-
exemptadvantaged municipal securities.

2.4  Asset Allocation. An investment strategy that attempts to balance risk versus
reward by adjusting the percentage of each asset in an investment portfolio
according to the investor's risk tolerance, goals and investment time frame.

2.5 Balloon Maturity. As defined in the Trust Agreements, a maturity that contains
twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the original principal amount of an issue and
that is not required to be amortized by redemption prior to maturity.

2.6  Bankers’ Acceptance. A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust
company. The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill, as well as the
issuer.

2.7 Basis Swap. An agreement between two parties to exchange interest payments
based on different variable-rate indices, e.g. SIFMA vs. LHBORSOFR; a floating-to-
floating swap.

2.8 Benchmark. A comparative base for measuring the performance or risk tolerance
of an investment portfolio. A benchmark should represent a close correlation to the
level of risk and the average duration of the portfolio’s investments.

2.9 Bond Anticipation Notes. Notes which are generally repaid from the proceeds of
the issuance of long-term indebtedness.

2.10 Bond Insurance. Credit Enhancement provided by a bond insurer that insures the
payment of the principal of and interest on one or more maturities of Bonds.

2.11 Broker. Matches buyers and sellers of securities for a commission.

2.12 Bullet Maturity. A maturity within an issue of bonds for which there are no sinking
fund payments prior to the stated maturity date.

2.13 Call Provisions. The term of a bond giving the issuer the right to redeem all or a
portion of such bond prior to its stated maturity at a specific price, usually at or above
par.

2.14 Capital Appreciation Bond. A municipal security on which the interest accruing on
an initial principal amount is reivested-not paid currently, but accrued at a stated
compounding rate until maturity. At maturity the investor receives a single payment
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(the “maturity value”) representing both the initial principal amount and the tetal
investmentreturpaccrued, compounded interest.

2.15 Capital Asset. A unit of property purchased by, constructed by or donated to HRSD
that (1) was acquired or produced and has a value of $5,000 or more and (2) has an
economic useful life of a minimum of 60 months. Capital Assets must be
capitalized and depreciated for financial statement purposes. Assets constructed
and paid by HRSD that improve the performance of the Wastewater System and
subsequently transferred to a Locality constitute Locality Assets and will not be
capitalized by HRSD for any purpose.

2.16 Capital Improvement Program (CIP). HRSD’s planned program of capital projects
(greater than $100,000), such as property, plant and equipment and related
engineering, legal and construction services, and may consist of Capital Assets and
Locality Assets.

2.17 Capitalized Interest. A portion of the proceeds of a bond issue which is set aside to
pay interest on one or more bond issues for a specific period of time. Interest
capitalized for the construction period of the project is typically treated as a capital
cost under the IRS Code.

2.18 Certificate of Deposit (CD). A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a
certificate. Large-denomination CDs are typically negotiable.

2.19 Collateral. Securities, evidence of deposit or other property, which a borrower
pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to securities pledged by a bank to
secure deposits of public monies.

2.20 Commercial Paper (CP). Short-term, unsecured promissory notes issued by
corporations or governments to finance receivables for a maturity specified by the
purchaser that ranges from three days to 270 days. Notes are generally sold at a
discount, and carry credit ratings issued by an NRSRO.

2.21 Competitive Sale. A sale/auction of securities by an issuer in which underwriters or
syndicates of underwriters submit bids to purchase the securities.

2.22 Constant Maturity Swap. An interest rate swap that is predicated upon the shape
of the forward implied yield curve whereby counterparties exchange interest rate
payments based on an anticipated future interest rate and a variable swap index
rate. The interest rate on one leg of the swap is reset periodically but with reference
to a market swap rate rather than an index such as HHBOR-SOFR or a substitute.
The other leg of the swap is generally a market index, such as HHBOR-SOFR or a
substitute.
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2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

Continuing Disclosure. The principle that accurate and complete information
material to an issuer of securities be made available on an ongoing basis. Pursuant
to SEC Rule 15c2-12, underwriters of HRSD’s bonds are generally obligated to
obtain a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (CDA) from HRSD prior to underwriting
such bonds.

Corporate Notes. Unsecured promissory notes issued by corporations to raise
capital for a maturity that is longer than 270 days. Corporate Notes are generally
sold at a discount and carry credit ratings issued by an NRSRO.

Credit Enhancement. Credit support purchased by the issuer to raise the credit
rating of a debt issue. The most common credit enhancements consist of Bond
Insurance, direct or standby Letters of Credit, and Lines of Credit.

Credit Support Annex. A legal document that regulates credit support (collateral)
for derivative transactions.

Days Cash on Hand. Measured by current and non-current unrestricted cash and
investments, plus any restricted cash and investments, if available for general
system purposes, divided by Operating Expenses, divided by 365.

Dealer. Acts as a principal in securities transactions, buying and selling for its own
account.

Debenture. An unsecured bond backed only by the general credit of the issuer.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio — GAAP. Calculated in accordance with HRSD’s
Senior Trust Agreement, the ratio determined by dividing the Net Revenues by
annual debt service. In such calculation, funds spent on Locality Assets are
considered an expense. Annual debt service will be based on actual principal and
interest payments during the year (i.e., not accrual based).

Debt Service Coverage Ratio - Adjusted. Calculated in accordance with HRSD'’s
Subordinate Trust Agreement, the ratio determined by dividing the Net Revenues by
annual debt service. In such calculation, funds spent on Locality Assets may be
excluded from the calculation of Net Revenues under the circumstances described
within the definitions of Net Revenues and Operating Expenses. Annual debt service
will be based on actual principal and interest payments during the year (i.e., not
accrual based).

Debt Service Reserve Fund. The fund in which money is placed that may be used
to pay debt service if revenues available for debt service and Credit Enhancements,
if applicable, are insufficient to pay debt service on HRSD’s bonds secured by a
Debt Service Reserve Fund as it becomes due and payable.
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2.33 Deep Discount Bonds. Bonds which are priced for sale at a substantial discount
from their face or par value.

2.34 Delivery versus Payment. Delivery of securities with an exchange of money for the
securities. (See also Delivery versus Receipt)

2.35 Delivery versus Receipt. Delivery of securities with an exchange of a signed
receipt for the securities. Also known as “free” delivery; (See also Delivery versus
Payment).

2.36 Derivative. A financial product whose value is derived from some underlying asset
value.

2.37 Designation Policies. Outline how an investor’s order is filled when a bond’s
maturity is oversubscribed when there is an underwriting syndicate. The senior
managing underwriter and issuer decide how the bonds will be allocated among the
syndicate. There are three primary classifications of orders which form the
designation policy: Group Net orders; Net Designated orders and Member orders.

2.38 Discount. A bond that is issued for less than its par (or face) value, or a bond
currently trading for less than its par value in the secondary market.

2.39 Diversification. A process of investing assets among a variety of security types by
sector, maturity and quality rating.

2.40 Enabling Act. HRSD’s Enabling Act is Chapter 66 of the Acts of Assembly of
Virginia of 1960, as amended.

2.41 Encumbrances. Commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and
services (i.e., purchase orders, contracts and commitments). Encumbrance
accounting is utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary control
and accountability and to facilitate effective cash planning and control.

2.42 Escrow. A fund established to hold money pledged and to be used to pay debt
service on one or more maturities of HRSD’s defeased bonds or other indebtedness.

2.43 Federal Agency. Government sponsored/owned entity created by the U.S.

Congress, generally for the purpose of acting as a financial intermediary by
borrowing in the marketplace and directing proceeds to specific areas of the
economy considered to otherwise have restricted access to credit markets, also
referred to as Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs). The largest GSEs are
Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), Federal
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Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), and Tennessee Valley
Authority (TVA).

2.44 Federal Funds Rate. The rate of interest at which Federal Funds are traded. This
rate is currently set by the Federal Reserve through open-market operations.

2.45 Federal Funds. Funds placed in Federal Reserve Banks by depository institutions
in excess of current reserve requirements, and frequently loaned or borrowed on an
overnight basis between depository institutions.

2.46 FINRA. The Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

2.47 Fitch. Fitch Ratings is an NRSRO.

2.48 Forward Swap. A swap executed today, the exchange of interest payments on
which starts at some future date (the Effective Date), based on rates and terms
determined and agreed upon today. On the Effective Date of a Forward swap begin
net exchange of swap payments. On the Trade Date of the swap:

Enter into Forward swap agreement

Set terms of the swap

Pay commitment fees for swap and bond insurance (if done in conjunction
with a synthetic forward refunding of bonds)

2.49 Interest Rate Cap. An option that pays its holder when and if the floating interest
rate index is above the pre-determined fixed rate (strike price).

2.50 Interest Rate Collar. The simultaneous purchase and sale of an Interest Rate Cap
and an Interest Rate Floor on a floating index.

2.51 Interest Rate Floor. An option that pays its holder when and if the floating interest
rate index is below the pre-determined fixed rate (strike price).

2.52 Interest Rate Swap. A contract between two parties, referred to as “counterparties”,
to exchange interest rate payments at specified dates in the future. One party under
the swap contract normally makes payments based on a fixed rate while the other
party makes payments based on a variable (floating) rate.

2.53 Internal Controls. Systematic measures (such as reviews, checks and balances,

methods and procedures) instituted by an organization to: conduct its business in an
orderly and efficient manner; safeguard its assets and resources; deter and detect
errors, fraud, and theft; ensure accuracy and completeness of its accounting data;
produce reliable and timely financial and management information; and ensure
adherence to its policies and plans. An important concept in establishing
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2.54

2.55

2.56

2.57

2.58

2.59

2.60

2.61

2.62

appropriate internal controls is that the cost of the controls should not exceed their
anticipated benefits.

IRS Code. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations
promulgated thereunder.

Knock-in Option. An option the existence of which is conditional upon a pre-set
trigger price trading before the option's designated maturity. If the trigger is not
touched before maturity, then the option is deemed not to exist.

Letter of Credit. A bank facility wherein the bank agrees to deliver funds to a third
party for the benefit of the account party, upon the presentation of the documents
described in the Letter of Credit. A Letter of Credit may be used as Credit
Enhancement or a Liquidity Facility for HRSD’s indebtedness.

Line of Credit. A bank facility wherein the bank permits the borrower to access
funds at any time, subject to a maximum loan balance. A Line of Credit may be
used as Credit Enhancement or a Liquidity Facility for HRSD’s indebtedness.

Liquidity. The ability of ease with which an asset can be converted into cash
without a substantial loss of value. May also refer to unrestricted cash or
investments of an issuer.

Liquidity Facility. A type of bank credit facility wherein the bank agrees to
purchase securities, typically variable rate debt, that cannot be immediately
remarketed to investors. The Liquidity Facility provider purchases the securities until
they can be remarketed.

Locality Assets. Assets constructed and paid for by HRSD and subsequently
transferred to a locality. A Cemmissien-Rresolution of the HRSD Commission is
required to exclude these costs from the calculation of the Operating Expenses for
purposes of the calculation of the Debt Service Coverage Ratio — Adjusted.

London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR). LIBOR is the rate on U.S. dollar
denominated deposits with maturities from one day to 12 months transacted
between banks in London. LIBOR is-generatywas the predominant the-benchmark
floating index in the taxable or corporate swap market. This index is expected to be
discontinued after 2021June 2023. The leading replacement is the Secured
Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR), which is based on the cost of overnight borrowing
using U.S. treasury securities as collateral.

Management Fee. The fixed percentage of the gross spread which is paid to the
senior managing underwriter for structuring a bond issue.
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2.63 Market Value. The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be
purchased or sold.

2.64 Master Repurchase Agreement. A written contract covering future transactions
between the parties to repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements that establishes
each party’s rights in the transactions. A master agreement will often specify, among
other things, the right of the buyer-lender to liquidate the underlying securities in the
event of default by the seller borrower.

2.65 Maturity. The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment
becomes due and payable.

2.66 Members. Underwriters in a syndicate other than the senior underwriter.

2.67 Moody’s. Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., is an NRSRO.

2.68 Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO). A credit rating
agency registered with the SEC that issues credit ratings that the SEC permits other
financial firms to use for certain regulatory purposes. Examples include Moody’s,
Fitch and S&P.

2.69 Negotiated Sale. A method of selling bonds in which the issuer chooses an
underwriter to negotiate terms pursuant to which such underwriter will purchase and
market the bonds.

2.70 Net Revenues. All revenues received by HRSD less Operating Expenses.

2.71 Net Revenues Available for Debt Service. Under the Subordinate Trust
Agreement, means all Net Revenues less debt service on Senior Bonds.

2.72 Nominal Interest Rate. The interest rate before taking inflation into account.
Generally, it is the stated or quoted rate in a loan or deposit agreement.

2.73 Normal Cost. The annual current cost of a member’s future retirement benefit.

2.74




COMMISSION ADOPTED POLICY
Financial Policy

Adopted:

Commission Revision: May-26,-2020November 22,

Effective:

May 26, 2009

2022

Juby-December 1, 2022 Page 9 of 62

2.75

2.76

2.77

2.78

2.79

2.80

includes those expenses required to pay
the cost of maintaining, repairing and operating the Wastewater System, including,
but not limited to, reasonable and necessary usual expenses of administration,
operation, maintenance and repair, costs for billing and collecting the rates, fees and
other charges for the use of or the services furnished by the Wastewater System,
insurance premiums, credit enhancement and liquidity support fees, legal,
engineering, auditing and financial advisory expenses, expenses and compensation
of the Trustee, and deposits into a self-insurance program. Operating Expenses
shall exclude allowance for depreciation and amortization and expenses for
extraordinary maintenance or repair or improvements. In the Subordinate Trust
Agreement only (i.e., not in the Senior Trust Agreement), Operating Expenses shall
also exclude expenses for improvements that will not be owned by HRSD, but which
will, in the reasonable determination of the Commission, as evidenced by a
resolution thereof, maintain or improve the integrity of the Wastewater System.

Original Issue Discount. In general, the amount by which the original par amount
of a bond or an issue exceeds its public offering price at the time it is originally
offered to an investor.

Percentage of (% of) LI BOR-SOFR Swap. A swap whose floating rate is reset
based on a percentage of a taxable rate (e.g. 67% of I BORSOFR) rather than a
tax-exempt rate, e.g. the SIFMA Index. A Percentage of HBOR-SOFR swap
generally carries a lower expected or nominal fixed rate than a comparable SIFMA
swap to compensate the fixed payer (issuer) for the assumption of basis and tax risk.

Portfolio. Collection of securities held by an investor.

Premium. The difference between the higher price paid for a fixed-income security
and the security's face amount at issue.

Present Value. The current value of a future cash flow.
Primary Dealer. A group of government securities dealers who submit daily reports

of market activity and positions and monthly financial statements to the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York and are subject to its informal oversight. Primary dealers
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include SEC-registered securities broker-dealers, banks, and a few unregulated
firms.

2.81 Private Placement. The placement of an issue of indebtedness directly with one or
more qualified or institutional investors.

2.82 Prudent Person Rule. An investment standard outlining the fiduciary
responsibilities of public funds invested relating to investment practices.

2.83 Rate Lock. An interest rate hedge that is cash-settled at maturity based on the
prevailing level of an agreed upon underlying index. (e.g. the SIFMA ‘AAA’ scales)

2.84 Rate of Return. The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or
its current market price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or
the current income return.

2.85 Rebate. A requirement imposed by the IRS Code whereby the issuer of tax -exempt
bonds must, under certain circumstances, pay the United States Treasury an
amount equal to its profit earned from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds at
rates exceeding the tax-exempt borrowing rate. The tax-exempt borrowing rate (or
bond yield) is calculated pursuant to the IRS Code together with all income earned
on the accumulated profit pending payment.

2.86 Repurchase Agreement (RP or REPO). An agreement under which the holder of
securities sells them to an investor with a contract to repurchase the securities at a
fixed price on a fixed date. The security “buyer” in effect lends the “seller” money for
the period of the agreement, and the terms of the agreement are structured to
compensate the buyer for this.

2.87 Revenue Bonds. Bonds issued by HRSD secured by Net Revenues or Net
Revenues Available for Debt Service.

2.88 Revenue Anticipation Notes. Notes issued in anticipation of receiving revenues at
a future date.

2.89 Safekeeping. A service to customers rendered by banks for a fee whereby
securities and valuables of all types and descriptions are held in the bank’s vaults for
protection.

2.90 Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR). SOFR is a benchmark interest rate in
the taxable bond market. SOFR represents a secured interbank overnight interest
rate. SOFR is also available in certain longer terms (e.g., 1 month, 3 month, 6
month). With the discontinuation of LIBOR, SOFR is the default replacement in many
cases.
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2:962.91 Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Agency created by
Congress to protect investors in securities transactions by administering securities
legislation.

2:912.92 Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Index (SIFMA).
SIFMA is a high grade market index of 7-day variable rate demand notes that is
produced by Municipal Market Data. SIFMA is the benchmark swap floating index in
the tax-exempt swap market.

2-922.93 Self-Liquidity. A term used in connection with variable rate bond financings
whereby the issuer agrees to repurchase, with its own capital, bonds that have been
tendered but not yet remarketed without procuring a third-party Liquidity Facility. In
this instance, the issuer uses its own funds to purchase securities.

2:932.94 Selling Group. A group of securities dealers that participate in an offering
not as underwriters but rather receiving securities less a selling concession from the
managing underwriter for distribution at the public offering price.

2-942.95 Senior Bonds. Bonds and other indebtedness issued by HRSD secured by
the Senior Trust Agreement.

2-952.96 Senior Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreement, dated March 1, 2008, as
the same may be amended and supplemented from time, between HRSD and a
trustee. The Senior Trust Agreement secures HRSD’s Senior Bonds. No additional
Senior Bonds may be issued under the Senior Trust Agreement.

2:962.97 Serial Bond. A bond that matures on one date with no mandatory sinking
fund redemptions that is part of an issue containing multiple Serial Bonds.

2-972.98 Standard-&Poer's{S&P)S&P. S&P Global Ratings is an NRSRO.

2-982.99 Stripped Security. Securities for which the rights to receive principal and
interest payments have been decoupled and separately sold.

2:992.100 Subordinate Bonds. Bonds and other indebtedness issued by HRSD and
secured by the Subordinate Trust Agreement.

2-1002.101 Subordinate Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreement, dated October 1,
2011, as amended and restated as of March 1, 2016, as amended and
supplemented from time to time, between HRSD and a trustee. The Subordinate
Trust Agreement secures HRSD’s Subordinate Bonds.

2-10612.102 Swaption. An option on a forward swap. The purchaser of a swaption
(counterparty) has the right, but not the obligation, to compel the swaption seller
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(usually an issuer) to enter into a pre-negotiated swap agreement at some future
date (exercise date). In exchange for this right, the swaption purchaser pays the
swaption seller a premium amount. This amount can be paid up front, at some future
date, or as an annuity over time.

2-1022.103 Syndicate Policies. The contractual obligations placed on the underwriting
group relating to distribution, price limitations and market transactions.

2-1032.104 Term Bond. A Bond whose principal is amortized based on sinking fund
redemption.

2-1042.105 Termination Payment Risk. The risk that an issuer is forced to liquidate a
swap when it owes a termination payment to its counterparty.

2-1052.106 Treasury Bills. A non-interest bearing discount security issued by the U.S.
Treasury to finance the national debt. Most Treasury Bills are issued to mature in
three months, six months, or one year.

2-1062.107 Treasury Bonds. Long-term interest-bearing U.S. Treasury securities issued
as direct obligations of the U.S. Government and having initial maturities of more
than 10 years.

2-1072.108 Treasury Inflation Protected Security (TIPS). The principal of a TIPS
increases with inflation and decreases with deflation, as measured by the Consumer
Price Index. When a TIPS matures, the adjusted principal or original principal,
whichever is greater, is paid.

2-1082.109 Treasury Notes. Medium-term interest-bearing U.S. Treasury securities
issued as direct obligations of the U.S. Government and having initial maturities from
one to 10 years.

2-1092.110 Trust Agreements. Collectively, the Senior Trust Agreement and the
Subordinate Trust Agreement.

23102.111 Underwriter. A dealer that purchases new issues of municipal securities
from the Issuer and resells them to investors.

23312.112 Underwriter’s Discount. The difference between the price at which bonds
are bought by the Underwriter from the Issuer and the price at which they are offered
to investors.

23122.113 Underwriter’'s Expenses. Compensates senior managers for out-of-pocket
expenses, generally including underwriter’s counsel DTC charges, travel, syndicate
expenses, dealer fees, communication expenses, CUSIP fees and postage.
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Underwriter’'s expenses are subject to negotiation and can vary from transaction to
transaction.

214132.114 Uniform Net Capital Rule. SEC requirement that member firms as well as
nonmember broker-dealers in securities maintain a maximum ratio of indebtedness
to liquid capital, also called net capital rule or net capital ratio. Indebtedness covers
all money owed to a firm, including margin loans and commitments to purchase
securities, one reason new public issues are often spread among members of
underwriting syndicates. Liquid capital includes cash and assets easily converted
into cash.

21342.115 Variable Rate Debt (VRD). An interest rate on a security that changes at
intervals according to an index or a formula or other standard of measurement or
that changes in connection with a mandatory tender and remarketing or where
interest is not set to maturity.

21152.116 VRA Master Financing Agreement. The Amended and Restated Master
Financing Agreement, as amended and supplemented from time to time, between
Virginia Resources Authority and HRSD.

2.117 Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA). - The Water
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act of 2014, as amended (WIFIA), established
the WIFIA, a federal credit program administered by EPA for eligible water and
wastewater infrastructure projects. The WIFIA program provides long-term, low-cost
supplemental loans for up to 49% of the total cost of an eligible project.

21162.118 WIFIA Agreements. Means the WIFIA Master Agreement, dated as of
September 28, 2020, between the EPA and HRSD, and each of the loan
agreements entered into thereunder from time to time

24172.119 Yield. The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a
percentage. Income/current yield is obtained by dividing the current dollar income by
the current market price for the security. Net yield or yield to maturity is the current
income yield minus any premium above par or plus any discount from par in
purchase price, with the adjustment spread over the period from the date of
purchase to the date of maturity of the bond. In addition, Yield may, for certain
purposes, be calculated in accordance with the IRS Code.

3.0 GUIDING PRINCIPLES

3.1 RESERVES. An important metric of HRSD's financial flexibility is its liquidity position
as measured by available cash and investments. Setting a minimum liquidity
position for known risks and obligations wil-helps provide funding in emergency or
other unexpected situations as they arise. The reserves represent an earmarking,
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3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.2

3.2.1

for budgetary and Policy purposes, of cash and liquid investments (current and non-
current). These reserves are in addition to existing reserves required by the Trust
Agreements, if any, and any funds earmarked for debt service, capital improvements
or budget carryover amounts.

General Reserve. HRSD will maintain sufficient liquidity to ensure adequate
working capital for HRSD’s operations. These funds are intended to help HRSD
cover unanticipated expenses that cannot be paid from the current fiscal year’s
budgetary resources. Liquidity will be determined in terms of Days Cash on Hand
and Adjusted Days Cash on Hand. Adjusted Days Cash on Hand at the end of a

fiscal year may-should not be less than 270 days—HRSB-willtarget-Adjusted-Bays
Cash-en-Hand-te-be-beloew or greater than 365 days.

In the event the cash and investments are used to provide funding for unanticipated
expenses and the Adjusted Days Cash on Hand falls below the 270 day minimum,
the General Manager will submit a plan in writing to the Commission that will restore
it to the policy level over a period not to exceed five fiscal years.

Risk Reserve. HRSD maintains a self-insurance program for some of its risk
exposures.

A. HRSD will maintain a Risk Reserve as of the end of the fiscal year of not less
than 25 percent of projected annual self-insured claims costs for known,
retained risks.

B. In the event the Risk Reserve is used and reduced to a level that is less than
the 25 percent minimum to provide funding of unanticipated self-insured
expenses, the General Manager will submit a plan in writing to the
Commission that will restore the reserve to the policy level over a period not
to exceed five fiscal years.

Renewal and Replacement Reserve. As permitted by the Enabling Act, HRSD’s
Trust Agreements establish a reserve to finance “anticipated renewals,
replacements, extensions, additions and extraordinary repairs” to wastewater system
the extent needed. Under the Trust Agreements, the funding of the Renewal and
Replacement Reserve is discretionary.

BUDGETARY PRINCIPLES.

Long-Range Financial Forecast. Each fiscal year the General Manager will submit
to the Commission a 20-year financial forecast of anticipated annual revenues and
expenses and capital improvements.
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This forecast will serve as the foundation for the General Manager’s annual budget

proposal to the Commission.

3.2.2 Annual Operating Budget-RPreposals. The Commission is required to adopt an
operating budget no later than June 30 each fiscal year.

The Commission will adopt an operating budget that:

A. Is structurally balanced whereby current budgetary revenues are sufficient to
meet current budgetary expenses (those that are ongoing in nature);

B. Considers the affordability of rates within the context of local wealth and
income indicators;

C. Is at a level necessary to ensure the adequate maintenance and operations
of the wastewater system and ensure material compliance with all applicable
regulatory requirements;

D. Is sufficient to meet Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) for HRSD’s
defined benefit plans;

E. Includes amounts necessary to maintain the required reserves in amounts at
least equal to the minimum balances as defined in this Policy;

F. Enables HRSD to meet the debt service coverage targets defined in these
policies and the covenants contained in its Trust Agreements; and

G. Annually funds at least 15 percent of its capital improvement program in cash.

3.2.3 Capital Improvement Program (CIP). Each year HRSD will adopt a ten-year CIP
that identifies capital projects to be undertaken over the next ten years to meet
projected needs for regulatory compliance, infrastructure renewal, expansion,
replacing old or new facilities, principally Capital Assets and Locality Assets.

3.2.4 Budgetary Accounting and Control. HRSD operates in accordance with annual

operating and capital budgets prepared on a basis of accounting that is different
from generally accepted accounting principles.

A. The operating budget is adopted by department, with budgetary controls
exercised administratively by management at the department level. The
General Manager is authorized to transfer funds among departments without
further approval by the Commission. Appropriations lapse at the end of the
fiscal year. Valid, outstanding encumbrances (those for which performance
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3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

under a contract is expected in the next year) are re-appropriated without
further approval by the Commission and become part of the subsequent fiscal
year’s budget.

B. The capital budget is a ten-year plan of CIP spending based on estimated
project costs and prioritized schedules. Prior to beginning a capital project,
however, the-commencement-of-constructionforany-projeet, the Commission
must appropriate funding for the total project cost. If a project is expected to
exceed its initial-appropriationapproved budget, the-Coemmission-staff must
approve-any-seek additional funding from the Commission through a revised
supplemental appropriation.

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE. HRSD will comply with the debt service coverage
ratios included in its Trust Agreements. Beyond the Trust Agreements’ minimums,
HRSD will adopt operating and capital budgets that it projects will enable HRSD to
maintain a Debt Service Coverage Ratio — Adjusted at a minimum of 1.5 times on
Senior Bonds and 1.4 times on total debt.

DERIVATIVES. The Derivatives section outlined herein is intended to provide
general direction regarding the use, procurement and execution of Derivatives by
HRSD. The Policy is intended to relate to the use of various interest rate hedging
techniques, including the contractual exchange of different fixed and variable rate
payment streams through interest rate swap agreements. The Policy is not intended
to relate to other derivative products, such as hedges for fuel or other commodities
that HRSD may consider for hedging exposures other than to interest rates.

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING. Except as permitted by the
Subordinate Trust Agreement, HRSD will adhere to all Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). As permitted by the Subordinate Trust Agreement,
HRSD may present, or cause to be presented, certain calculations that reflect certain
adjustments that are not in accordance with GAAP.

HRSD will maintain a comprehensive framework of internal controls, and policies
and procedures.

Over a period of not more than every five years, HRSD under the direction of the
Finance Committee of the Commission will seek proposals from qualified firms of
certified public aeeeuntantsaccountants, including the-its current auditors if their
performance has been satisfactory, to perform an annual audit of HRSD's financial
statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT. HRSD will make diligent efforts to protect and preserve
HRSD assets through a Risk-risk Management-management program that
selectively-generally transfers risk (purchase insurance) for high severity-low
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3.7

4.0

4.1

frequency exposures and retains risk (self-insurance) for low severity-high frequency
exposures.

INTERNAL AUDIT. HRSD or its designee will conduct internal audits using a risk-
based approach. Such audit efforts will be approved and directed by the Finance
Committee of the Commission.

PROCEDURES

DEBT MANAGEMENT. HRSD’s debt management program represents an effort to
smooth out the fiscal impact of major capital investments while aligning the costs of
utility service with the payment of those who will actually use the service.

The proceeds of long-term indebtedness will not be used to finance current
operations or expenses for normal maintenance. Long-term indebtedness will be
structured such that financial obligations do not exceed the aggregate expected
useful lives of the assets financed. Short-term borrowing may be utilized for the
temporary funding of operational cash flow deficits or interim construction
requirements.

The most appropriate instrument for a proposed sale of debt shall be determined in
light of financing needs and expected market conditions at the time of sale.

4.1.1 Permitted Debt by Type.

A. Lease Financing. HRSD may use leasing for facilities or equipment if (1) it
can be demonstrated that this is the most cost effective or appropriate way to
secure financing, or (2) on small projects that do not warrant entry into the
bond market.

B. Installment Purchases or Conditional Sale Contracts. HRSD may utilize
installment purchase or conditional sale contracts having an original term of
one year or less.

C. Bond Anticipation Notes, Commercial Paper (CP) and Lines of Credit.
Each are typically short duration debt instruments issued to provide interim
financing and, due to their short duration, expose HRSD to interest rate risk
and market access risk upon renewal. Bond Anticipation Notes, Commercial
Paper and Lines of Credit may be used

() to provide interim financing designed to reduce the frequency of bond
sales, thereby reducing cost of issuance;
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(2) during times of high interest rates and when the expectation is that
interest rates will stabilize in the future or trend downward;

3 when market conditions are such that a Bond Anticipation Notes,
Commercial Paper or Lines of Credit may be more readily received in
the market than long-term debt; or

4) as an interim financing tool during the construction period for a
project(s) until the project(s) is placed into service and / or HRSD sells
long-term debt or is reimbursed through a clean water revolving loan
or WIFIA loan.

Long-Term Revenue Bonds. HRSD may issue long-term revenue bonds to
fund Capital Assets and Locality Assets.

Revenue Anticipation Notes. May be issued to meet HRSD’s operational
cash flow needs.

4.1.2 Guidelines on Debt Issuance.

A.

Trust Agreements-and, VRA Master Financing Agreement and WIFIA
Agreeents. HRSD will abide by the covenants contained in its Trust
Agreements, the -and-VRA Master Financing Agreement and the WIFIA
Agreements. As a matter of prudence, HRSD considers its financial
covenants to be minimum requirements to be exceeded.

Authorization. Prior to the issuance of debt, the Commission will pass a
resolution authorizing the financing arrangements and setting appropriate
limits and parameters for the anticipated financing.

Lowest Cost Financing. Generally, HRSD intends to pursue the lowest cost
of financing within the parameters of this Policy, the Trust Agreements, the
VRA Master Financing Agreement, the WIFIA Agreements and the Enabling
Act.

Cash Financing from Available Sources. HRSD intends to contribute at
least 15 percent of each year’s programmed-CIP in cash.

Project Costs Prior to Debt Issue. If project costs are incurred prior to the
issuance of debt, the Commission will pass a resolution documenting its
intent to be reimbursed from bond proceeds. As a general practice, the
Commission will consider and adopt a reimbursement resolution in
connection with the adoption of each fiscal year’s CIP.
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F. Variable Rate Debt and Bond Anticipation Notes. VRD and Bond
Anticipation Notes carry inherent interest rate risk. Such securities typically
have interest rates lower than fixed rate securities and offer the potential for
lower debt service costs over the term of the bond issue without regard to the
cost of Credit Enhancement. HRSD will consider using VRD when it
improves matching of assets and liabilities, potentially lowers debt service
costs, adds flexibility to HRSD’s capital structure, or diversifies HRSD’s
investor base.

(2) Debt service on VRD will be budgeted at a conservative rate based on
historical fluctuations in interest activity and current market
assumptions. Before issuing VRD, HRSD will determine how potential
volatility in the debt service will be funded and consider the impact of
various interest rate scenarios on its financial position and on various
debt ratios.

(2) HRSD does not intend to issue VRD in excess of 15 percent of its total
debt portfolio. This limitation, however does not apply to debt issued
as part of an interim financing program (e.g. Bond Anticipation Notes,
Lines of Credit, Commercial Paper) nor does it apply to hedged
variable rate debt. In addition, if HRSD can demonstrate historical and
projected sufficiency of offsetting principal and interest coverage from
short-term and variable rate investment assets held in unrestricted,
non-operating accounts, these assets may be netted from variable rate
liabilities.

G. Derivative Products. HRSD recognizes that the use of Derivatives may aid
HRSD in reducing the cost of capital and gaining flexibility in structuring its
debt portfolio. The use of such products is governed by the Derivatives
section of this policy.

H. Method of Sale. HRSD will select a method of sale it believes is the most
appropriate and economically advantageous in light of financial, market,
transaction-specific and HRSD-related conditions. Acceptable methods of
sale may include a competitive sale, a negotiated sale, a private placement,
or a direct institutional investor purchase.

l. Duration of Debt. HRSD will not issue debt for a period longer than the
weighted useful lives of the projects being financed. Pursuant to the Enabling
Act, HRSD cannot issue debt with a final maturity more than 40 years from
their-date-or-dates;-as-may-be-determined-by-the-Commissienits issuance
date. Factors to be considered when determining the final maturity of debt
include the average life of the assets being financed, relative level of interest
rates, and the-HRSD’s overall outstanding debt service.
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4.1.3 Debt Structure

A. Interest Rate Structure. HRSD may make use of both VRD and fixed—
ratefixed-rate debt in accordance with limitations set forth in this Policy.

B. Tax Status. Tax-exempt debt will be used whenever possible and
appropriate.

C. Maturity Structure. HRSD’s long-term debt may include serial and term
bonds. Other maturity structures may also be considered when demonstrated
to be advantageous to HRSD.

D. Coupon Structure. Fixed—rateFixed-rate debt may include par, discount,
and premium bonds, and may include current interest bonds and Capital
Appreciation Bonds.

E. Call Provisions. In order to preserve flexibility and refinancing opportunities,
HRSD debt shall generally be issued with Call Provisions. HRSD may
consider Call Provisions that are shorter than traditional or non-callable debt
or debt with yield maintenance features when warranted by market
conditions. For each transaction, various call option scenarios will be
evaluated so that the most beneficial can be utilized.

F. Credit Enhancement. HRSD may use Credit Enhancement when it is
economically advantageous to do so.

() When considering the use of Bond Insurance, HRSD will perform a
maturity-by-maturity analysis. The economic feasibility of Bond
Insurance will be analyzed based on the value of insurance as priced
to the earlier of each maturity’s’ first applicable call date and the
maturity date of such maturity. Bond Insurance will be used when
present value savings result or when such use permits HRSD to
incorporate less restrictive covenants into a transaction which results
in greater flexibility or lower user charges. HRSD may insure bonds in
maturities that are borderline from an economic feasibility standpoint if
warranted by other factors (e.g., use of insurance to attract investor
interest where certain bond maturities might otherwise be difficult to
sell).

(2) When considering the use of a Letter of Credit or Line of Credit as a
Credit Enhancement or Liquidity Facility, HRSD will examine the
economic feasibility thereof by taking into account the trading spread,
the cost of the Letter of Credit or Liquidity Facility and the effect on
interest costs of HRSD’s debt.
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G. Debt Service Reserve Fund. The Senior Trust Agreement requires HRSD

to fund a Debt Service Reserve Fund when certain debt service coverage and
liquidity ratios are not met. HRSD will fund such reserve when and if it is
required. The Subordinate Trust Agreement permits, but does not require,
the funding of a Debt Service Reserve Fund.

H. Capitalized Interest. Capitalized Interest increases the amount of debt that
is issued. If HRSD capitalizes interest on one or more series of
indebtedness, it will do so only for the period prior to the project being
financed is expected to be placed in service.

l. Refinancing of Debt. HRSD will refinance debt from time to time to achieve
debt service savings as market opportunities arise or if it determines that it is
beneficial for another compelling business reason. To refinance debt, HRSD
may use a range of financing tools including but not limited to tax-exempt
current refundings, taxable advance refundings, and forward delivery bonds.
HRSD’s Director of Finance will determine the appropriate financing tool
based on tax law, market conditions and the risks associated with each tool
(in addition to present value savings and refunding efficiency considerations).

When a refinancing is undertaken to achieve debt service savings, HRSD will
target minimum net present value savings of three percent of the amount
refinanced. As set forth above, HRSD may refinance debt that does not meet
this threshold for another compelling business reason. In addition, HRSD
may consider the efficiency of a proposed refinancing transaction and any
changes to the callability of debt after such refinancing. In any refinancing of
long-term debt, HRSD maintains a bias to not extend maturities.

J. Escrow Structuring. HRSD will utilize the least costly securities available in
structuring refinancing escrows. Unless State and Local Government
Securities (SLGS) are used, a certificate will be provided by a third party
agent stating that the securities were procured through an arms-length,
competitive bid process (in the case of open market securities), and that the
price paid for the securities was reasonable within federal guidelines. Under
no circumstances will an underwriter, agent or financial advisor sell escrow
securities to HRSD from its own account. HRSD will consult with Bond
Counsel in connection with any defeasance escrows.

K. Hiring of Professionals. All key members of the financial advisory team
including underwriter, financial advisor, bond counsel, and other professionals
will be selected in a manner consistent with HRSD’s procurement policy for
professional services.
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4.1.4 Underwriter Selection.

A.

Senior Manager Selection. HRSD will select a senior manager for any
proposed negotiated sale. The selection criteria will include but not be limited
to the following:

(1) The firm’s ability and experience in managing transactions similar to
that contemplated by HRSD;

(2) Prior knowledge and experience with HRSD;

3) The firm’s ability and willingness to risk capital and demonstration of
the firm’s capital availability and underwriting of unsold balances;

4) Quality and experience of personnel assigned to HRSD'’s
engagement;

5) Financing plan presented; and
(6) Cost, including underwriting fees and anticipated pricing.

Co-Manager Selection. Co-managers may be selected on the same bases
basis as the senior manager with the exception of underwriting fees, which
are determined by the senior manager. In addition to their qualifications, co-
managers appointed to specific transactions will be a function of transaction
size and the necessity to ensure maximum distribution of HRSD’s bonds.

Selling Groups. HRSD may establish selling groups in certain transactions.
To the extent that selling groups are used, HRSD may make appointments to
selling groups, as the transaction dictates.

Underwriter’s Counsel. In any negotiated sale of HRSD debt in which the
underwriter desires legal counsel, the appointment will be made by the senior
managing underwriter.

Underwriter’s Discount. HRSD will evaluate the proposed underwriter’s
discount against other proposals and/or comparable issues in the market.
Any additional expenses payable to an underwriter and paid out of the
Underwriter’s Discount must be substantiated.

Evaluation of Underwriter Performance. HRSD will evaluate each bond
sale after completion to assess the following: costs of issuance including
underwriters’ compensation, pricing of the bonds in terms of the overall
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interest cost and on a maturity-by-maturity basis, the distribution of bonds and
sales credits, and the use of capital by the underwriters to take down bonds.

Syndicate Policies. For each negotiated transaction, HRSD will establish
syndicate policies that will describe the priority of orders and designation
policies governing the upcoming sale.

Designation Policies. To encourage the pre-marketing efforts of each
member of the underwriting team, orders for HRSD’s bonds will be net

designated, unless otherwise expressly stated. HRSD shall require the
senior manager to:

Q) Fairly allocate bonds to other managers and the selling group.

(2) Comply with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’'s (MRSB)
regulations governing the priority of orders and allocations.

3) Within 10 working business days after the sale date, submit to HRSD
a detail of orders, allocations and other relevant information pertaining
to HRSD’s sale.

415 Consultants.

A.

Financial Advisor. HRSD will select a financial advisor (or advisors) to
assist in its debt issuance and debt administration processes. Such financial
advisor(s) will be an Independent Registered Municipal Advisor within the
meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Selection of
HRSD’s financial advisor(s) will be based on, but not limited to, the following
criteria:

Q) Experience in providing consulting services to entities similar to
HRSD;

(2 Knowledge and experience in structuring and analyzing bond issues;
(3) Experience and reputation of assigned personnel; and

(4) Fees and expenses.

Bond Counsel. HRSD debt will include a written opinion by legal counsel
affirming that HRSD is authorized to issue the proposed debt, that HRSD has
met all legal requirements necessary for issuance, and, if the interest on the

debt to be issued is to be exempt under the IRS Code, a determination
consistent therewith. The approving opinion and other documents relating to
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the issuance of debt will be prepared by counsel with extensive experience in
public finance and tax issues. The Bond Counsel will be selected by HRSD.

Conflicts of Interest. HRSD requires that its consultants and advisors
provide objective advice and analysis, maintain the confidentiality of HRSD
financial plans, and be free from any conflict of interest. In no case will
HRSD’s financial advisor be permitted to underwrite any portion of HRSD’s
bond issues, whether sold competitively or negotiated.

Disclosure by Financing Team Members. All financing team members will
be required to provide full and complete disclosure, relative to agreements
with other financing team members and outside parties. The extent of
disclosure may vary depending on the nature of the transaction. However, in
general terms, no agreements will be permitted which could compromise the
firm’s ability to provide independent advice which is solely in HRSD’s best
interests or which could reasonably be perceived as a conflict of interest.

4.1.6 Communication and Disclosure.

A.

Rating Agencies [NRSROs]. HRSD seeks to maintain the highest credit
ratings it believes appropriate for its debt without compromising the delivery
of its basic core services. The Director of Finance will manage relationships
with the rating analysts assigned to HRSD by the NRSROs.

Investors, Bond Insurers, Liquidity Providers. The Director of Finance will
manage relationships using both informal and formal methods to disseminate
information.

Continuing Disclosure. HRSD recognizes that ongoing disclosure is
imperative to maintaining the high credit quality of its debt and its reputation
in the credit markets. HRSD will comply with all of its contractual obligations
and applicable law and will meet such disclosure requirements in a timely and
thorough manner.

Arbitrage Compliance. HRSD will maintain a system of record keeping and
reporting in order to comply with the Arbitrage Rebate Compliance
Requirements of the IRS Code.

Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures. Separate from this policy, HRSD
will maintain and follow post-issuance compliance procedures. Such
procedures will include provisions regarding continuing disclosure and
arbitrage and private use compliance, among others.
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4.2 DERIVATIVES.

4.2.1 Approach and Objectives. Interest Rate Swaps and options (swaps) are
Derivatives that can help HRSD meet important financial objectives. Properly used,
these instruments can increase HRSD'’s financial flexibility, provide opportunities for
interest rate savings or enhanced investment yields, and help HRSD manage its
balance sheet through better matching of assets and liabilities.

A. Specific Objectives for Using Interest Rate Swaps. HRSD may consider
the use of specific Interest Rate Swaps if they meet one or more of the
benefits previously described in this Policy or if they:

() Result in an expected lower net borrowing cost than traditional debt
alternatives;

(2) Result in an improved capital structure (e.g., altered pattern of debt
service payments or to create variable rate exposure) or better
asset/liability matching;

3) Cap, limit, or hedge HRSD'’s exposure to changes in interest rates on
a particular financial transaction; or

4) Provide a specific benefit not otherwise available.

(5) Swaps must not be speculative or create unreasonable risk. Each
swap will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis to determine whether
or not the level of risk is appropriate for HRSD. Examples of swaps
that HRSD considers speculative and which create unreasonable risk
include, without limitation:

Basis Swaps;

Constant Maturity Swaps;

Knock-in Options on Swaps;

Interest Rate Swaps that including a floating index multiplier
greater than 1.0 (e.g., three times SIFMA); and

Interest Rate Swaps that are not associated with a specific bond
issue.

(6) HRSD prefers Swaps that meet the “consistent critical terms method”
for evaluating the effectiveness of Interest Rate Swaps as defined by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board in Statement #53:
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments.
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B. Prohibited Interest Rate Swap Features. HRSD will not use Interest Rate
Swaps that:

Q) Are speculative or create extraordinary leverage or risk;

(2) Lack adequate liquidity to terminate without incurring a significant
bid/ask spread,;

3) Provide insufficient price transparency to allow reasonable valuation;
or

4) Are not reasonably uniform to the risk evaluation criteria by this Policy.

C. Legal Authority. As stated in Section 29 of HRSD’s Enabling Act, as
amended by the Virginia General Assembly on March 11, 2008,

“With respect to contracts concerning interest rates, currency, cash
flow and other basis, the District may enter into any contract that the
Commission determines to be necessary or appropriate to place any
obligation or investment of the District, as represented by bonds or the
investment of their proceeds, in whole or in part, on the interest rate,
cash flow or other basis desired by the Commission. Such contracts
may include, without limitation, contracts commonly known as interest
rate swap agreements, rate locks, forward purchase agreements, and
futures or contracts providing for payments based on levels of, or
changes in, interest rates. Such contracts or arrangements may be
entered into by the District in connection with, or incidental to, entering
into or maintaining any (i) agreement that secures bonds or (i)
investment, or contract providing for investment, otherwise authorized
by law. These contracts and arrangements may contain such
payment, security, default, remedy, and other terms and conditions as
determined by the Commission, after giving due consideration to the
creditworthiness of the counterparty or other obligated party, including
any rating by any nationally recognized rating agency.”

All Derivative contracts require Commission approval prior to execution.

D. Permitted Instruments. HRSD may utilize the following financial products
on a current or forward basis, after identifying the objective(s) to be realized
and assessing the attendant risks.

(2) Interest Rate Swaps, including fixed and floating rate swaps.
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(2) Options, including Swaptions, Interest Rate Caps, Interest Rate
Floors, and Interest Rate Collars.

HRSD prefers Interest Rate Swaps that have strong price transparency and
which are of a type referred to as “plain vanilla,” e.g., a fixed to floating rate
SIFMA -based Interest Rate Swap.

Interest Rate Swaps will be subject to the legal provisions set forth in HRSD’s
Trust Agreements, applicable debt documents, and statutory requirements.

E. Procedure for Submission and Execution. HRSD may consider Interest
Rate Swaps that are either presented as proposals or that are developed by
HRSD in consultation with its financial advisor and legal counsel. HRSD will
give detailed consideration only to proposals that HRSD, in its sole discretion,
believes will offer the projected savings or other benefits and will have the
ability to meet one or more of the objectives outlined herein.

(2) When feasible, Interest Rate Swaps should be competitively procured
either under a competitive sealed bid or competitive negotiation (e.g.
initiated via RFP). On a product-by-product basis, HRSD will have
authority to negotiate the procurement of financial instruments that
have customized or specific attributes designed for HRSD.

(2 For both competitive and negotiated procurements, the execution of
any Interest Rate Swap transaction will be subject to receipt of a
fairness opinion from HRSD’s financial advisor, finding that the terms
and conditions of the swap reflect a fair market value of such
transaction as of the date and time of its execution.

(3) The execution of all Interest Rate Swaps will be subject to receipt of
an opinion from a law firm with extensive experience in public finance
and tax issues that the contract is a legal, valid and binding obligation
of HRSD that complies with applicable law and has no adverse effect
on the tax status of any related bonds.

F. Interest Rate Swap Analysis and Participant Requirements. In
connection with any Interest Rate Swap, HRSD, its financial advisor and legal
counsel will review the proposed transaction and outline considerations
associated with the transaction. Such a review will include the following:

() The identification of the proposed benefit and potential risks, which will
include, but not necessarily be limited to, those risks outlined in this
Policy;
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(2) Analysis of potential savings and stress testing of the proposed
transaction;

3 Fixed versus variable rate and Interest Rate Swap exposure;

(4) To the extent HRSD deems relevant, any rating reports or criteria
regarding Interest Rate Swaps by rating agencies; and

(5) Legal constraints.

G. Interest Rate Swap Risks. In reviewing proposed or possible Interest Rate
Swaps, HRSD will consider at a minimum each of the following types of risks,
as applicable:

(1) Counterparty Risk. The risk of a payment default on a an Interest
Rate Swap by a counterparty.

(2 Termination Risk. The risk that an Interest Rate Swap has a
negative value and HRSD owes a “breakage” fee if the contract has to
be terminated.

(3) Tax Risk. A mismatch between changes in the rate or price on
HRSD’s underlying debt and the Interest Rate Swap caused by a
reduction or elimination in the benefits of the tax exemption for
municipal bonds, e.g. a tax cut that results in an increase in the ratio of
tax-exempt to taxable yields.

4 Basis Risk. A mismatch between the rate on HRSD’s underlying debt
and the rate paid under the Interest Rate Swap (for example, an issue
of tax-exempt Variable Rate Debt that bears interest at a variable rate
equal to 67% of LIBOR-SOFR while HRSD receives 80% of LIBOR
SOFR under the swap.

(5) Liguidity/Remarketing Risk. The risk that HRSD cannot secure a
cost-effective renewal of a Letter or Line of Credit or suffers a failed
remarketing with respect to its Variable Rate Debt.

(6) Rollover Risk. The risk that the maturity of an Interest Rate Swap
does not match maturity of the related debt or asset.

H. Counterparty Risk Assessment. HRSD will only enter into an Interest Rate
Swap with highly rated financial institutions. Credit criteria for financial
institutions are as follows:
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(1) The institutions’ long-term, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations
are rated at the time of execution of the Interest Rate Swap by at least
one rating agency at least “Aa3” by Moody’s or “AA” by S&P, or “AA”
by Fitch and by at least one other rating agency at no lower than “A2”
by Moody’s, “A” by S&P, or “A” by Fitch; or

(2) The institutions’ obligations under the Interest Rate Swap and the
Credit Support Annex are unconditionally guaranteed by a bank or
non-bank financial institution the long-term, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of which are rated at the time of execution
of the swap by at least one credit agency at least “Aa3” by Moody’s or
“AA” by S&P or “AA” by Fitch and by at least one other rating agency
at no lower than “A2” by Moody’s, “A” by S&P, or “A” by Fitch.

In the event of downgrade of an Interest Rate Swap counterparty
below the minimal rating standard set forth above, the counterparty will
be required to:

a. Provide a substitute guarantor or assign the swap contract to
an acceptable counterparty meeting the rating criteria, or

b. Provide collateral as described in the Collateral section of this
Policy.

l. Benefit Expectation. Financial transactions using Interest Rate Swaps or
other Derivatives related to a debt issue should generate at least two percent
or greater projected debt service savings than a traditional debt alternative.
Such savings analysis will include, where applicable, the consideration of the
probability (based on historical interest rate indices, where applicable, or
other accepted analytic techniques) of the realization of savings for the
Derivative structure. The savings target requirement is intended to reflect the
complexity and risk of derivative financial instruments, and should include a
risk adjustment for other factors. For example, if the underlying debt is
callable and the Interest Rate Swap is not, then the analysis should include a
risk adjustment for this factor.

In determining any benefit in implementing an Interest Rate Swap, the cost of
remarketing, in addition to the cost of credit enhancement or liquidity fees, will
be added to the projected variable rate. Such a calculation should consider
the trading performance of comparable indebtedness and any trading
premium resulting from a specific form of credit enhancement or liquidity
and/or any impact related to broader industry trends.
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Hedging Derivatives. When utilizing a Derivative to cap, limit or hedge
HRSD’s exposure to changes in interest rates, HRSD will evaluate various
interest rate scenarios and the estimated impact on projected wastewater
rates.

Legal and Contractual Requirements. HRSD will use standard
International Swap and Derivatives Association, Inc. swap documentation,
including the Schedule to the Master Agreement and a Credit Support Annex,
and related protocols. HRSD may use additional documentation if the
product is proprietary or HRSD deems in its sole discretion that such
documentation is otherwise in its interest. The Interest Rate Swap agreement
between HRSD and each counterparty will include payment, term, security,
collateral, default, remedy, termination, and other terms, conditions,
provisions and safeguards as HRSD, in consultation with its legal counsel,
deems necessary or desirable.

Legal Terms of Swaps. Terms and conditions of any Interest Rate Swap
agreement will be negotiated by HRSD in the best interests of HRSD. Swap
documentation and terms should include the following:

Q) Downgrade provisions triggering termination based on HRSD'’s credit
rating will in no event be less advantageous than those permitting
termination based on a downgrade of the counterparty.

(2) Governing law for swaps will be New York law to the extent permitted
by law, but should reflect that HRSD’s authorization of the related
agreement is governed by Virginia law.

3) The specified debt related to credit events in any swap agreement
should be narrowly drafted and refers only to specific debt.

(4) Collateral thresholds will be set on a sliding scale reflective of credit
ratings (see Collateral Section).

(5) Eligible collateral will be as set forth in the Collateral Section.

(6) Termination value will be established by “market quotation”
methodology, which involves the solicitation of quotations from
unrelated brokers regarding the valuation of the swaps.

Notional Amount. HRSD will limit the aggregate notional amount of
derivatives to an amount not to exceed 20 percent of aggregate outstanding
debt.
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To the extent that HRSD is party to multiple derivatives contracts at any given
time, HRSD will seek to diversify its counterparty credit risk by limiting its
credit exposure to any single counterparty.

N. Final Maturity. The final maturity of any Interest Rate Swap will not extend
beyond the lesser of the final maturity date of HRSD’s related debt and the
expiration date of any Letter of Credit or Liquidity Facility on the related bonds
unless HRSD has the right to cancel the swap agreement without cost on
such expiration date.

O. Termination Provisions. Interest Rate Swaps will contain provisions
granting HRSD the right to optionally terminate an Interest Rate Swap at any
time over its term. Such a provision will be required even if the termination is
at market. In general, exercising the right to terminate an agreement should
produce a benefit to HRSD, either through the receipt of a payment from a
termination or, if the termination payment is made by HRSD, in conjunction
with the conversion of the related indebtedness to a more beneficial interest
rate mode or mitigates a risk to HRSD, as will be determined by HRSD in its
sole discretion.

Any termination payment will be established by a “market quotation”
methodology, unless HRSD deems an alternate methodology to be
appropriate. HRSD'’s Director of Finance will provide a written report to the
Commission with respect to any termination, including the reason(s) why the
swap was terminated.

P. Collateral. As part of any swap, HRSD will require collateralization or other
forms of credit enhancement to secure any or all swap payment obligations.
As appropriate, HRSD, in consultation with its financial advisor and legal
counsel, will require collateral or other credit enhancement to be posted by
each swap counterparty as follows:

Q) Each counterparty to HRSD will be required to post collateral if the
long-term credit rating of the counterparty or its guarantor falls below
the requirements outlined in the Counterparty Risk Assessment
section of this Policy. Additional collateral for further decreases in
credit ratings of a counterparty will be posted by the counterparty in
accordance with the provisions contained in the related Collateral
Support Annex. Threshold amounts for collateral posting will be
determined by HRSD on a case-by-case basis.

(2 In determining maximum uncollateralized exposure, HRSD will
consider financial exposure that it may have to the same corporate
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entities through other forms of financial dealings, such as commercial
paper investments.

3 Collateral will be deposited with a third party trustee, or as mutually
agreed upon between HRSD and the counterparty.

4) A list of acceptable securities that may be posted as collateral and the
valuation of such collateral will be determined and mutually agreed
upon during negotiation of the swap agreement with each swap
counterparty. A complete list of acceptable securities and valuation
percentages is included in the Acceptable Collateral section of the
Policy.

5) The market value of the collateral will be determined on at least a
weekly basis, or more frequently if HRSD determines it is in its best
interest given the specific collateral.

Ongoing Management. HRSD will seek to maximize the benefits and
minimize the risks it carries by actively managing its Interest Rate Swap
program. This will entail frequent monitoring of market conditions for
emergent opportunities and risks. Active management may require
modification of existing positions including, for example:

Early full or partial termination;
Shortening or lengthening the term of Interest Rate Swaps; or
Sale or purchase of options.

Legal modification to an existing swap will require approval from the
Commission. In modifying any swap, HRSD will fulfill all terms of this Policy
and refer back to the original procurement and execution procedures outlined
in this Policy.

Ongoing Reporting Requirements. HRSD will take steps to ensure that
there is full and complete disclosure of all Swaps to the Commission, to
Rating Agencies and to EMMA. HRSD will also present a summary
description of its swaps in its disclosure documents.

HRSD will provide a written report regarding the status of all Swap
agreements to the Commission at least on a semi-annual basis and will
include the following:

() A description of all outstanding swap agreements, including, if and
when applicable, bond series, type of Swap, rates paid and received
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by HRSD, total notional amount, average life of each swap agreement,
remaining term of each Swap agreement and covenant compliance;

(2) Highlights of all material changes to swap agreements or new swap
agreements entered into by HRSD since the last report;
(3) The credit rating of each Swap counterparty and credit enhancer
insuring swap payments, if any;
(4) A summary of Swap agreements that were terminated or that have
expired;
(5) A mark-to-market valuation of swap agreements and the source of the
valuation, which HRSD may use for financial reporting purposes; and
(6) A summary of Collateral postings.
S. Acceptable Collateral.
Collateral Requirement
Example:
Valuation $ Value Based
Security Percentage* on $1.0 Million
Cash 100% $1.0 million
(x) Negotiable debt obligations issued by the
U.S. Treasury Department or GNMA, or
(y) Mortgage-backed securities issued by GNMA
(but with respect to either (x) or (y) excluding
interest only or principal only Stripped
Securities, securities representing residual
interests in mortgage pools, or securities that
are not listed on a national securities
exchange or regularly quoted in a national
guotation service) and in each case having a
remaining maturity of:
less than one year 98% $1.02 million
greater than one year 95% $1.05 million

*To calculate the dollar amount required to satisfy the collateral requirement, divide
the collateral requirement by the valuation percentage shown above.
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4.3

43.1

Conformance with Dodd-Frank Act. Itis the intent of HRSD to conform to
the requirements relating to legislation and regulations for over-the-counter
derivatives transactions under Title VII of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Transparency and Accountability Act of 2010, as amended from time to time,
and the regulations promulgated thereunder (herein collectively referred to as
Dodd-Frank). It is the policy of HRSD that (i) each swap advisor engaged or
to be engaged by HRSD will function as the designated qualified investment
representative of HRSD (Designated Qualified Independent Representative
or QIR); (ii) each swap advisor agrees to meet and meets the requirements
specified in the Commodity Futures Trading Commission Regulation
23.450(b)(1) or any successor regulation thereto (hereinafter referred to as
the QIR Regulation); (iii) each swap advisor provide a written certification to
HRSD to the effect that such swap advisor agrees to meet and meets the
requirements specified in the QIR Regulation; (iv) HRSD monitor the
performance of each swap advisor consistent with the requirements specified
in the QIR regulation; (v) HRSD exercise independent judgment in
consultation with its swap advisor in evaluating all recommendations, if any
presented by any counterparty with respect to transactions authorized
pursuant to this Financial Policy; (vi) HRSD rely on the advice of its swap
advisor with respect to transactions authorized pursuant to this Financial
Policy and not rely on recommendations, if any, presented by any
counterparty with respect to transactions authorized pursuant to this Financial
Policy; (vii) HRSD comply with all recordkeeping reporting and certification
requirements for end-users as applicable under the Commodity Exchange
Act.

INVESTMENT

Ethics and Conflicts ©fof Interest. The Director of Finance and other employees
involved in the investment process will comply with the Code of Virginia Section 2.2-
3100 et seq., the State and Local Government Conflict of Interests Act (the “Conflict
of Interests Act”).

A.

Specifically, no officer or employee will:

Q) Accept any money, loan, gift, favor, service, or business or
professional opportunity that reasonably tends to influence him in the
performance of his official duties;

(2 Accept any business or professional opportunity when he knows there
is a reasonable likelihood that the opportunity is being afforded to
influence him in the performance of his official duties; or

(3) Violate any of the provision of the Conflict of Interests Act.
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All employees involved in the investment process will refrain from personal
business activity that could conflict with the proper execution and
management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to
make impartial decisions.

All employees involved in the investment process will disclose to the Director
of Finance and the General Manager any material interest in financial
institutions with which they conduct business. They will further disclose any
personal financial or investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the investment portfolio.

All employees involved in the investment process will refrain from undertaking
personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom
business is conducted on behalf of HRSD.

4.3.2 Operating Funds

A.

Scope. Except for funds maintained in trust for retirement and health and
welfare benefits for employees and/or retirees, this Policy applies to all
HRSD’s cash and investments (the Investment Portfolio). The Policy will
apply to such monies from the time of receipt until the time the monies leave
HRSD’s accounts. Although these assets may be pooled for investment
purposes, they may be segregated as necessary for accounting and
budgetary reporting purposes.

Objectives.

() All investments will be in compliance with the Code of Virginia
Sections 2.2-4400 et seq. and 2.2-4500 et seq. and the Trust
Agreements.

(2) The cash management and investment activities of HRSD will be
conducted in a manner which is consistent with applicable law and
prevailing prudent business practices which may be applied by other
public organizations of similar size and financial resources.

3 The Investment Portfolio will be managed to accomplish the following
fundamental goals:

a. Safety of Principal. The single most important objective of the
investment program is the preservation of principal of those
funds within the Investment Portfolio.

b. Maintenance of Liquidity. The Investment Portfolio will be
managed at all times with sufficient Liquidity to meet all daily
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and seasonal needs, to fund special projects and other
operational requirements which are either known or which
might reasonably be anticipated, and to provide adequate Self-
Liquidity, if applicable.

C. Maximizing Return. The Investment Portfolio will be managed
S0 as to maximize the return on investments within the context
and parameters set forth by the safety and liquidity objectives
above.

C. Standard of Prudence. All investments will be in compliance with the Code
of Virginia Sections 2.2-4400 et seq. and 2.2-4500 et seq. and the Trust
Agreements. Public funds held and invested by HRSD are held for the
benefit of its ratepayers and any investment of such funds will be made solely
in the interest of the ratepayers and with the care, skill, prudence, and
diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a person acting in a
like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an
enterprise of a like character and with like aims.

The Director of Finance and other HRSD employees acting in accordance
with written procedures, including this Policy and exercising due diligence will
be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security’s performance,
provided that deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion to
the Commission.

D. General Account Structure. In order to meet HRSD’s general objectives,
the Investment Portfolio is divided into three major investment strategies: an
Operating Liquidity Strategy, a Total Return Strategy and a Capital
Investment Strategy.

(1) The Operating Liquidity Strategy consists of funds that are expected
to provide for HRSD’s day-to-day disbursement and operational
needs. As such, Liquidity is the emphasis in this strategy. This
strategy will be funded to meet all known operating needs. Selection of
investment maturities will be consistent with the cash requirements of
HRSD in order to minimize the forced sale of securities prior to
maturity. Itis expected that a portion of the Operating Liquidity
Strategy will be invested in highly liquid funds such as money market
funds, overnight repurchase agreements, bank deposit accounts, or
other short-term investment vehicles. Funds invested pursuant to this
strategy may be utilized to provide Self-Liquidity on debt financings.

(2) The Total Return Strategy consists of operating funds that are not
expected to be a major source of HRSD’s day-to-day disbursement
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requirements and operational needs. The Total Return Strategy may
therefore be invested in longer-term securities in order to generate an
investment return, which, over time, is higher than the total return of
the Operating Liquidity Strategy. Funds invested pursuant to this
strategy may be utilized to provide Self-Liquidity on debt financings.

3) The Capital Investment Strategy is the source for capital
improvement disbursements. The strategy will consist of unspent debt
proceeds and unspent HRSD cash contributions to its CIP. Itis
anticipated that investments will be made in the Capital Investment
Strategy with maturity dates matching the anticipated expenditures or
invested in highly liquid funds such as money market funds, overnight
repurchase agreements, bank deposits or other short-term investment
vehicles.

E. Authorized Investments. Under the Trust Agreements, the Director of
Finance may invest in such of the following securities that are in compliance
with the Investment of Public Funds Act (Code of Virginia Section 2.2-4500 et
seq.), the Government Non-Arbitrage Investment Act (Code of Virginia
Section 2.2-4700 et seq.) and any successor statues as from time to time
amended. The Director of Finance, however, may impose additional
requirements and restrictions in order to ensure that HRSD’s goals are met.

(2) U.S. Treasury Obligations. TIPS, Treasury Bills, Treasury Notes and
Treasury Bonds, and any other obligation or security issued by or
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America.

The final maturity will not exceed a period of five years from the time of
purchase.

(2 Federal Agency Obligation. Bonds, notes and other obligations of
Federal Agencies, provided that such investments must be rated in
one of the two highest rating categories by at least one NRSRO and or
the have the same rating as those of U.S. Treasury obligations. The
final maturity will not exceed a period of five years from the time of
purchase.

(3) Municipal Obligations. Bonds, notes and other general obligation
indebtedness, upon which there is no default, with a rating of at least
“AA” from S&P and “Aa” from Moody’s, maturing within five years of
the date of purchase, and otherwise meeting the requirements of Code
of Virginia Section 2.2-4501. However, HRSD is prohibited from
purchasing its own debt for the purpose of investing its Operating
Funds. Please see the Self-Liquidity section of this policy for
important information related to Self-Liquidity and HRSD'’s purchase of
its own debt.
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4)

()

(6)

(7)

(8)

9)

(10)

Commercial Paper. Commercial Paper issued by domestic
corporations (corporations organized and operating under the laws of
the United States or any state thereof) provided that the issuing
corporation, or its guarantor, has a short-term debt rating of no less
than “A-1" (or its equivalent) from at least two of the NRSROs.

Bankers’ Acceptances. Issued by domestic banks or a federally
chartered office of a foreign bank, which are eligible for purchase by
the Federal Reserve System with a maturity of 180 days or less. The
issuing corporation, or its guarantor, must have a short-term debt
rating of no less than “A-1" (or its equivalent) from at least two of the
NRSROs.

Corporate Notes. Corporate Notes with a rating of at least “Aa” by
Moody’s and at least “AA” by S&P. [The final maturity will not exceed
a period of five years from the time of purchase.]

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit and Bank Deposit Notes.
Negotiable CDs and negotiable bank deposit notes of domestic banks
and domestic offices of foreign banks with ratings of at least “A-1" from
P-1 from Moody'’s, for maturities of one year or less, and a rating of at
least “AA” from S&P and “Aa” from -Moody’s, for maturities over one
year. The final maturity may not exceed a period of five years from the
time of purchase.

Money Market Mutual Funds (Open-Ended Investment Funds).
Shares in open-end, no-load investment funds provided such funds
are registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940,
provided that the fund is rated at least “AAAmM” or the equivalent by an
NRSRO. The mutual fund must comply with the diversification, quality
and maturity requirements of SEC Rule 2(a)-7, or any successor rule,
provided the investments by such funds are restricted to investments
otherwise permitted by the Code of Virginia for political sub-divisions.

Local Government Investment Pool. A specialized fund pursuant to
Code of Virginia Section 2.2-4000 et seq. designed to offer a
convenient, liquid, and cost-effective investment vehicle for public
entities. The Fund is administered by the Treasury Board of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

State Non-Arbitrage Pool Fund. The pooled investment vehicle
established for the investment of bond proceeds under the
Government Non-Arbitrage Investment Act (Virginia Code Section 2.2-
4700 et seq.).
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(11)

Repurchase Agreements. In overnight, term and open repurchase
agreements provided that the following conditions are met:

a. The contract is fully secured by deliverable U.S. Treasury Bills,
Bonds or Notes or Federal Agency obligations as described in
paragraph 1 and 2 above (with a maximum maturity of five
years), having a market value at all times of at least 102
percent of the amount of the contract;

b. A Master Repurchase Agreement or specific written
Repurchase Agreement governs the transaction;

C. The securities are free and clear of any lien and held by an
independent third-party custodian acting solely as agent for
HRSD, provided such third party is not the seller under the
Repurchase Agreement;

d. A perfected first security interest under the Uniform
Commercial Code in accordance with book entry procedures
prescribed at 31 C.F.R. 306.1 et seq. or 31 C.F.R. 350.0 et
seq. in such securities is created for the benefit of HRSD;

e. For Repurchase Agreements with terms to maturity of greater
than one day, HRSD will value the collateral securities daily
and require that if additional collateral is required then that
collateral must be delivered within one business day (if a
collateral deficiency is not corrected within this time frame, the
collateral securities will be liquidated);

f. The counterparty is a:

Q) Primary government securities dealer who reports daily
to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; or

(2) A bank, savings and loan association, or diversified
securities broker-dealer having at least $5 billion in
assets and $500 million in capital and subject to
regulation of capital standards by any state or federal
regulatory agency; and

3) The counterparty meets the following criteria: A long-
term credit rating of at least ‘AA’ or the equivalent from
an NRSRO; has been in operation for at least five years;
is reputable among market participants.
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(12) Collateralized Bank Deposits. CDs and other evidence of deposit as
permitted by Section 2.2.4400 et seq. of the Code of Virginia.

(13) U.S. Dollar Denominated Supra Sovereign Agency Bonds. Bonds
and other obligations issued, guaranteed or assumed by the
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, by the Asian
Development Bank or by the African Development Bank, provided that
the obligation is rated by an NRSRO the higher of “AA” or the rating on
U.S. Treasury obligations.

(14) Virginia Investment Pool Trust Fund (VIP) Stable NAV Liquidity
Pool. This pool supports the cash management needs of
municipalities, other governmental agencies and political subdivisions
in Virginia that must manage investments conservatively. The
objective of the fund is to obtain a competitive market yield on
available financial assets consistent with the constraints imposed by
the safety objectives, cash flow considerations and the laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia that govern the placement of public funds
while facilitating daily liquidity and the maintenance of a stable Net
Asset Value, with the price of shares in the portfolio targeted to
maintain a value of $1.00. The fund is governed by the Board of
Trustees of the VIP.

(15) VIP 1-3 Year High-Quality Bond Fund. This fund is a fixed income
investment portfolio designed to provide another pooled investment
alternative to those Participants that have excess funds and that have
an investment horizon greater than that of money market instruments,
typically one year or longer. The investment objective is to:

a. Exceed the return of the Bank of America Merrill Lynch One-to
Three-Year U.S. Corporate & Government Index over three-
year periods

b. Preserve capital

The VIP 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund will generally invest in
securities with greater potential returns and risk than those offered by
money market type instruments. The fund is governed by the Board of
Trustees of the VIP.
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E. Portfolio Diversification. The Investment Portfolio will be diversified by

security type and institution. The maximum percentage of the portfolio
permitted in each eligible security is as follows:

Permitted Investment

Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bills
Federal Agency Obligations
Municipal Obligations
Commercial Paper
Bankers’ Acceptances
Corporate Notes
Negotiable CDs and Bank Deposit
Notes
Permitted Investment

Money Market Mutual Funds
LGIP
SNAP Fund (bond proceeds only)
Repurchase Agreements
Collateralized Bank Deposits
Supra Sovereign Agency Bonds
VIP Stable NAV Liquidity Pool
VIP 1-3 Year High-Quality Bond
Fund

Sector Limit Issuer
Limit
100% 100%
100% 35%
15% 5%
25% 5%
25% 5%
25% 3%
25% 3%
Sector Limit Issuer
Limit
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
35% 35%
100% 100%
15% 10%
100% 100%
100% 100%

The Sector Limit and Issuer Limit will be applied to the total Investment

Portfolio value at the date of acquisition.

Maximum Maturity. Maintenance of adequate Liquidity to meet the cash
flow needs of HRSD is essential. Accordingly, to the extent possible, the
investment portfolio will be structured in a manner that ensures sufficient cash
is available to meet anticipated Liquidity needs. Whenever practical,
selection of investment maturities will be consistent with the known cash
requirements of HRSD in order to minimize the forced sale of securities prior

to maturity. For the purposes of the Investment Policy:

Q) The Funds Invested under the Operating Liquidity Strategy will be
invested in short-term investments maturing in 12 months or less.
Because of the difficulties inherent in accurately forecasting all cash
flow requirements, at least 25 percent of the funds invested under this
strategy will be continuously invested in readily available funds such
as bank deposit accounts, money market funds and overnight
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repurchase agreements and at least 75 percent of this strategy will be
invested in securities with maturities less than 180 days.

(2) The Funds Invested in pursuant to Total Return Strategy will be
invested in permitted investments with a stated maturity of not more
than five years from the date of purchase. To manage volatility, the
Director of Finance will from time-to-time determine an investment
duration target which will not exceed three years and which will be
comparable to the selected performance standards as identified under
the Performance Standards section of this Policy.

3 The Funds invested under the Capital Investment Strategy will be
invested in compliance with the specific requirements of the Trust
Agreements. However, in no case will bond proceeds, or funds set
aside for capital projects, be invested in securities with a term to
maturity that exceeds the expected disbursement date of those
monies.

4) Accounts credited to Debt Service Reserve funds with longer term
investment horizons may be invested in securities exceeding five
years, provided that such investments will mature no later than the first
call date for the related bonds.

G. Security Downgrades. If any security held in the Investment Portfolio is
downgraded below “AA” or equivalent rating by any NRSRO, the security will
be sold within 180 days of such downgrade.

H. Self-Liquidity. In the event that HRSD determines to provide Self-Liquidity
for any issuance of CP, VRDs, or related indebtedness, funds invested under
the Operating Liquidity Strategy and the Total Return Strategy may be used
to support such obligations, if necessary, provided that HRSD will not be
legally obligated to pledge such funds for such purpose. The investments
identified to provide Self-Liquidity coverage will be sufficient to meet the
quality, volatility, liquidity, and maturity guidelines of the NRSRO’s then
providing ratings on HRSD’s debt obligations. If needed, HRSD is permitted
to purchase its own debt on a temporary basis or for the retirement of the
debt. Such purchase will not be limited to the sector and issuer diversification
limits as set forth in the Portfolio Diversification section of this policy or the
maximum maturity requirement as set forth in the Capital Investment Strategy
section of this Policy.

l. Investment of Bond Proceeds. HRSD intends to comply with all applicable
sections of the Internal Revenue Code as it relates to Arbitrage Rebate and
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the investment of bond proceeds. All investment records will be maintained
to ensure compliance with all regulations.

J. Collateralization of Bank Deposits. All bank deposits of HRSD should be
considered Public Deposits as defined by Code of Virginia Security for Public
Deposits Act (Section 2.2-4400 et seq.) and all deposits must be made with
Qualified Public Depositories within the meaning of such law.

K. Selection of Broker/Dealers. All broker/dealers who desire to provide
investment services to HRSD will be provided with current copies of HRSD’s
Financial Policy. Before an organization can provide investment services to
HRSD, it must confirm in writing that it has received and reviewed HRSD'’s
Financial Policy.

() At the request of the Director of Finance, broker/dealers will supply
HRSD with information sufficient to adequately evaluate their financial
capacity and creditworthiness. The following information will be
provided:

@) Audited financial statements;
(b) Regulatory reports on financial condition;

(c) Proof of Financial Institution Regulatory Authority (FINRA)
certification and of state registration;

(d) A sworn statement by an authorized representative of the
broker/dealer pledging to adhere to Capital Adequacy
Standards established by the Federal Reserve Bank and
acknowledging the broker/dealer understands that HRSD has
relied upon this pledge; and

(e) Any additional information requested by the Director of Finance
in evaluating the creditworthiness of the institution.

(2 Only firms meeting the following requirements will be eligible to serve
as broker/dealers for HRSD:

(@) “Primary” dealers and regional dealers that qualify under SEC
Rule 15c3-1 (Uniform Net Capital Rule);

(b) Unrestricted Capital of at least $10,000,000;
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(©) Registered as a dealer under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934,

(d) Member of the FINRA,

(e) Registered to sell securities in the Commonwealth of Virginia;
and

()] Engaged in the business of effecting transactions in U.S.
government and agency obligations for at least five consecutive
years.

(3) HRSD will designate broker/dealers on an annual basis.

L. Competitive Selection of Investment Instruments. All securities
purchases and sales will be transacted only with designated broker/dealers
through a formal and competitive process requiring the solicitation and
evaluation of at least three bids/offers, taking into consideration current
market conditions and any applicable provisions of the IRS Code. Electronic
bids will be accepted. HRSD will accept the bid which, in the sole judgment
of the Director of Finance or his/her designee: (1) can be accepted under
applicable provisions of the IRS Code; (2) offers the highest rate of return
within the maturity required; and (3) optimizes the investment objective of the
overall investment portfolio, including diversification requirements. When
selling a security, HRSD will select the bid that generates the highest sale
price, consistent with the diversification requirements and any applicable
provisions of the IRS Code.

M. Safekeeping and Custody. All investment securities purchased by HRSD or
held as collateral on deposits or investments will be held by HRSD or by a
third-party custodial agent that may not otherwise be counterparty to the
investment transaction.

Q) All securities in HRSD’s investment portfolio will be held in the name of
HRSD and will be free and clear of any lien. Further, all investment
transactions will be conducted on a delivery versus payment basis.

On a monthly basis, the custodial agent will provide reports that list all
securities held for HRSD, the book value of holdings, and the market
value as of month-end.

(2) HRSD officials and representatives of the custodial agent responsible
for, or in any manner involved with, the safekeeping and custody
process of HRSD will be bonded in such a manner as to protect HRSD
from losses from malfeasance and misfeasance.
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3 Confirming copies of all other investment transactions must be
delivered to HRSD or its custodial agent.

Internal Controls. The Director of Finance will establish a framework of
internal controls governing the administration and management of HRSD’s
investment portfolio, and these controls will be documented in writing. Such
controls will be designed to prevent and control losses of HRSD monies
arising from fraud, employee error, and misrepresentation by third parties,
unanticipated changes in financial markets, or imprudent actions by any
personnel. The internal control structure will be designed to provide
reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Records and Reports. The Director of Finance will prepare an investment
report on at least a quarterly basis for the Commission.

Performance Standards. The investment portfolio will be designed to obtain
at least a market level rate of return, given budgetary and economic cycles,
commensurate with HRSD’s investment risk and cash flow needs. HRSD's
portfolio management approach will be active, allowing periodic restructuring
of the investment portfolio to take advantage of current and anticipated
interest rate movements.

(2) The returns on HRSD’s investments will be compared on a quarterly
basis to indices of U.S. Treasury securities having similar maturities or
to other appropriate benchmarks.

(2 The applicable benchmarks for each of HRSD’s three major
Investment strategies are listed below:

Fund Benchmark

Operating Liquidity ~ 3-Month Treasury Bill or Effective Federal Funds
rate

Total Return Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year U.S. Corporate &

Government Index over three-year periods

Capital Investment  3-Month Treasury Bill, Effective Federal Funds rate,
Virginia LGIP or similar index appropriate to the
duration of the expected cash flows
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Q. Engagement of Investment Managers. The Director of Finance may

engage one of more qualified firms to provide discretionary investment
management services in compliance with this Policy for HRSD. All
investment management firms who desire to provide investment services to
HRSD will be provided with current copies of HRSD’s Investment Policy.
Before an organization can provide investment services to HRSD, it must
confirm in writing that it has received and reviewed HRSD’s Investment
Policy. The Director of Finance will conduct appropriate due diligence in the
selection of qualified investment management firms and will periodically
confirm a manager’s qualifications by visiting that manager’s operational
facilities that provide services to HRSD.

(1) Only firms meeting the following requirements will be eligible to serve
as investment manager for HRSD:

(@) Must be Rregistered with the SEC under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940;

(b) Must provide to HRSD an annual updated copy of Form ADV,
Part Il

(c) Must be registered to conduct business in the Commonwealth
of Virginia; and

(d) Must have proven experience in providing investment
management services under Code of Virginia Sections 2.2-
4500 et seq.

(2) Any firm engaged by HRSD to provide investment services will:

(@) Maintain a list of approved security brokers/dealers selected by
creditworthiness who are authorized to provide investment
services in the Commonwealth of Virginia;

(b) Provide monthly reports of transactions and holdings to the
Director of Finance;

(c) Provide performance reports, at least quarterly, that display
investment performance in comparison to HRSD'’s investment
benchmarks; and

(d) Not collect any soft dollar fees from any broker/dealer or other
financial firm in relation to services provided to HRSD.
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4.3.3 Retiree Health Plan Trust

A. Background. HRSD established the Hampton Roads Sanitation District
Retiree Health Plan Trust (the Trust) originally effective July 1, 2002, and
amended and restated effective January 22, 2008 and November 25, 2008.
The Trust provides for funding of non-pension and Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB), for employees who meet the age and service requirements
outlined in the Hampton Roads Sanitation District Health Benefits Plan (the
Plan) originally effective July 1, 2002, as it may be amended from time to
time.

B. Purpose. The main investment objective of the Trust is to achieve long-term
growth of Trust assets by maximizing long-term rate of return on investments
and minimizing risk of loss in order to fulfill HRSD’s current and long-term
OPEB obligations. The purpose of the Policy is to achieve the following:

(2) Document investment objectives, performance expectations and
investment guidelines for Trust assets.

(2 Establish an appropriate investment strategy for managing all Trust
assets, including an investment time horizon, risk tolerance ranges
and asset allocation to provide sufficient diversification and overall
return over the long-term time horizon of the Trust.

3) Establish investment guidelines to control overall risk and liquidity.

(4) Establish periodic performance and cost reporting requirements that
will effectively monitor investment results and ensure that the
investment policy is being followed.

(5) Comply with all fiduciary, prudence, due diligence and legal
requirements for Trust assets.

C. Investment Authority. HRSD, as Plan Administrator (the Administrator), has
oversight authority of certain policies and procedures related to the operation
and administration of the Trust. Pursuant to the terms of the Trust, the
Trustee is to hold title to the trust assets held for the Plan and to operate
exclusively in the capacity as a directed Trustee. HRSD, as the named
Administrator, has the authority not only to direct the Trustee but to appoint
one or more investment managers. The Administrator will have authority to
implement the investment policy and guidelines in the best interest of the
Trust to best satisfy the purposes of the Trust.
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1)

(2)

The Administrator has a fiduciary duty to the Trust and the participants
and beneficiaries, which requires integrity and competence. Integrity
requires management of the Trust and the assets for the exclusive
benefit of the Trust’s participants and beneficiaries. The required level
of competence is that of a prudent person acting in like capacity and
familiar with such matters would act. This standard of competence
extends to the retention and supervision of expert investment advice
and all other areas of Trust's management.

In implementing this Policy, the Administrator, in accord with the
provisions of the Trust, may delegate certain functions to:

€)) An investment advisor (the Investment Advisor) to assist the
Administrator in the investment process and to maintain
compliance with this Policy. The Investment Advisor may
assist the Administrator in establishing investment policy
objectives and guidelines. The Investment Advisor will adjust
asset allocation for the Trust subject to the guidelines and
limitations set forth in this Policy. The Investment Advisor will
also select investment managers (Managers) and strategies
consistent with its role as a fiduciary for the Trust. The
investment vehicles allowed may include mutual funds,
commingled trusts, separate accounts, limited partnerships and
other investment vehicles deemed to be appropriate by the
Investment Advisor. The Investment Advisor is also responsible
for monitoring and reviewing investment managers; measuring
and evaluating performance; and other tasks as deemed
appropriate in its role as Advisor for Trust assets. The
Investment Advisor may also select investment managers with
discretion to purchase, sell, or hold specific securities, such as
Exchange Traded Funds, that will be used to meet the Trust’s
investment objectives. The Investment Advisor shall never
take possession of securities, cash or other assets of the Trust,
all of which shall be held by the custodian. The Investment
Advisor must be registered with the SEC. The Director of
Finance will conduct appropriate due diligence in the selection
of the Investment Advisor and will periodically confirm the
Investment Advisor’s qualifications by visiting its operational
facilities that provide services to the Trust and HRSD.

(b) A custodian to physically maintain possession of securities
owned by the Trust, collect dividend and interest payments,
redeem maturing securities, and effect receipt and delivery
following purchases and sales, among other things. The
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3)

custodian may also perform regular accounting of all assets
owned, purchased, or sold, as well as movement of assets into
and out of the Trust.

(c) A trustee appointed by the Trust, such as a bank trust
department, if the Trust does not have its own Trustees, to
assume fiduciary responsibility for the administration of Trust
assets; provided, however, that if the Administrator shall have
appointed an investment advisor, then any trustee appointed
under this paragraph shall have no authority with respect to
selection of investments.

(d) Specialists such as attorneys, auditors, actuaries and,
retirement plan consultants to assist the Administrator in
meeting its responsibilities and obligations to administer Trust
assets prudently.

HRSD Commissioners, staff, investment advisors, consultants and
managers will refrain from engaging in any activity that impairs (or has
the potential to impair) their ability to make impartial investment
decisions for the Trust. Persons who nevertheless engage in such
conduct will immediately disclose the conduct to the Administrator.
HRSD members, staff, investment managers and advisers will also
immediately disclose to the Administrator any activity engaged in by
their respective firms, employers, employees and agents which
conflicts (or has the potential to conflict) with the execution of HRSD’s
investment program for the Trust.

D. Statement of Investment Objectives. The investment objectives of the
Trust are as follows:

(1)

(2)

Funding. The primary objective of the Administrator is to maintain the
assets of the Trust at the funding level necessary to provide a pool of
funds to be used to provide post-retirement welfare benefits to Plan
participants. To obtain this objective the Administrator will diversify
Trust assets and adopt an investment strategy consistent with the
Trust’s investment objectives.

Safety. In order to maintain the safety of Trust assets the
Administrator will:

€)) Invest assets of the Trust in a manner consistent with the
following fiduciary standards: all transactions undertaken must
be for the sole interest of Trust beneficiaries and defray
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reasonable expenses in a prudent manner, and assets are to
be diversified in order to minimize the impact of large losses in
individual investments.

(b) Conserve and enhance the value of Trust assets in real terms
through asset appreciation and income generation, while
maintaining a moderate investment risk profile.

(c) Minimize principal fluctuations over the Time Horizon (as
defined below).

(d) Achieve a long-term level of return commensurate with
contemporary economic conditions and equal to or exceeding
the investment objective set forth in this policy under the
Performance Expectations section of the Policy.

3 Liquidity. The Trust's Investment Portfolio in combination with the
projected net cash flows will provide sufficient Liquidity to enable the
Plan to meet all operating requirements which may be reasonably
anticipated.

E. Investment Guidelines. Within this section of the Policy, several terms will
be used to articulate various investment concepts. The descriptions are
meant to be general and may share investments otherwise considered to be
in the same asset class. They are:

Q) Growth Assets - a collection of investments and/or asset classes
whose primary risk and return characteristics are focused on capital
appreciation. Investments within this category can include income and
risk mitigating characteristics, so long as the predominant investment
risk and return characteristic is capital appreciation. Examples of such
investments or asset classes are: domestic and international equities
or equity funds, private or leveraged equity, certain real estate
investments, and hedge funds focused on equity risk mitigation or
equity-like returns.

(2) Income Assets - a collection of investments and/or asset classes
whose primary risk and return characteristics are focused on income
generation. Investments within the Income Assets category can
include capital appreciation and risk mitigating characteristics, so long
as the primary investment risk and return characteristic is income
generation. Examples of such investments or asset classes are: fixed
income securities, guaranteed investment contracts, certain real estate
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investments, and hedge funds focused on interest rate risk mitigation
or income investment-like returns.

(©)) Real Return Assets - a collection of investments and/or asset classes
whose primary risk and return characteristics are focused on real
returns after inflation. Investments within this category can include
inflation protected securities, commodities, certain real estate
investments and hedge funds.

F. Time Horizon. The Trust’s investment objectives are based on a market-
cycle investment horizon so that interim fluctuations should be viewed with
appropriate perspective. HRSD has adopted a long-term investment horizon
such that the chances and duration of investment losses are carefully
weighed against the long-term potential for appreciation of assets.

G. Liquidity and Diversification. Trust will hold an adequate amount of
protected liquidity needs for benefit payments and expenses in cash or cash
equivalents, as determined necessary. The liquidity assets will be invested in
accordance with statutory requirements applicable to liquid assets, as
determined by the Administrator. The remaining assets will be invested in
longer-term securities.

Investments will be diversified with the intent to minimize the risk of long-term
investment losses. The total portfolio will be constructed and maintained to
provide prudent diversification with regard to the concentration of holdings in
individual issues, issuers, countries, governments or industries.

H. Asset Allocation. The Administrator recognizes that asset allocation is one
of the most important investment decisions that an investor makes. The
Administrator or Investment Advisor, as appropriate, will allocate Trust assets
in keeping with the Prudent Person Rule. The Administrator or Investment
Advisor has determined that to achieve the greatest likelihood of meeting the
applicable investment objectives and achieving the best balance between risk
and return for optimal diversification, the Trust should allocate assets into two
broad classes called Investment Assets and Liquidity Assets.

() The Investment Assets will be invested in accordance with the targets
for each asset class as follows to achieve an average total annual rate
of return that is equal to or greater than the Trust’'s actuarial discount
rate as described in the Section titled “Performance Expectations.”
The Liquidity Assets will be held in cash equivalent investments and
used to pay for benefits and expenses of the Trust.
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(2) The Administrator, Investment Advisor, or Managers will have
discretion to temporarily invest a portion of the assets in cash reserves
when they deem it appropriate. However, the Investment Advisor and
each Manager will be evaluated against their peers on the
performance of the total funds under their direct management.

INVESTMENT ASSETS

Asset Classes Asset Range Weightings Target

Growth Assets

Domestic Equity 19% - 59% 39%

International Equity 1% - 41% 21%

Other 0% - 10% 0%
Income Assets

Fixed Income 20% - 60% 40%

Other 0% - 10% 0%
Real Return Assets 0% - 20% 0%
Cash Equivalents 0% - 20% 0%

LIQUIDITY ASSETS

Asset Classes Asset Range Weightings Target

Cash Equivalents 0% - 100% 100%

Rebalancing Philosophy. The asset allocation range established by this
Policy represents a long-term perspective. For that reason, rapid
unanticipated market shifts or changes in economic conditions may cause the
asset mix to fall outside the Policy range. When these divergences occur, the
Administrator or Investment Advisor, as appropriate, will rebalance the asset
mix to its appropriate targets and ranges. Rebalancing will typically occur on
at least a quarterly basis, unless the divergence is deemed an appropriate
tactical strategy by the Administrator or Investment Advisor. Similarly, if the
cash requirement to handle liquidity needs falls to a level at which near-term
distributions (over the following six months or less) cannot be met and no
contributions are anticipated, the Administrator or Investment Advisor will
rebalance the fund to its appropriate targets and ranges.
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Regarding allocating contributions to the Trust, the Administrator or
Investment Advisor will review the Trust allocation and fill the liquidity
allocation first and the remaining investment allocations last.

J. Risk Tolerance. The Trust will be managed in a style that seeks to minimize
principal fluctuations over the established Time Horizon and that is consistent
with the Trust's investment objectives.

K. Performance Expectations. Over the long-term, a rolling five- year period,
the performance objective for Trust assets will be to achieve an average total
annual rate of return that is equal to or greater than the Trust’s current
actuarial discount rate. Additionally, it is expected that the annual rate of
return on Trust assets will be commensurate with the then prevailing
investment environment. Measurement of this return expectation will be
judged by reviewing returns in the context of industry standard benchmarks,
peer universe comparisons for individual Trust investments and blended
benchmark comparisons for the Trust in its entirety. Costs will be reviewed
by the Administrator and Investment Advisor to determine that they are
minimized to the extent possible and are reasonable when compared to
benchmarks.

L. Selection of Investment Managers. The Administrator or Investment
Advisor will prudently select appropriate investment managers to manage the
assets of the Trust. Managers must meet the following criteria:

Q) The investment manager must be a bank, insurance company, or
investment adviser as defined by the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.

(2) With respect to Trust assets invested in a mutual fund, the investment
manager must provide historical quarterly performance data for the
mutual fund compliant with SEC and FINRA standards.

3) The investment manager must provide historical quarterly
performance data compliant with Global Investment Performance
Standards, SEC, FINRA or industry recognized standards, as
appropriate, calculated on a time-weighted basis, based on a
composite of all fully discretionary accounts of similar investment style
and reported net of fees.

4) The investment manager must provide detailed information on history
of the firm, key personnel, key clients, fee schedule (including most
favored nation clauses) and support personnel.
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) The investment manager must clearly articulate the investment
strategy that will be followed and document that the strategy has been
successfully adhered to over time.

(6) The investment professionals making the investment decisions must
have a minimum of three years of experience managing similar
strategies either at their current or at previous firms.

(7 The investment manager for portfolios other than Pooled Vehicles (see
the following Guidelines for Portfolio Holdings) must confirm that it has
received, understands and will adhere to this policy and any manager
specific policies by signing a consent form.

M. Guidelines for Portfolio Holdings. The Administrator will make every effort
to prudently select funds that follow the guidelines listed below.

Q) Until the Trust reaches a size for which investment in separate
accounts is viable and appropriate, the Trust will invest in pooled
vehicles such as commingled and/or mutual funds. Pooled vehicles
are regulated by either the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
(OCC) or the SEC and provide the Trust the ability to appropriately
diversify its holdings in a cost-effective manner. Inherent within the
Pooled Vehicle structure is the limitation on customizing the underlying
security selection based on Trust specific economic, social or other
screens.

(2) Direct Investments by Advisor. Every effort shall be made, to the
extent practical, prudent and appropriate, to select investments that
have investment objectives and policies that are consistent with this
Policy (as outlined in the following sub-sections of the Guidelines for
Portfolio Holdings). However, given the nature of the investments, it is
recognized that there may be deviations between this Policy and the
objectives of these investments.

(3) Limitations on Investment Manager’s Portfolios.
€)) Growth Assets.

Equities. Not more than five percent or weighting in the
relevant index (Russell 3000 Index for U.S. issues and MSCI
All County World Index (ACWI) ex-U.S. for non-U.S. issues) of
the total equity portfolio valued at market may be invested in
the common stock of any one corporation. MSCI is a
publicalypublicly traded company that is an independent
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(b)

(©)

provider of research-driven insights and tools for institutional
investors. The MSCI ACWI is an index that captures all sources
of equity returns in 23 developed and 23 emerging markets.
Ownership of the shares of one company will not exceed two
percent of those outstanding. Not more than 25 percent of
stock valued at market may be held in any one sector, as
defined by the Global Industry Classification Standard.

(1) Domestic Equities. Other than these constraints, there
are no quantitative guidelines suggested as to issues,
industry or individual security diversification. However,
prudent diversification standards should be developed
and maintained by the investment manager(s).

(2) International Equities. The overall non-U.S. equity
allocation, if any, should include a diverse global mix
that is comprised of the equity of companies from
multiple countries, regions and sectors.

Income Assets.

Fixed Income. Fixed income securities, other than U.S.
Treasury Bonds/Note/Bills or Federal Agency issues, of any
one issuer or obligation will not exceed five percent of the total
bond portfolio at time of purchase. The five percent limitation
does not apply to issues of the U.S. Treasury.

The overall weighted rating of the fixed income assets will be at
least "A", based upon the ratings of such assets from a
NRSRO.

Other Assets (Growth and Income Assets).

Other Assets (Alternatives). Alternatives may consist of non-
traditional asset classes such as real estate and commodities,
when deemed appropriate. The total allocation to this category
may not exceed 10 percent of the overall portfolio.

Real Estate. Consists of publicly traded Real Estate
Investment Trust (REIT) securities and/or non-publicly traded
private real estate and shall be diversified across a broad array
of property types and geographic locations. Investments of this
type are designed to provide a stable level of income combined
with potential for price appreciation, particularly in periods of
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(d)

(€)

(f)

unexpected inflation. For private real estate, the illiquid, long-
term nature should be considered. For purposes of asset
allocation targets and limitations, publicly traded REITs will be
categorized as “Other” under the Growth Assets category.
Depending on the investment characteristics of a private real
estate fund, the fund will be categorized as “Other” under either
the Income Assets category, for example, a core real estate
fund, or under the Growth Assets category, for example, an
opportunistic real estate fund where capital gains are expected
to make up a significant portion of the total return.

Portfolio Risk Hedging. Portfolio investments designed to
hedge various risks including volatility risk, interest rate risk,
etc. are allowed to the extent that the investments are not used
for the sole purpose of leveraging Trust assets. One example
of a hedge vehicle is an Exchange Traded Fund (“ETF”) which
takes short positions.

Real Return Assets.

Inflation Hedge. Shall consist of pooled vehicles holding
among other assets: TIPS, commodities or commodity
contracts, index-linked derivative contracts, certain real estate
or real property funds and the equity of companies in
businesses thought to hedge inflation. Inflation hedge assets
will be reported in the Real Return Assets category.

If the credit quality of any one issue should drop below
investment grade (as defined by at least two of the following
three NRSROs — Fitch, Moody’s and S&P), the investment
manager should notify the Administrator and Investment
Advisor immediately detailing a plan of action regarding the
security.

Cash Equivalents. Liquidity and temporary cash equivalent
reserves will be invested according to the provisions of Code of
Virginia Sections 2.2-4500 through 2.2-4518 applicable to liquid
assets.

Additional Limitations.

Q) Prohibited Investments. Except for purchase within
authorized investments, the following investments and
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transactions are not authorized and will not be
purchased:

Letter stock and other unregistered securities,

Direct commodities or commaodity contracts,

Short sales,

Margin transactions,

Private placements (with the exception of Rule 144A
securities),

Venture capital funds,

Private equity,

Hedge funds;

Cryptocurrencies

Further, derivatives, options or futures for the sole purpose of
portfolio leveraging (portfolio leveraging refers specifically to
investments which can lead to losses in excess of 100 percent
of initial invested capital) are also prohibited. Direct ownership
of real estate, natural resource properties such as oil, gas or
timber and the purchase of collectibles is also prohibited.

(2) Safekeeping. All securities will be held by a third-party
custodian selected through a public procurement
process by the Administrator, pursuant to contract
approval, for safekeeping. The custodian will produce
statements monthly listing the name and value of all
assets held, and the dates and nature of all
transactions. Assets of the Trust held as liquidity or
investment reserves will, at all times, be invested in
interest-bearing accounts. Investments and portfolio
securities may not be loaned.

(9) Control Procedures.

() Legal Requirements, Controls, and Investment
Policy Statement Review. At all times the
Administrator will comply with all State, and federal
reporting requirements. The Administrator will establish,
maintain and review prudent internal controls for the
assets of the Trust, including those used by HRSD staff,
and the Trust's Investment Advisor and custodian. The
Administrator will provide for annual review of the
adequacy and compliance of these control procedures.
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(2) The Administrator will review the Financial Policy no
less than annually and provide documentation to HRSD
when their review is complete. Specifically, the
investment component of the Financial Policy will be
reviewed when any one of the following occurs:

Change in investment advisors

Initial use of investment vehicles other than mutual
funds

Significant change in Trust assets

Significant change in funded status

Significant change in market conditions

(3) Review of Investment Objectives. The Administrator
will review annually the appropriateness of this Policy for
achieving the Trust's stated objectives. It is not
expected that the Policy will change frequently. In
particular, short-term changes in the financial markets
should not require an adjustment in the investment

policy.

4) Review of Investment Performance. The
Administrator, on a quarterly basis, will review the total
Trust investment performance, including all fees and
costs and provide a report to the Commission. In
addition, should investment functions be delegated, the
Investment Advisor will be responsible for keeping the
Administrator advised of any material change in
investment strategy, investment managers, and other
pertinent information potentially affecting performance of
the Trust.

The Administrator will compare the investment results,
including all fees and costs, on a quarterly basis to
appropriate benchmarks, as well as to market index
returns in both equity and debt markets. Examples of
benchmarks and indexes that will be used include the:

Russell 3000 Index for broad U.S. equity strategies;
S&P 500 Index for large cap U.S. equities,

Russell 2000 Index for small cap U.S. equities,
MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. Index for broad based non-U.S.
equity strategies;
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MSCI Europe, Australasia, and Far East (EAFE)
Index for developed markets international equities,
Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond Index for fixed
income securities, and

U.S. 91 Day Treasury Bill for cash equivalents
Russell 3000 Index will be used to benchmark the
U.S. equities portfolio;

MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. Index will be used to
benchmark the non-U.S. equities portfolio;
Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index will be used to
benchmark the fixed income portfolio.

The categories “Other” will be benchmarked against
appropriate indices depending on the specific
characteristics of the strategies and funds used. The
Administrator will also compare investment results with
the Virginia Retirement System at the end of each fiscal
year.

Voting of Proxies. The Administrator recognizes that
proxies are a significant and valuable tool in corporate
governance. The voting rights of individual stocks held
in separate accounts or collective, common, or pooled
funds will be exercised by the investment managers in
accordance with their own proxy voting policies. The
voting rights of funds will be exercised by the Investment
Advisor.

Investment manager(s) are expected to be aware of
corporate provisions that may adversely affect
stockholdings, including but not limited to “golden
parachutes,” “super majorities,” “poison pills,” “fair price”
provisions, staggered boards of directors, and other
tactics. Proxies should be vigorously voted with the
interest of preserving or enhancing the security’s value.

The investment manager(s) of a commingled trust or
mutual fund that holds the assets of the Trust along with
assets of other funds with conflicting proxy voting
policies must reconcile the conflicting policies to the
extent possible, and, if necessary, to the extent legally
permissible, vote the proxies to reflect the policies in
proportion to each fund’s interest in the pooled fund.
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(6) Review of Actuarial Data. The Administrator will
review the Trust’s actuarial data at least once every two
years or more frequently if deemed necessary, to
determine whether any substantive change in the
investment policy is appropriate. The Administrator will
provide for an actuarial valuation in compliance with
GAAP, at least every two years.

4.4  ASSET CAPITALIZATION

4.4.1 Notifications. Accounting must be notified when any Capital Asset is placed in
service or is in the process of disposal to ensure accurate asset records are kept.

A. Cost.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)
(6)

(7)

Property, plant and equipment purchased, donated or constructed is
recorded at historical cost as of the date acquired.

Cost includes capitalized interest borrowed to finance the construction
of major capital additions.

Generally, for projects funded with both debt proceeds and other
resources, it is HRSD’s policy to use available debt proceeds to pay
project expenditures prior to using its own resources.

Assets costing below the $5,000 threshold amount are recorded as an
expense in HRSD’s financial statements.

Routine repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Vehicles, office furniture, equipment, software and intangible assets
are reviewed monthly to determine whether the asset meets the
capitalization threshold.

Assets that are constructed over a period of time, such as capital
projects, treatment plants, buildings and facilities, and interceptor
systems, are reviewed at completion to determine the appropriate
capitalization value, which may include interest costs.

B. Useful Life.

(1)

Assets with an economic useful life of less than 60 months are
required to be expensed for financial statement purposes, regardless
of the acquisition or production cost.
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(2) Major repairs that substantially extend the life of an asset or expand its
service capacity may be capitalized. For example, if a roof repair or
coating is expected to extend the asset’s useful life 20 years or
beyond, the cost may be capitalized.

(2) The service lives for Capital Assets are as follows:
Treatment plants, buildings and facilities 30 years
Interceptor systems 50 years
Office furniture, computer hardware and equipment  5-10 years
Software and intangible assets 5-7 years

Automotive 5 years
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